
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
George Williams, District 2 
Mary Pietila, District 3 
Gloria Miller, District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

STUDY SESSION 
December 17, 2019 

6:00P.M. 
130th Session of the 10th Council 

Call to order 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. December 6, 2019 Special Meeting 
2. December 10, 2019 Formal Meeting 
3. December 12, 2019 Special Meeting 

Public Comment 

Communications from the Mayor 
4. Phoenix Center Report Update 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 

a. Overview of Request for Proposal (RFP) Process for the Selection of the Architect and Engineering 
Services for the Phoenix Center. 

b. Update of the Public Private Partnership RFP for the Phoenix Center. 

Resolutions 
City Council 

5. Resolution to approve 2020 Meeting Schedule 

Department of Public Works (DPW) 
6. Resolution to appoint Dan Ringo as the City of Pontiac official representative to the No-Haz Advisory Board to 

work with Oakland County Waste Resource Management Division as needed to plan the NoHaz program for 
2020. 

50th District Court 
7. Resolution for approve Inter local Agreement for Mandated Michigan Indigent Defense Commission 

Continuing Legal Education Requirements between the City of Pontiac and Oakland County and authorize the 
Mayor to sign the Agreement 



Finance 
8. Resolution to approve the revised Federal Poverty Guidelines for 2020 and the City of Pontiac Board of 

Review Instructions for Applicants requesting Hardship Exemption consideration. 

Planning/Community Development 
9. Resolution to approve Zoning Map Amendment request for 3111 Centerpoint Parkway, also known as Parcel 

Number 64-19-03-427-007, to amend site zoning from C-4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light 
Manufacturing. (This item was deferred for one week at the Council Meeting on December 10, 2019.) 

10. Resolution to approve the vacating of Campus Drive between Centerpoint Parkway and Opdyke Road abutting 
Parcel Numbers 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-03-200-023 and 19-03-226-004. (This 
item was deferred for one week at the Council Meeting on December 10, 2019.) 

11. Resolution Approving an Industrial Development District pursuant to the provisions of PA 198 of 1974, as 
amended an Industrial Development District located on 2501 Centerpoint Parkway, Pontiac, MI Parcel No. 
64-19-03-200-021 (This item was deferred for one week at the Council Meeting on December 10, 2019.) 

12. Resolution approving Application of Challenge Manufacturing Company, LLC 2501 Centerpoint Parkway, 
Pontiac, MI for Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for a new facility parcel 19-03-200-021. (This item 
was deferred for one week at the Council Meeting on December 10, 2019.) 

13. Resolution approving the Letter of Agreement and Affidavit of Fees between the City of Pontiac and Challenge 
Manufacturing Company, LLC 

Communication from the City Clerk 
14. Medical Marihuana Application Process Question and Answer Forum on Wednesday, December 18, 2019 4:00 

p.m.-6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers 

Adjournment 





December 6, 2019 Special 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

127th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Friday, 
December 6, 2019 at 4:07 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Miller, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams. 
Members Absent: Carter, Pietila and Watennan. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Council Pro-Tern Randy Caiier arrived at 4:08 p.m. 

19-597 Excuse Councilperson Patrice Waterman and Mary Pietila for personal reasons. 
Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

19-598 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Miller, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of the agenda. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Council President requested that "and prohibits the Mayor from accepting provisioning 
center applications and instructs the Mayor and City Attorneys to adhere to the ordinance" be stricken 
from the resolution. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Miller. The 
resolution never received a vote. 

Three (3) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 5:13 p.m. 

1 



December 6, 2019 Special 

2 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 





December 10, 2019 Formal 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

128th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Formal Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
December 10, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams. 
Members Absent: Waterman. 
Mayor Waterman was absent. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-599 Excuse Councilperson Patrice Waterman for personal reasons. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-600 Motion to add the 10th Council Rules and Procedures to the agenda as item #23. 
Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Motion for another Moratorium for the Medical Marihuana Applications. Moved by Councilperson 
Miller, no second. Motion Fails. 

19-601 Motion to add a special meeting regarding an update on the Medical Marihuana 
Court Hearing on Thursday, December 12, 2019, at 12:00 noon to the agenda as item #22. Moved by 
Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller and Taylor-Burks 
No: Pietila 
Motion Carried. 

1 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

19-602 Motion to add MDOT Woodward Loop discussion to the agenda as item #24. Moved 
by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Carter. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-603 Motion to add Ottawa Towers Contract to the agenda as item #25. Moved by 
Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

Ayes: K. Williams, Carter, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and G. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-604 Approval of the agenda as amended. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by 
Councilperson G. Williams. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-605 Approval of meeting minutes of December 3, 2019. Moved by Councilperson G. 
Williams and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams and Caiier 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Subcommittee Reports 

Received Law/50th District - December 3, 2019 

President Kermit Williams opened up public hearing to establish an Industrial Facilities Tax 
Exemption Certificate for Challenge Manufacturing Company, LLC at 6:22 p.m. 

Two individuals addressed the body during the public hearing. 

1. Minister Kathalee James 1579 Marshbank Dr., Pontiac, MI 
Minister James spoke about the need to track the hiring of Pontiac residents. 

2. H. Bill Maxey 1053 Oxford Rd., Pontiac, MI 
Mr. Maxey spoke about the need to track Pontiac residents hiring. He also talked about a letter of 
understanding for job training and scholarships. Where is the Contract Compliance Enforcement 

2 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

Officer? He would like to see an Executive Order outlining requirements for companies seeking 
tax incentives. 

Council President closed public hearing at 6:28 p.m. 

President Kermit Williams opened up public hearing to consider an Application for an Industrial 
Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate for Challenge Manufacturing Company, LLC at 6:48 p.m. 

Three individuals addressed the body during the public hearing. 

1. Billie Swazer 1619 Marshbank Dr., Pontiac, MI 
Ms. Swazer spoke against a 12 year tax abatement. She also stated that Ms. Riley is the Contract 
Compliance Officer. 

2. Carlton Jones 1323 Oaklawn Dr., Pontiac, MI 
Mr. Jones talked about opportunities for citizens. The need to develop talent for all types of 
employment and the OU Pontiac Initiative. 

3. Minister Kathalee James 1579 Marshbank Dr., Pontiac, MI 
Minister James spoke in support of the project. 

Council President closed public hearing at 6:53 p.m. 

Special Presentation 

Pontiac Sun Time Bank 
Presentation Presenter: Mary Hogan and Edith Carter 

City's Blight Program Update 
Presentation Presenter: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

Pro Tern Randy Carter requested a spreadsheet identifying all properties from 2015 to date. 

Council President Kermit Williams asked what was the cost and how many properties are owned by 
Oakland County? 

**Council will like Blight Program brought back on January 14, 2020** 

Phoenix Center Update Regarding RFP Bids for Public/Private Partnership 
Presentation Presenter: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

19-606 Suspend the rules and defer item #13 and #14 (Challenge Manufacturing) for one 
week. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

3 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: Carter and Miller 
Motion Carried. 

19-607 Adoption of an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 74 Article ill Preservation of Historic 
Buildings Ordinance to include Language and Historic District Commission Powers that are in 
Accordance to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 110 of 2006 and to Repeal Sections 74-51 through 
74-62. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Ordinance Passed. 

**Ordinance is attached as Exhibit A after minutes** 

19-608 Resolution for "Junior Grand Marshall" Shalom Byrd. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Carter. 

WHEREAS, It is the sense of this legislative body to honor an outstanding, young adult ofremarkable 
character, who is inspirational and who serves as a role-model to others; and, 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd has the unique distinction and privilege of representing the City of Pontiac 
as the 2019 Junior Grand Marshal and is the winner of the Fran Anderson Making a Difference 
Scholarship; and, 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd is a Pontiac resident and attends International Technology Academy; and, 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd is an exceptional student who has a passion for serving the 
"underprivileged and underrepresented;' and, 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd has received the Student of the Month Award, Academic Achievement 
Award, inducted into the National Honors Society and Achievement in Math and Science Award; and, 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd is a member of Midnight Golf, Kids Standard Publication and has been 
bestowed with the honor and responsibility of acting as trip planner and adviser for her senior class, is 
associated with Project Upward Bound, is an Alpha Kappa Alpha Teen, a Leaders of the Future activist, 
and Kids Standard Publication president; and, 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd also sings in the choir at Trinity Missionary Baptist Church, volunteers at 
Nicks Comer on Thanksgiving and is a Gleaner's Food Bank volunteer; and, 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd is a rising star who mentors children in reading, writing and mathematics; 
and, 

4 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

WHEREAS, Shalom Byrd's contributions ofleadership, selflessness and commitment to our 
community are invaluable and inevitably will contribute to making the community a better place. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council, and members of this great 
community, honor and salute the personal accomplishments and achievements of Junior Grand Marshal, 
Shalom Byrd for a job well done and for truly representing the City of Pontiac. Congratulations. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-609 Resolution to approve No-Haz Contract with Oaldand County with a "no-fee" 
option. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

WHEREAS, the northern cities, villages, and townships in Oakland County are committed to protection 
of the natural environment and preventing toxic materials from entering our waterways and landfill 
resources; and 
WHEREAS, the improper handling and disposal of toxic and poisonous household chemicals also poses a 
health risk to our citizens; and 
WHEREAS, recognizing there is a need to provide regular and easily accessible household hazardous 
waste collection services to No1ih Oakland County residents; and 
WHEREAS, collection events for household hazardous waste have become widely accepted as the best 
way to provide citizens with a safe method of disposal of these toxic and poisonous household chemicals, 
and for the communities to realize the economies of scale, and 
WHEREAS, Oakland County, through its Waste Resource Management Division, has joined these 
northern Oakland County communities in creating the North Oakland Household Hazardous Waste 
Consortium (NoHaz), and 
WHEREAS, the NoHaz Consortium has developed a household hazardous waste collection program, and 
WHEREAS, a NoHaz Interlocal Agreement has been drafted to address necessary legal, liability, and 
responsibility issues for both the County and the participating communities, and identifies Oakland 
County's role in administering and managing the NoHaz program, and, 
WHEREAS, the NoHaz Interlocal agreement establishes a NoHaz advisory board to assist and advise 
Oakland County in the development of the NoHaz program. 
Now Therefore be it Resolved: That our community, City of Pontiac, hereby approves the attached 
NoHaz Interlocal Agreement and authorizes its signature, and 
Be it Further Resolved: That we will not charge residents to participate in NoHaz events in 2020. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: Carter and Miller 
Resolution Passed. 

19-610 Defer items #11 (budget amendment) and #12 (Clean Net of Greater Michigan) until 
December 23, 2019. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

5 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

Ayes: K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and G. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-611 Resolution to approve the submission of the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Program Year (PY) 2020 application with the proposed allocations to the Oaldand County 
and Home Improvement Division. Moved by Councilperson Carter and second by Councilperson G. 
Williams. 

WHEREAS the City Council has received the Community Development Department recommendations 
for projects for the CDBG PY 2020; and 
WHEREAS the City Council held a public hearing on the proposed allocations for PY 2020 on December 
3,2019,and 
WHEREAS the Community Development Depmiment has recommended that the 2020 CDBG funding 
allocation of $799.257.00 be allocated as follows: 

$265,000.00 Senior Centers for the replacement of parking lots for the City's Senior Centers 
(Robert Bowen's and Ruth Peterson); 

$234,257.00 for Sidewalk Repairs throughout the City of Pontiac; 
$250,000.00 for Rehabilitation Multi-Unit Residential for the Pontiac Housing Commission's 

RAD project, Carriage Circle; and 
$50,000.00 for Public Services General - House Keeping to assist Senior Citizens to "age in 

place" and continue an independent lifestyle. 
NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approve the submission of the 
CDBG PY 2020 application with the proposed allocations to the Oakland County Community and Home 
Improvement Division. 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No:None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-612 Motion to approve a Resolution to revisit the 2020 Community Development Block 
Grant Funds on February 18, 2019. (Agenda add-on) Moved by Councilperson G. Williams and 
second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Be It Resolved, that the Pontiac City Council wants to revisit our Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Funds Year 2020 on February 18, 2019 in the amount of $799, 257 not to be contracted prior to 
this date mention above. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

6 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

19-613 Defer for one week the resolution to approve Zoning Map Amendment request for 
3111 Center Point Parkway, also known as parcel# 64-19-06-427-007, to amend site zoning from C-
4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light Manufacturing. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by 
Councilperson G. Williams. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 
Councilperson Pietila was absent during the vote. 

19-614 Defer resolution to approve the vacating of Campus Drive between Center Point 
Parkway and Opdyke Road abutting parcel# 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-03-
200-023 and 19-03-226-004. Moved by Councilperson Miller and second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-615 Resolution to approve request to revise the Pontiac Fee Schedule, as part of the 
approved City of Pontiac 2019-2020 Budget to add a Fifty [$50.00] Dollar fee for historic District 
Commission Administrative review and two hundred Seventy Five [$275.00] Dollar fee for each 
Redevelopment Liquor License Application review. Moved by Councilperson G. Williams and second 
by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Whereas, the City Planning Division request to revise the City of Pontiac Fee Schedule; 1) Historic 
District Commission Administrative review fee, and 2) Redevelopment Liquor License Application 
review fee, following the Planning Division's assessment of neighboring community's Fee Schedules. 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Division recommendation to revise the Fee Schedule, as part of the approved City of Pontiac 2019/2020 
Budget to add a Fifty [$50.00] Dollar fee for each Historic District Commission Administrative review 
and a Two Seventy Five [$275.00] Dollar fee for each Redevelopment Liquor License Application 
review. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

19-616 Defer Planning Commission Appointments until the second week of January along 
with other Planning Commission Appointments. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

7 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

19-617 Motion to direct the City Clerk to publish the notice in a newspaper of general 
circulation at least one week before consideration of the proposed budget amendment for the 
Pontiac Youth Recreation and Enrichment Center (PYREC) for fiscal year 2019/2020 to allocate a 
total of $51,456.09 (includes fringe benefits), from the Youth Recreation Fund's (208) fund balance 
to Youth Recreation Fund - Recreation Facility Department (756) Personnel Accounts. The 
breakout of these funds into accounts is as follows; $34,666.67 to Salaries and Wages account 208-
756-702.00, $2,652 to F.I.C.A- City Contribution account 208-756-715.000, $9,320.50 to Medical 
Insurance account 208-756-716.000, $438.36 to Life Insurance account 208-756-717.000, $2,333.33 
to MERS Employer Contribution account 208-756-718.500, $1,866.67 to Workers Compensation 
Insurance account 208-756-719.000, and lastly $178.56 to Dental Insurance account 208-756-
719.001. The total funds amount of $51,456.09 are to be used to restore the Pontiac Youth and 
Empowerment Center's (PYREC) Youth Recreation Assistant Manager position to a full-time 
status. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and G. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-618 Motion to schedule a special meeting Thursday, December 12, 2019 at 12:00 noon 
for an update on the Medical Marihuana Court Hearing. (Agenda add-on) Moved by Councilperson 
G. Williams and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Caiier, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-619 Motion to approve the 10th Council Rules and Procedures Amendments. (Agenda 
add-on) Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

**The Amended 10th Council Rules are attached as Exhibit B after minutes** 

19-620 Motion to schedule a special meeting on January 27, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. for the 
MDOT Woodward Loop Discussion. (Agenda add-on) Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and 
second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

8 



December 10, 2019 Formal 

19-621 Motion to add a resolution for Ottawa Towers Contract Extension for Phoenix 
Center Maintenance. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

Whereas, The City of Pontiac has contacted Ottawa towers and requested an extension of the current 
operations and maintenance agreement for the Phoenix Center, and; 
Whereas, The Ottawa Towers has agreed to extend the current services at the same cost as originally 
agreed upon and extend those services until March 31, 2020, and; 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Pontiac City Council authorized the Mayor or deputy Mayor to 
sign the attached contract extension with Ottawa Towers for the operations and maintenance of the 
Phoenix Center Garage for the cost of $9,810 per month. 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: Taylor-Burks 
Resolution Passed. 

Five (5) individuals addressed the body during public comment. 

Mayor Waterman, Councilman George Williams, Councilwoman Mary Pietila, Councilwoman Doris 
Taylor-Burks, Councilwoman Gloria Miller, Council Pro-Tern Randy Carter and Council President 
Kermit Williams made closing comments. 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 9:31 p.m. 

9 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 



Exhibit A 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
ORDINANCE NO.'. 

AN ORDINA.t"\'CE TO AMEND CHAPTER 74 ARTICLE III PRESERVATION OF 
HISTORIC BUILDINGS ORDINANCE TO INCLUDE LANGUAGE AND HISTORIC 
DISTRICT CO!VIMISION POWERS THAT ARE IN ACCORDANCE TO THE MICHIGAN 
ZONING ENABLING ACT 110 OF 2006 AND TO REPEAL SECTIONS 74-51 THROUGH 
74-62. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

-7-4-£ Article III. Preservation of Historic Buildings 

-1-l---M 7 4-63 PU~OSE AND INTENT \ 

Formatted: Normal, Left, No bullets or numbering 

Historic preservation is hereby declared to be a public purpose and the Jl;i~t<;nic _ _ _ _ _ _ _ i Formatted: Font color: Auto 
District Commission of the City of Pontiac may hereby regulate the constmction, ~ 
addition, alteration, repair, moving,' excavat1011: and dernolition-of iesources-in l1istoric- - - - - - I Formatted: Font color. Auto 
districts within the City limits. The purpose of this Ordinance is to: 

1. Safeguard the heritage of the City of Pontiac by preserving districts which reflect 
elements of its history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, or culture. 

2. Stabilize and improve property values in each district and sunounding areas. 

3. Foster civic beauty. 

4. Strengthen the local economy. 

5. Promote the use of historic districts for the education, pleasure, and welfare of the 
citizens of the City of Pontiac and of the State oflvlichigan. 

The City of l cm_ti~c_ rp~x_ ~>'.. Q~djn_~c~ _ e,;t~~li,;l!_ QI!_e _ o_r _II_!O_!~ lii~tgric_ c_l_i~trjcJs~ J~t!. ~i,;tgric ___ - - i Formatted: Font color. Auto 
distiict(s) shall be administered by the Historic District Commission and pursuant to this 
Ordinance . 

.;z...)....6§74-64 DEFINITIONS 

I. "Alteration" means work that changes the detail of a resource but does not 
change its basic size or shape. 

2. "Certificate of Appropriateness" means the written approval ofa pennit 
application for work that is appropriate and does not adversely affect a resource. 

_3. __ "Commission" means the Historic District Commission of the City of Pontiac. 

;J.A_,__"Demolition" means the razing or destruction, whether entirely or in part, of a 
resource and includes, but is not limited to, demolition by neglect. 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.57", Hanging: 
0.5", Space Before: 0 pt, Outline numbered+ Level: 3 + 
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: 
Left+ Aligned at: 0.67" + Indent at 0.82", Tab stops: 
1.07", Left+ 1.07", Left+ Not at 1.75" 



4._5. __ "Demolition by Neglect" means neglect in maintaining, repairing, or securing a 
resource that results in deterioration of an exterior feature of the resource or the 
loss of structural integrity of the resource. 

~_6. __ "Denial" means the written rejection of a pennit application for work that is 
inappropriate and that adversely affects a resource. 

&c_7. __ "Fire Alarm System" means a system designed to detect and annunciate the 
presence of fire or by-products of fire. Fire alann system includes smoke alarms. 

+._8 . __ " Historic District" means an area, or group of areas, not necessarily having 
contignous boundaries, that contains one resource or a group of resources that are 
related by history, architecture, archaeology, engineering, or culture. 

&_9. __ "Historic Preservation" means the identification, evaluation, establishment, and 
protection ofresources significant in history, architecture, archaeology, 
engineering, or culture. 

lJ..,.!..Q_,___"Historic Resource" means a publicly or ptivately owned building, structure, 
site, object, feature or open space that is significant in the history, architecture, 
archaeology, engineering, or culture of the city of Pontiac, state of lvlichigan, or 
the United States. 

+!}._I _!._"Notice to Proceed" means the written permission to issue a pennit for work 
that is inapproptiate and that adversely affects a resource, pursuant to a finding 
under Section 399.205(6) of Public Act 169 of 1970, as amended. 

I I. "Open Space" means undeveloped land, a naturally landscaped area, or a fonnal 
or man-made landscaped area that provides a connective link or buffer between 
other resources. 

12. "Ordinary Maintenance" means keeping a resource unimpaired and in good 
condition through ongoing minor intervention, undetiaken from time to time, in 
its extetior condition. Ordinmy maintenance does not change the external 
appearance of the resource except through the elimination of the usual and 
expected effects of weathering. Ordinary maintenance does not constitute work 
for the purposes of this Ordinance. 

13. "Proposed Historic District" means an area, or group of areas not necessarily 
having contignous boundaries, that has delineated boundaries and that is under 
review by a committee or a standing committee for the purpose of making a 
recommendation as to whether it should be established as a historic district or 
added to an established historic district. 

14. "Repair" means to restore a decayed or damaged resource to good or sound 
condition by any process. A repair that changes the external appearance of a 
resource constitutes work for the purposes of this Ordinance. 

15. "Resource" means one or more publicly or privately owned historic or non
historic buildings, structures, sites, objects, features, or open spaces located 
within a historic disttict. 

~ -i Formatted: Right 



16. "Smoke Alarm" means a single-station or multiple-station alann responsive to 
smoke and not connected to a system. As used in this subdivision, "single-station 
alann" means an assembly incorporating a detector, the control equipment, and 
the alann sounding device into a single unit, operated from a power supply either 
in the unit or obtained at the point of installation. "Multiple-station alann" 
means 2 or more single-station alanns that are capable of intercormection such 
that actuation of I alann causes all integrated separate audible alanns to operate. 

17. "Work" means construction, addition, alteration, repair, moving, excavation, or 
demolition. 

-14-6ti74-65 THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COJVIMISSION 

a) City Council may establish by ordinance a commission to be called a Hist01ic District 
Commission. The Commission may be established at any time, but not later than the time 
the first historic district is established. Each member of the Commission shall reside 
within the city limits. The Commission shall consist of seven (7) members. Members 
shall be appointed by the Mayor. A majority of the members shall have a clearly 
demonstrated interest in or knowledge of historic preservation. Members shall be 
appointed for a tenn of three (3) years, except the initial appointments of three (3) 
members for a tenn of two (2) years and two (2) members for a tenn of one year. 
Subsequent appointments shall be for three-year tenns. Members shall be eligible for 
reappointment. In the event of a vacancy on the C01mnission, interim appointments shall 
be made by the City Council within sixty ( 60) calendar days to complete the unexpired 
tenn of such position. Two (2) members shall be appointed from a list submitted by duly 
organized local historic preservation organizations. If such a person is available for 
appointment, one member shall be an architect who has two years of architectural 
experience or who is duly registered in the State of Michigan. The commission shall have 
no less than three members who are prope1iy owners within the histo1ic distiict~. Any 
member who has three unexcused absences during the course of one year will be 
considered to have resigned from the Commission and the Mayor may make an interim 
appointment to complete the unexpired tenn of such position. A member may be removed 
from the Co1mnission by the Mayor for misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonfeasance in the 
office after having the opp01iunity to be heard before the City Council, and upon an 
affinnative vote of majority of the seated Council. 

b) The Mayor may prescribe powers and duties of the Commission, in addition to those 
prescribed in this Ordinance, that foster historic preservation activities, projects, and 
programs in the local unit. 

c) Coordination between the county historic c01mnission and the city historic commission 
shall be maintained. The overall historical preservation plan of the city shall be sub1nitted 
to the county historic commission for review, and county plans sub1nitted to the city's 
historic district commission. Day-to-day activities of legal c01mnissions concerning 
alteration and restoration decisions need not be sub1nitted to the county but only those 
plans which have other than strictly local significance. 

d) To the extent any Historic District Com1nission(s) were created under prior legislation 
authorizing such creation, they shall remain in full force and effect and be governed and 
have the authorities established herein. 

3 



-14-6-174-66 ACCEPTANCE OF GIFTS OR GRANTS 

The City Council may accept state or federal grants for historic preservation purposes; may 
participate in state and federal programs that benefit historic preservation, and may accept public 
or private gifts for histmic preservation purposes. The City Council may appoint the Historic 
District Cmmnission to accept and administer grants, gifts, and program responsibilities . 

.'.74--6874-67 ESTABLISHING ADDITIONAL, MODfFIYING, OR ELIMINATING 
HISTORIC DISTRICTS 

1. The City Council may at any time establish by ordinance additional historic districts, 
including proposed districts previously considered and rejected, may modify 
boundaries of an existing historic district, or may eliminate an existing historic 
district. Before establishing, modifying, or eliminating a historic distJict, a historic 
district study committee appointed by the City Council shall follow the procedures as 
stated in Section 399.203 (1-3) of Public Act 169 of 1970, as amended. To conduct 
these activities, the City Council may retain the initial cmmnittee, establish a 
standing committee, or establish a committee to consider only specific proposed 
distiicts and then be dissolved. The cmmnittee shall consider any previously written 
committee reports pertinent to the proposed action. 

2. In considering elimination of a historic district, a committee shall follow the 
procedures set forth in Section 399.203 ( 1-3) of Public Act 169 of 1970, as amended 
for the issuance of a preliminmy report, holding a public hearing, and issuing a final 
report but with the intent of showing one or more of the following: 

-'7-4--6-97 4-6 8 

a. The historic district has lost those physical characteristics that enabled the 
establishment of the district. 

b. The historic district was not significant in the way previously defined. 

c. The historic district was established pursuant to defective procedures. 

HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE AL'ID THE STUDY 
COl\fMITTEE REPORT 

Before establishing a historic district(s ), the Mayor shall appoint a Historic District Study 
Cmmnittee. A majmity of the persons appointed to the Study Committee shall have a clearly 
demonstrated interest in or knowledge of historic preservation. The Study Co1mnittee shall 
contain representation of at least one member appointed from one or more duly organized local 
historic preservation organizations. The Study Cmmnittee shall do all of the following: 

A. Conduct a photographic inventmy of resources within each proposed historic 
district following procedures established by the State Historic Preservation 
Office of the Michigan Historical Center. 

B. Conduct basic research of each proposed historic district and historic resources 
located within that district. 

C. Detennine the total number ofhistmic and non-histmic resources within a 

4 

.._ - i Formatted: Right 



proposed historic dist1ict and the percentage of historic resources of that total. In 
evaluating the significance of historic resources, the Cotmnittee shall be guided 
by the selection criteria for evaluation issued by the United States Secretmy of 
the Interior for inclusion of resources in the National Register ofHist01icPlaces, 
as set forth in 36 CFR part 60, and criteria established or approved by the State 
Histo1ic Preservation Office of the Michigan Historical Center. 

D. Prepare a preliminmy Historic Disttict Study Co1mnittee report that addresses at 
a minimum all of the following: 

I. The charge of the Committee. 
2. The composition of Committee membership. 
3. The hist01ic disttict(s) studied. 
4. The boundaries of each proposed hist01ic disttict in writing and on maps. 
5. The history of each proposed historic dist1ict. 
6. The significance of each district as a whole, as well as a sufficient number of 

its individual resources to fully represent the variety of resources found 
within the district, relative to the evaluation criteria. 

7. Transmit copies of the preliminmy repmi for review and reco1mnendations to 
the local planning body, the State Historic Preservation Office of the 
Ivlichigan Hist01ical Center, the Michigan Historical C01mnission, and the 
State Historic Preservation Review Board. 

8. Make copies of the preliminmy repmi available to the public pursuant to 
Section 399.203 (4) of Public Act 169 of 1970, as amended. 

E. Not less than sixty (60) calendar days after the transmittal of the preliminmy 
report, the Historic Dist1ict Study Committee shall hold a public hearing in 
compliance with Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended. Public notice of the time, 
date and place of the hearing shall be given in the manner required by Public Act 

267. Written notice shall be mailed by first class mail not less than fourteen 
(14) calendar days prior to the hearing to the owners of properties within the 
proposed historic district, as listed on the most cmTent tax rolls. The report 
shall be made available to the public in compliance with Public Act 442 of 
1976, as amended. 

F. After the date of the public hearing, the Committee and the City Council have not 
more than one year, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council, to take the 
following actions: 

I. The Committee shall prepare and submit a fmal report with its 
recommendations and the recommendations, if any, of the local planning 
body to the City Council as to the establishment of a Hist01ic Disttict(s). If 
the recommendation is to establish a Historic District( s ), the final report shall 
include a draft of the proposed ordinance( s ). 

2. After receiving a final report that rec01mnends the establishment of a Historic 
Disttict(s), the City Council, at its discretion, may introduce and pass or 
reject an ordinance(s). If the City Council passes an ordinance(s) establishing 
one or more Historic Districts, the City shall file a copy of the ordinance(s), 
including a legal description of the property or properties located within the 
Historic District(s) with the Register of Deeds. The City Council shall not 

5 

•- - i Formatted: Right 



pass an ordinance establishing a contiguous historic distiict less than 60 days 
after a majority of the property owners within the proposed historic distiict, 
as listed on the tax rolls of the local unit, have approved the establishment of 
the historic district pursuant to a wiitten petition. 

G. A w1iting prepared, owned, used, in the possession of, or retained by a committee 
in the perfonnance of an official function of the Historic District C01mnission 
should be made available to the public in compliance with Public Act 442 of 
197 6, as amended. 

-14--7074-69 HISTORIC DISTRICT COMJVITSSION MEETINGS, 
RECORD KEEPING & RULES OF PROCEDURE 

I. The Historic Distiict Commission shall meet at monthly or more frequently at the call of 
the Commission. 

2. The business that the C01mnission may perform shall be conducted at a public meeting 
held in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended. 
Public notice of the date, time, and place of the meeting shall be given in the manner 
required by Public Act 267. A meeting agenda shall be part of the notice and shall include 
a listing of each permit application to be reviewed or considered by the Commission. 

+.,1.At least four (4) members of the Historic Dist1ict Commission shall constitute a quornm 
for the transaction of business, The passage of any resolution, motion, or other action by 
the commission shall be a majority vote. 

½L The Commission shall keep a record of its resolutions, proceedings and actions. A 
wiiting prepared, owned, used, in the possession of, or retained by the Commission in 
the perfonnance of an official function shall be made available to the public in 
compliance with the Freedom oflnfonnation, Public Act 442 of 1976, as amended. 

e-c,i_ The commission shall adopt its own rules of procedure and shall adopt design review 
standards and guidelines to cany out its duties under this act. 

14--1-174-70 DELEGATION OF MINOR CLASSES OF WORK 

The commission may delegate the issuance of Certificates of Appropiiateness for specified minor 
classes of work to its staff, or to another delegated authority. The Co1mnission shall provide to its 
delegated authoiity specific wiitten standards for issuing Ce1iificates of Appropiiateness under 
this subsection. The Cotmnission shall review the Certificates of Appropriateness issued by the 
delegate on at least a quarterly basis to detennine whether or not the delegated responsibilities 
should be continued. 

74-ti74-71 ORDINARY :MAINTENANCE 

Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prevent ordinmy maintenance or repair of a 
resource within a histoiic distJict or to prevent work on any resource under a pennit issued by the 
inspector of buildings or other duly delegated authority before the Ordinance was enacted. 

6 

+- - - i Formatted: Right 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right 0.09", Tab stops: 
1.07", Left + 1.07'', Left 



'74--'7374-72 REVIEW BY THE COMMISSION 

The Commission shall review and act upon only exterior features of a resource and shall not 
review and act upon interior arrangements unless specifically auth01ized to do so by the City 
Council or unless interior work will cause visible change to the exterior of the resource. The 
C01mnission shall not disapprove an application due to considerations not prescribed in 
subsection 399.205 (3) of Public Act 169 of 1970, as amended. 

a) The historic district commission shall approve or disapprove the plans submitted under this 
article and, if approved, shall issue a certificate of approval which is to be signed by the chainnan 
and the relevant plans, if any, shall be stamped by the c01mnission signifying its approval thereof, 
and such certificate and plans shall be transmitted to the building and safety engineering division 
and/or the planning commission if applicable. 

(b) No work shall begin until the certificate of approval is filed, but in the case of rejection, the 
ce1iificate is binding on the building and safety engineering division or other duly delegated 
authority and no pennit shall be issued in such case. If the historic district cmmnission disapproves 
the application, it shall state its reasons for doing so and shall transmit a record of such action, 
together with the reasons therefor, in writing to the building and safety engineering division and the 
applicant. The commission may advise the applicant in a transmittal of the changes in the proposed 
plans which are necessary to obtain cmmnission approval. The applicant may make modifications to 
any plans disapproved and shall have the right to resubmit his application thereafter for cmmnission 
approval. 

( c) After the ce1tificate of approval has been issued and the building pennit, if any, granted to the 
applicant, the designated building inspector shall from time to time inspect the construction, 
alteration, repair, moving or demolition approved by such certificate and shall take action as is 
necessary to force compliance with the plans as approved. 

( d) The failure of the historic district cmmnission to act within 30 days after the date a properly 
completed application has been filed with the planning and community renewal division, unless an 
extension is agreed upon mutually by the applicant and the cmmnission, shall be deemed to 
constitute approval. 

14-1474-73 DESIGN REVIEW STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES 

1. In reviewing plans, the Commission shall follow the U.S. Secretary of Interior's Standards for 
Rehabilitation and guidelines for rehabilitating historic buildings as set forth in 36 C.F.R. part 
67. Design review standards and guidelines that address special design characteristics of 
historic distticts administered by the Commission may be followed if they are equivalent in 
guidance to the Secretary of Interior's Standards and guidelines and are established or 
approved by the State Histmic Preservation Office of the Michigan Historical Center. 

2. In reviewing plans, the Commission shall also consider all of the following: 

A. The historic or architectural value and significance of the resource and its 
relationship to the historic value of the su1TOundingarea. 

B. The relationship of any architectural features of the resource to the rest of the 
resource and to the sutTOunding area. 

C. The general compatibility of the design, arrangement, texture, and materials 
proposed to be used. 

7 

+- - - i Formatted: Right 



D. Other factors, such as aesthetic value, that the commission finds relevant. 
E. Whether the applicant has certified in the application that the property where the 

work will be undertaken has, or will have before the proposed project completion 
date, a fire alann system or a smoke alarm complying with the requirements of 
the Stille-DeRossett-Hale single state construction code act, 1972 PA 230, MCL 
125.1501 to 125.1531. 

'.74--7§74-74 PERMIT APPLICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION, REPAIR, MOVING, 
DEMOLITION AFFECTING EXTERIORAPPERANCE OF HISTORIC SITES, 
STRUCTURES, OR OBJECTS LOCATED WITHIN HISTORICS DISTRICTS 

A pennit shall be obtained before any work affecting the exterior appearance of a 
resource is perfonned within a historic district. The person, individual, partnership, 
firm, corporation, organization, institution, or agency of government proposing to do 
that work shall file an application for a pennit with the inspector of buildings. Upon 
receipt of a complete application, the inspector of buildings shall iimnediately refer the 
application, along with all required suppotiing matetials that make the application 
complete to the commission. A pennit shall not be issued and proposed work shall not 
proceed until the Commission has acted on the application by issuing a Certificate of 
Appropriateness or a Notice to Proceed as prescribed in this Ordinance. A commission 
shall not issue a certificate of appropriateness unless the applicant certifies in the 
application that the propetiy where work will be undertaken has, or will have before the 
proposed project completion date, a fire alann system or a smoke alann complying with 
the requirements of the Stille-DeRossett-Hale single state constrnction code act, 1972 
PA230,MCL 125.1501 to 125.1531. 

3. The Commission shall file Certificates of Appropriateness, Notices to Proceed, and Denials 
of applications for permits with the inspector of buildings. A permit shall not be issued 
until the Commission has acted as prescribed by this Ordinance. 

4. If an application is for work that will adversely affect the extetior of a resource the 
Commission considers valuable to the City of Pontiac, the state of Michigan, or the 
nation, and the Commission detennines that the alteration or loss of that resource will 
adversely affect the public purpose of the city, state, or nation, the Collllnission shall 
attempt to establish with the owner of the resource an economically feasible plan forthe 
preservation of the resource. 

5. The failure of the Co1mnission to act on an application within sixty ( 60) calendar days after 
the date a complete application is filed with the Commission, unless an extension is agreed 
upon in w1iting by the applicant and the Commission, shall be considered to constitute 
approval. 

6. The Commission may charge a reasonable fee to process a pennit application. 

8 

•- - i Formatted: Right 



If a permit application is denied, the decision shall be binding on the inspector or other authmity. 
A Denial shall be accompanied by a w1itten explanation by the Commission of the reasons for 
denial and, if appropriate, a notice that an application may be re-submitted for Commission 
review when the suggested changes have been made. The Denial shall also include the 
notification of the applicant's right to appeal to the State Historic Preservation Review Board and 
to the circuit court. 

~74-76 NOTICE TO PROCEEED 

Work within a historic district shall be permitted through the issuance of a Notice to Proceed by 
the Co1mnission if any of the following conditions prevail and if the proposed work can be 
demonstrated by a finding of the Co1mnission to be necessary to substantially improve or correct 
any of the following conditions: 

A. The resource constitutes a hazard to the safety of the public or to the strncture's 
occupants. 

B. The resource is a deterrent to a major improvement program that will be of substantial 
benefit to the c01mnunity and the applicant proposing the work has obtained all 
necessmy planning and zoning approvals, financing, and enviromnental clearances. 

&._(,_ Retaining the resource will cause undue financial hardship to the owner when a 
govermnental action, an act of God, or other events beyond the owner's control created 
the hardship, and all feasible alternatives to eliminate the financial hardship, which 
may include offering the resource for sale at its fair market value or moving the 
resource to a vacant site within the historic district, have been attempted and exhausted 
by the owner. 

E,12._ Retaining the resource is not in the interest of the majority of the community. 

+4-1874-77 APPEAL OF A COMMISSION DECISION 

I. An applicant aggrieved by a decision of the Co1mnission concerning a pennit application 
may file an appeal with the State Historic Preservation Review Board. The appeal shall 
be filed within sixty (60) calendar days after the decision is furnished to the applicant. 
The appellant may submit all or part of the appellant's evidence and arguments in written 
form. The State Historic Preservation Review Board shall consider an appeal at its first 
regularly scheduled meeting after receiving the appeal. A pennit applicant aggrieved by 
the decision of the State Historic Preservation Review Board may appeal the decision to 
the circuit court having jurisdiction over the histmic distiict commission whose decision 
was appealed to the State Historic Preservation Review Board. 

2. Any citizen or duly organized historic preservation organization in the City of Pontiac,as 
well as resource property owners, jointly or severally aggrieved by a decision of the 
historic district cmmnission may appeal the decision to the circuit comt, except that a 
permit applicant aggrieved by a decision rendered under this Ordinance may not appeal 
to the comt without first exhausting the right to appeal to the State Historic Preservation 
Review Board. 

9 

~ - i Formatted: Right 



-"74-+974-78 WORK WITHOUT A PERMIT 

When work has been done upon a resource without a permit, and the C01mnission finds that the 
work does not qualify for a Ce1iificate of Appropriateness, the C01mnission may require an owner 
to restore the resource to the condition that the resource was in before the inappropriate work or 
to modify the work so that it qualifies for a Ce1iificate of Appropriateness. If the owner does not 
comply with the restoration or modification requirement within a reasonable time, the 
Commission may seek an order from the circuit comt to require the owner to restore the resource 
to its fonner condition or to modify the work so that it qualifies for a Certificate of 
Approp1iateness. If the owner does not comply or cannot comply with the order of the comi, the 
Commission or its agents may enter the prope1iy and conduct work necessary to restore the 
resource to its fonner condition or modify the work so that it qualifies for a Ce1iificate of 
Appropriateness in accordance with the court's order. The costs of the work done shall be charged 
to the owner, and may be levied by the City of Pontiac as a special assessment against the 
property. When acting pursuant to an order of the circuit cou1t, the Co1mnission or its agents may 
enter a property for purposes of this section. 

~74-79 DEMOLITION BY NEGLECT 

Upon a finding by the Co1mnission that a hist01ic resource within a historic distlict or a proposed 
hist01ic distlict subject to its review and approval is threatened with Demolition by Neglect, the 
Commission may do either of the following: 

1. Require the owner of the resource to repair all conditions contlibuting to demolition 
by neglect. 

2. If the owner does not make repairs within a reasonable time, the Commission or its 
agents may enter the property and make such repairs as necessary to prevent 
Demolition by Neglect. The costs of the work shall be charged to the owner, andmay 
be levied by the City of Pontiac as a special assessment against the property. The 
C01mnission or its agents may enter the propeiiy for purposes of this section upon 
obtaining an order from the circuit court. 

10 

~ -i Formatted: Right 



-14-8-174-80 REVIEW OF WORK IN PROPOSED DISTRICTS 

Upon receipt of substantial evidence showing the presence of historic, architectural, 
archaeological, engineering, or cultural significance of a proposed hist01ic district, the City 
Council may, at its discretion, adopt a resolution requiring that all applications for pennits within 
the proposed historic district be referred to the Historic District Commission as prescribed in 
Section 12 of the Ordinance. The Historic District Commission shall review permit applications 
with the same powers that would apply if the proposed historic district was an established liistoric 
district. The review may continue in the proposed historic district for not more than one year, or 
until such time as the City Council approves or rejects the establishment of the hist01ic district by 
ordinance, whichever occurs first. 

~74-81 EMERGENCY.MORATORIUM 

If the City Council detennines that pending work will cause irreparable hann to resources located 
within an established or proposed historic disttict, the City Council may by resolution declare an 
emergency moratorium on all such wok for a pe1iod not to exceed six (6) months. The City 
Council may extend the emergency moratorium for an additional period not to exceed six (6) 
months, upon finding that the threat of irreparable hann to resources is still present. Any pending 
pennit application concerning a resource subject to an emergency moratorium may be summarily 
denied. 

~74-82 PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS 

1. A person, individual, paiinership, finn, corporation, organization, institution, or agency of 
government that violates this act is responsible for a civil violation and may be fined not 
more than $5,000.00. 

2. A person, individual, partnership, finn, corporation, organization, institution, or agency 
of government that violates this act may be ordered by the court to pay the costs to 
restore or replicate a resource unlawfully constrncted, added to, altered, repaired, moved, 
excavated or demolished. 

14--l-74-83 ACQUISITION OF HISTORIC RESOURCES 

If all efforts by the Commission to preserve a resource fail, or if it is determined by the City 
Council that public ownership is most suitable, the City Council, if considered to be the public 
interest, may acquire the resource using public funds, public or private gifts, grants or proceeds 
from the issuance of revenue bonds. The acquisition shall be based upon the recommendation of 
the Commission. The Commission is responsible for maintaining publicly owned resources using 
its own funds, if not specifically designated for other purposes, or public funds committed forthat 
use by the City Council. Upon recommendation of the Commission, the City may sell resources 
acquired under this section with protective easements included in the property transfer documents, 
if appropriate. 

11 

- --i Formatted: Right 



~ --i Formatted: Right 

-74-8374-84 HISTORIC DISTRICT BOUNDARY 

The historic district commission shall designate certain properties located within histotic 
districts as historic sites after due consideration of such property's: 

( a) Quality of significance in American, state and/or city history, architecture, 
archaeology, engineering and culture; 

(b) Integtity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and association; 

( c) Relationship to events that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns 
of our history; 

( d) Association with the lives of persons significant in our past; 

( e) Distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or that 
represent the work of a master, or that possess high miistic values, or that represent 
a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack individual 
distinction; and 

(t) Potential for restoration. 

The following described properties are hereby designated as historic districts: 

(1) Franklin Boulevard Historic District: Lots 12 through 19 and lots 22 through 61 of Assessor's 

Plat No. 41; lots 32 through 42, the north 117.92 feet of lot 43, lot 44 exc. the south 48 feet, and 

lots 57 through 64 of Assessor's Plat No. 112; lots 25 through 31 and lots 37 through 40 of 

Assessor's Plat No. 115; lots 1 through 20 of Assessor's Plat No. 129; lots 1 through 5, the north 

125 feet of lot 6, lot 7 exc. the south 55 feet, lot 8 exc. the east 10 feet of the south 55 feet, lots 9 

and 10 exc. the south 45 feet, and lots 11 through 48 of Forest Lawn Addition; and lots 1 through 8 

of Johnson Addition; City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan, as recorded in the Oakland 

County Records. 

(2) Fairgrove Avenue Historic District: Oakland County Agricultural Society's Addition, lots 3 

through 11, north 95 feet of lot 12, lots 13 through 31, east 45 feet of lot 32, the easterly 47.4 feet 

of lot 99 and lots 100 through 102; Assessor's Plat No. 26, lot 9; Assessor's Plat No. 27, lot 12. 

(3) Modern Housing Corporation Addition Historic District: Modern Housing Corporation Addition, 

lots 130 through 414,613,618 through 622,624 through 634, and 638 through 645. 

(4) Seminole Hills Historic District: Seminole Hills Subdivision, lots 21 through 35, and 37 

through 556; Crofoot's Western Addition, block 4, lots 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 10, 11, 14, 15 and 18; and 

Roberts Subdivision, lots 1 through 36. 

12 



(5) Pontiac Commercial Historic District: Original plat, lots 1 through 5, 17 through 22 excluding 

the north 10.5 feet of lot 22, the north 30 feet of lot 28, lots 36 through 69, the north 30 feet of lot 

77, lots 79 through 95,118,119 and 131 through 141; Assessor's Plat No. 28, lots 14, 21, and 22; 

Assessor's Plat No. 46, lots 1, 2, 3, 48, 49 and 50, excluding the southerly 12 feet of said lots 48 

and 49; Assessor's Plat No. 112, lots 11 through 19; Assessor's Plat No. 113, lots 1 through 8 and 

26 through 30; Assessor's Plat No. 119, lots 79 and 80; and Huron Addition, lots 1 through 5. 

(6) Horatio N. Howard House Historic District: Stockwell and Tregent's Addition, block 1, east 

170 feet of lot 13, exc. south 44 feet. 

(7) Wisner House Historic District: Assessor's Plat No. 4, lot 7 exc. beginning at the northeast 

corner of lot 249, Assessor's Plat No. 140, City of Pontiac, Michigan, thence south 45 degrees 11 

minutes 10 seconds east 181.55 feet; thence north 43 degrees 56 minutes 40 seconds east along 

the northerly line of lot 246, Assessor's Plat No. 140, 20 feet; thence north 45 degrees 11 minutes 

10 seconds west 91. 7 feet; thence north 28 degrees 39 minutes 10 seconds west 52.5 feet; thence 

north 35 degrees 21 minutes 10 seconds west 41 feet to the point of curve to the left, having a 

radius of 23.23 feet a central angle of 100 degrees 30 minutes 50 seconds, thence around the arc 

of curve a distance of 40. 75 feet to the point of tangency of such curve; thence south 44 degrees 

08 minutes west 47.95 feet; thence nmth 88 degrees 20 minutes east along the northerly line of lot 

249, Assessor's Plat No. 140, 40.05 feet to the point of beginning, also exc. a strip of land lying 

northeasterly of a line 60 feet southwesterly of and parallel to the centerline of Oakland Avenue as 

now established for Oakland Avenue widening. 

(8) SI. Vincent DePaul Church Complex Historic District: Assessor's Plat No. 134, lot 50 and the 

north 220 feet of lot 51. 

(9) First United Methodist Church Historic District: Assessor's Plat No. 130, lots 16, 17, 18 and 

also all that part of vacated Judson Street lying adjacent. 

(10) Central School Historic District: Assessor's Plat No. 142, lot 3, exc. that part lying westerly 

of the easterly line of Perimeter Road as now laid out. 

(11) Cook Nelson, American Legion Post No. 20 Historic District: Assessor's Plat No. 136, lots 3 

through 9. 

13 

.._ --i Formatted: Right 



(12) Oakhill Cemetery Historic District: Assessor's Plat No. 19, lots 1 and 2, exc. that part lying 

south of the north line of permanent right-of-way of Pontiac Clinton Drain No. 2; Assessor's Plat 

No. 20, lot 15; and Assessor's Plat No. 145, lots 2, 3, and 4. 

(13) Eastern Michigan Asylum Historic District: Those parts of the south half of Section 19 and 

the north half of Section 30, Township 3 North, Range 10 East, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, 

Michigan, more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the southwest comer of said Section 19; thence south 89 degrees 15 minutes 33 

seconds east 500.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence south O degrees 13 minutes 24 

seconds east, 1200.00 feet; thence south 89 degrees 15 minutes 33 seconds east 1350.00 feet; 

thence south O degrees 13 minutes 24 seconds east500.00 feet; thence south 89 degrees 15 

minutes 33 seconds east 1600.00 feet; thence north 23 degrees 13 minutes 36 seconds east 

924.20 feet; thence north 43 degrees 47 minutes 15 seconds west 2100.00 feet; thence north 47 

degrees 53 minutes 39 seconds east 1000.00 feet to a point on the southwesterly right-of-way 

line of the Grand Trunk Western Railroad, said point lying northwesterly along said railroad right

of-way line 3700.00 feet from the point of intersection of said railroad right-of-way line with 

northerly right-of-way line of Johnson Avenue (99 feet wide); thence north 43 degrees 47 minutes 

15 seconds west 1022.11 feet along said railroad right-of-way line; along a cuNe to the right, 

radius equal to 973.14 feet, arc distance 211.98 feet, long chord bearing south 21 degrees 46 

minutes 23 seconds east 210.77 feet; thence north 79 degrees 46 minutes 59 seconds west 

1531.00 feet; thence south O degrees 00 minutes 14 seconds east 754.13 feet; thence north 86 

degrees 45 minutes 45 seconds west 564.40 feet; thence south O degrees 08 minutes 40 

seconds east 595.43 feet; thence south 19 degrees 40 minutes 35 seconds 148.12 feet; thence 

south 53 degrees 48 minutes 53 seconds east 235.87 feet; thence south O degrees 19 minutes 

40 seconds east 515.69 feet; thence north 89 degrees 15 minutes 33 seconds west 55.42 feet to 

the point of beginning. 

14 

._ - i Formatted: Right 



15 

~ -i Formatted: Right 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.07", First line: O", Space 
Before: 0 pt, Tab stops: Not at 0.57" + 0.57" 

\[ Formatted:Top: 0.94" 



Exhibit B 

The 10th Pontiac Clty Council Rules and Procedures 

All meetings of the city council will be held in compliance with state statutes, including the Open 
Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267 as amended, and with these rules. 

Meeting Times 

The city council meetings will be held every Tuesday of each month beginning at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall 
in the Council Chambers for formal meetings and for Study Session meetings unless otherwise 
rescheduled by resolution of the council. The Tenth Council has decided to implement Study Sessions 
and Formal Meetings. These meeting will alternate week to week. 

Formal Meeting 

During the formal meetings the City Council proceed through the formal agenda and take action on 
agenda items. 

Special meetings 

A special meeting shall be called by the mayor or any two members of council. A 24 hours written notice 
to each member of the council served personally or left at the councilmember's usual place ofresidence is 
required. However, any special meeting at which all council members are present or have given written 
consent shall be a legal meeting for such purposes, without such written notice. Special meeting notices 
shall state the purpose of the meeting. No official action shall be transacted at any special meeting of the 
council unless the item has been stated in the notice of such meeting. 

Posting requirements for regular and special meetings 

a. Within 10 days after the first meeting of the council following the election, a public notice stating 
the dates, times and places of the regular monthly council meetings will be posted at the City 
Clerk's Office and on the City's web page. 

b. For a rescheduled regular or special meeting of the council, a public notice stating the date, time, 
and place of the meeting shall be posted at least 18 hours before the meeting at the City Clerk's 
9ffice and on the City's web site. Special meeting notices shall also state the purpose of the 
meeting. 

c. The notice described above is not required for a meeting of the council in emergency session in 
the event of a severe and imminent threat to the health, safety or welfare of the public when two
thirds of the members of the council determine that delay would be detrimental to the city's 
efforts in responding to the threat. 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 



Minutes of regular and special meetings 

The clerk shall attend the council meetings and record all proceedings and resolutions of the council in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act. In the absence of the clerk, the deputy clerk shall perform the 
clerk's duties. 

At a minimum, the minutes shall indicate the date, place, type (regular or special), and time of meeting; 
the names of all elected city officials present at roll call; the name and time of arrival of any elected 
official not present at roll call; the name and time of departure of any elected official before adjournment; 
the maker and supporter of all motions and resolutions which are voted upon by the council; an indication 
of how each council member present voted on a motion or resolution; the call of the chair as to the 
passage or failure of the motion or resolution; and the time of adjournment. For public comment, only the 
number of individuals speaking need be included in the minutes. For a public hearing, the name of the 
person addressing the council and the topic of the comments. 

A copy of the minutes of each regular or special council meeting shall be available for public inspection 
at the City Clerk's Office dming regular business hours. 

Conduct of meetings 

Meetings to be public 

All regular and special meetings of the council shall be open to the public. Citizens shall have a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard in accordance with such rules and regulations as the council may 
determine, except that the meetings may be closed to the public and the media in accordance with the 
Open Meetings Act. 

All official meetings of the council and its committees shall be open to the public, freely subject to 
recording by radio, television and photographic services at any time, provided that such arrangements do 
not interfere with the orderly conduct of the meetings. 

Agenda preparation 

An agenda for each regular council meeting shall be prepared by the city clerk with the following order of 
business: The agenda will be as follows for the Formal Meetings. 

Formal Meetings 
1. Call to order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States 
4. Roll Call 
5. Authorization to Excuse Members from the Meeting 
6. Amendments to and approval of the agenda 

Motions to amend the agenda are not debatable. 
7. Approval of the Minutes 
8. Subcommittee Report (As needed) 
9. Special Presentation (If any) 

Any presentations with prepared materials must be presented in print to the Council 
members. Specifically any power point presentations must be in printed form and 
distributed to the Council members prior to the beginning of the presentation. 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 



10. Public Hearings (If any) 
11. Recognition of Elected Officials (If any) 
12. Agenda Address (2 Minute Limit) 
13. Agenda Items 
14. Public Comment (3 Minute Limit) 
15. Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments (3 Minute Limit) 
16. Adjournment 

The Agenda will be as follows for Study Session Meetings 

Study Session 
1. Call to order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Authorization to Excuse Members from the Meeting 
4. Approval of the Agenda 
5. Approval of the Minutes 
6. Public Comment 
7. Review of all agenda items 
8. Adjournment 

All items presented to the city council for action shall be placed on the first possible agenda by the city 
clerk. The deadline to submit an item to the clerk to place on the agenda shall be noon on the Thursday 
before a Study Session Meeting. The clerk shall distribute the agenda by email no later than 5:00 p.m. on 
Friday. Complete agenda packets, excluding confidential information, shall be posted on the City's web 
site concurrent with distribution of the agenda packet to the council members. 
Any councilmember shall have the right to add items to the regular agenda before it is approved. 

Agenda distribution 

The clerk is responsible for the agenda distribution, which is emailed to each councilmember forty-eight 
( 48) hours or more prior to each council meeting. In addition, the clerk posts each agenda to the city 
website 48 hours prior to each meeting for public access. Agendas for special meetings shall be 
distributed with the notice of special meeting and posted on the City's website. 

Quorum 

A majority of the entire elected or appointed and sworn members of the council shall constitute a quorum 
for the transaction of business at all council meetings. In the absence of a quorum, a lesser number may 
adjourn any meeting to a later time or date with appropriate public notice. The council may adopt an 
ordinance to prescribe penalties. 

Attendance at council meetings 

Council is empowered by Article III - Legislative Branch, Section 3 .107 of the charter to adjourn a 
meeting if a quorum is not present and compel attendance in a manner prescribed by its ordinance. In the 
event that the member's absences continue for more than five consecutive regular meetings of the council, 
the council may declare the seat vacant in accordance with Section 3 .119 of the charter. 

Role of the Mayor (Charter 4.101 "The Mayor or the Deputy Mayor shall attend all meetings of the 
Council and respond to questions from Council members and Citizens, make reports and present 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 



proposals.'' The Mayor shall not speak on Council agenda items unless the Mayor is asked a question 
on that item. 

Presiding officer 

The presiding officer shall be responsible for enforcing these rules of procedure and for enforcing orderly 
conduct at meetings. The council president is ordinarily the presiding officer. If the Council President is 
absent, The Council President Pro Tern will preside over the meeting. In the absence of both the Council 
President and the Council President Pro Tern at the same meeting, the council member presiding over the 
meeting shall rotate by District, starting with District one. In the event of a resignation or other permanent 
absence, that the position shall be filled by nomination and affirmative vote of the majo1ity of Council 
members serving. 

Disorderly conduct 

The president may call to order any person who is being disorderly by speaking out of order or otherwise 
disrupting the proceedings, failing to be germane, speaking longer than the allotted time or speaking 
vulgarities. Such person shall be seated until the chair determines whether the person is in order. 

Closed meetings 

Purpose 

Closed meetings may be held only for the reasons authorized in the Open Meetings Act, which are the 
following: 

a. To consider the dismissal, suspension, or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges 
brought against a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent when the 
named person requests a closed meeting. 

b. For strategy and negotiation sessions connected with the negotiation of a collective 
bargaining agreement when either negotiating party requests a closed hearing. 

c. To consider the purchase or lease of real property up to the time an option to purchase or 
lease that real property is obtained. 

d. To consult with the municipal attorney or another attorney regarding trial or settlement 
strategy in connection with specific pending litigation, but only when an open meeting 
would have a detrimental financial effect on the litigating or settlement position of the 
council. 

e. To review the specific contents of an application for employment or appointment to a 
public office when a candidate requests that the application remain confidential. 
However, all interviews by a public body for employment or appointment to a public 
office shall be held in an open meeting. 

f. To consider material exempt from discussion or disclosure by state or federal statute. 

Calling closed meetings 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 



At a regular or special meeting, the councilmembers elected or appointed and serving, by a two-thirds roll 
call vote may call a closed session under the conditions outlined in the Open Meetings Act. The roll call 
vote and purpose(s) for calling the closed meeting shall be entered into the minutes of the public part of 
the meeting at which the vote is taken. 

Minutes of closed meetings 

A separate set of minutes shall be taken by the clerk or the designated secretary of the council at the 
closed session. These minutes will be retained by the clerk, shall not be available to the public, and shall 
only be disclosed if required by civil action, as authorized by the Michigan Open Meetings Act. These 
minutes may be destroyed one year and one day after approval of the minutes of the regular meeting at 
which the closed session was approved. 

Discussion and voting 

Rules of parliamentary procedure 

The rules of parliamentary practice, as contained in the most recent edition of Robert's Rules of Order 
Newly Revised, shall govern the council in all cases to which they are applicable, provided they are not in 
conflict with these rules, city ordinances or applicable state statutes. The Parliamentarian shall be a 
Professional Registered Parliamentarian with the National Association of Parliamentarians. The chair 
shall preserve order and decorum and may speak to points of order in preference to other 
councilmembers. If a point of order is given, it should not exceed two (2) minutes. 

Conduct of discussion 

During the council discussion and debate, no councilmember shall speak until recognized for that 
purpose by the chair. After such recognition, the councilmember shall confine discussion to the question 
at hand and to its merits and shall not be interrupted except by a point of order or privilege raised by 
another councilmember. Councilmembers should address their remarks to the chair, maintain a 
courteous tone and avoid inte1j ecting a personal note into debate. 

The Council members may decide by majority vote to limit or determine the time to be devoted to the 
discussion of a pending motion or item for discussion. 

Interruptions of Votes 
Interruptions during the taking of a vote are permitted only before any councilmember has actually 
voted. 

Rule against Explanation by Councilmembers During Voting 
A councilmember has no right to "explain their vote" during voting, which would be the same as 
debate at such a time. 

Changing One's Vote 
A member has a right to change their vote up to the time the result is announced. After that the 
member can make the change only by the unanimous consent of the remaining councilmembers 
present. 

Ordinances and resolutions 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 



A vote on all ordinances and resolutions shall be taken by a roll call vote and entered in the minutes 
unless it is a unanimous vote. If the vote is unanimous, it shall be necessary only to so state in the 
minutes, unless a roll call vote is required by law or by council rules. 

Abstentions 
Except as otherwise specified in the City Charter or in matters relating to a direct financial conflict of 
interest no Councilmember shall abstain from voting on any question. 

Roll Call 

In all roll call votes, the names of the members of the council shall be called in rotating alphabetical 
order. 

Disposition of Ag~nda Items 
When an agenda item has been rejected by a vote of Council vote it may not be returned to the agenda 
unless the Councilmembers request, by majority vote, to give it further consideration. 

Disposition of Agenda Item: An item may be not be returned for at least 30 days and by a 
Councilmembers request, by majority vote to give it fi1rther consideration. 

Citizen participation 

Each regular and special council meeting agenda shall provide reserved time for citizen participation. 
During citizen participation, each individual shall address the City Council in an orderly and dignified 
manner and shall not engage in conduct or language that disrupts, makes fun of, or otherwise impedes the 
orderly conduct of the Council Meeting. In addition, members of the audience shall not engage in 
disorderly or boisterous activity including but not limited to; the utterance of loud, obnoxious, 
threatening, or abusive language, cheering, whistling, clapping, or any other acts that disturb, disrupt, or 
impede, or otherwise interfere with the orderly conduct of the City Council Meeting. 

Agenda Address 

The Council has included in its agenda a time for Agenda Address. Agenda Address will allow the 
audience to comment on agenda items on the agenda of the City Council Meeting. The individuals 
addressing the body will have 2 minutes to complete the Agenda Address. All individuals wishing to 
participate in the Agenda Address will have to fill out an Agenda Address Card, which will be located in 
the City Clerk's Office. The Agenda Address Card shall require the person to identify himself or herself, 
a method of contact, and the subject matter of their comments and such other information the Council 
President may require. The Agenda Address Card has to completed and turned in to the Clerk's Office by 
Tuesday at 4:30 p.m. to be considered for the following council meeting. Individuals who have 
submitted an Agenda Address Card to speak must be present in the City Council Chambers when their 
name is called or they will lose their tum to speak. 

Public Comment 

The Council has included in its agenda a time for Public Comments. The Public Comment portion of the 
agenda will allow individuals to comment on non-agenda items. The individuals addressing the body will 
have 3 minutes to complete public comment. All individuals wishing to participate during public 
comment will have to complete the Public Comment Sign-In Sheet, which will be located in the City 
Council Chambers on a clipboard. 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 



The Public Comment Sign In-Sheet shall require the person to identify himself or herself, a method of 
contact, and the subject matter of their comments and such other information the Council President may 
require. The Public Comment Sign-In Sheet will be picked up before the call of order of the meeting. If 
your name is not on the Public Comment Sign-In Sheet once picked up, you will not be allowed to speak 
during Public Comment. Individuals who have submitted their information on the sign in sheet to speak 
must be present in the City Council Chambers when their name is called or they will lose their tum to 
speak. A person having been called on to speak may not yield their time to another person. 

At the time of Public Comment 011 the agenda, the chair has the flexibility to determine that the time 
should be limited to less than three minutes for each speaker. 

During Public Comment speakers shall not expressly advocate a vote for or against a candidate or 
ballot issue. (Sec. 57 Michigan Campaign Finance Act) 

During Public Comment, council members shall not respond to any speaker. Responses to public 
comments are appropriate during closing comments prior to the adjournment of the meeting. 

City of Pontiac employees cannot give public comments while on the clock and while receiving 
compensation from the City of Pontiac. 

Only individuals signed up for public comment can be provided 3 minutes to speak, 110 add ons. 

Miscellaneous 

Suspension of rules 

The rules of the council may be suspended for a specified portion of a meeting by an affirmative vote of 
two-thirds of the members present except that council actions shall conform to state statutes and to the 
Michigan and United States Constitutions. 

Annual Review of the Rules 
Each January the Councilmembers shall review these Rules and they may be revised by a majority vote 
of the councilmembers. 

Committees 

Standing and special committees of council 

The city shall have the following standing committees: 
Finance/Human Resource Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Finance Director to review 
periodic financial reports; responsible for reviewing the proposed budget. This committee will meet once 
a month or as needed. 

Public Safety Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and representatives of the City's 
police, fire, and emergency medical transport service providers. This committee will meet once a month 
or as needed. 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 



Community Development Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and Community 
Development Director concerning the operations and functions of the Community Development 
Department. This committee will be meeting once a month or as needed. 

Public Works/Parks and Recreation Committee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and Public 
Works Director concerning the operations and functions of the Public Works Department. This committee 
will meet once a month or as needed 

Information Technology Subcommittee: Responsible for meeting with the Mayor and the IT Department 
concerning the operations and function of the IT Department. This committee will be meeting as needed. 

Law and sou, District Court Subcommittee- Responsible for meeting with Judges or Comi Reps 
concerning the operations and functions of the sou, Court. This committee will be meeting as needed. 

Forensic Audit Subcommittee- This committee will meet as needed. 

Real Estate Subcommittee-This committee will meet as needed. 

Cable Subcommittee-This committee will meet as needed. 

Committee members will be appointed by the president. They shall be members of the council. The 
president shall fill any committee vacancies. The committee member shall serve for a term of one year 
and may be re-appointed. Committees shall be comprised of at least three council members and one 
alternate who may attend if a regular member is unable to attend. Committees can discuss policy with 
department heads. Committees cannot make final decisions, but may recommend actions to the Council. 
Committees may determine their own meeting schedule. Committee meetings at which department heads 
will be present shall be scheduled at a time mutually acceptable to both the committee and the department 
head. 

Committees shall present both oral and written reports. The committee shall designate a member to 
prepare the written report for the committee. The written report shall indicate the date and time of the 
committee meeting, all persons present, and the subject matter of discussion with some detail. If a 
committee is making a recommendation to the Council as a body, then at least two of the three members 
of the committee must be noted as being in support of the recommendation. 

Special committees may be established for a specific period of time by the president or by a resolution of 
the council, which specifies the task of the special committee and the date of its dissolution. Special 
committees shall present reports in the same manner as standing committees. 

Only the Pontiac City Council can give Public Service Announcements (PSA 's) in the Council 
Chambers. 

Effective 

Amended 

Amended 

Amended 

April 24, 2018 

November 27, 2018 

December 4, 2018 

December 10, 2019 

The 10th Pontiac City Council Rules and Procedures 





December 12, 2019 Special 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

129th Session of the Tenth Council 

A Special Meeting of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Thursday, 
December 12, 2019 at 12:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Members Present: Carter, Miller, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams and K. Williams. 
Members Absent: Pietila and Waterman. 
Mayor Waterman was absent. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

19-622 Excuse Councilperson Mary Pietila and Patrice Waterman for personal reasons. 
Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Miller, Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

19-623 Approval of the agenda. Moved by Councilperson G. Williams and second by 
Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No:None 
Motion Carried. 

Medical Maribuana Court Hearing Update 

No public comment. 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 12:09 p.m. 

I 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

December 12, 2019 

Phoenix Center A/E-RFP 

The City of Pontiac has partnered with AUCH Construction to issue and evaluate potential 
vendors for the renovation and repairs required under the Consent Agreement between 
the City of Pontiac and Ottawa Towers. An RFP was issued earlier this year. From this 
issuance approximately ten vendors responded with bid/proposals. Bids/proposals were 
publicly opened and read from a representative in the City Clerk's Office. 

A selection committee was formed consisting of a representative from AUCH, DPW and 
Purchasing. The received bids were all reviewed by the selection committee and from this 
evaluation narrowed down to three (3). The three highest scoring bids were offered a 
chance to interview and explain in detail their proposal. A question was provided to the 
three candidates ahead of their interview. Interviews were held on 12/09/19 and 12/10/19 
at AUCH Offices in Pontiac, Michigan. 

After all interviews were completed the selection committee evaluated the interviews 
relative to the proposal and selected one firm to recommend to the Mayor. A 
comprehensive report on this process is being compiled by Purchasing and AUCH and 
should be completed no later than Friday of this week. Once completed and accepted an 
email notifying the remaining parties of the committee's recommendation. 

JVB/dr 



F 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, City Engineer 

December 12, 2019 

Phoenix Center Public/Private Partnership - Lease RFP 

The City has developed and publically advertised an RFP for Leasing, Management or 
Public Private Partnership for the Phoenix Center Facility. Responses to this RFP are due 
on Monday, February 16, 2019 at 2:00 PM in the office of the City Clerk. The responses to 
this RFP will be reviewed by a team consisting of the Department of Public Works, the City 
Attorney, the Administration, the Planning Department and the Finance Department. The 
review is scheduled to take place on Tuesday, December 17th at 11 :00 am. Results of the 
RFP's will be reviewed and discussed with the City Council as soon as a complete and 
thorough review has taken place. 

To review, the City is requesting options in lieu of bonding for the required repairs to the 
facility. Other options are to lease the structure, obtain a management agreement with a 
private company, or enter into a public-private partnership for the future operations, 
maintenance and development of the facility and surrounding area. 

Attached for your reference is a copy of the RFP that has been advertised and posted. 

JVB 

attachments 



Financial Services - Purchasing Division 

NOTICE 

Thank you for your inquiry regarding the City of Pontiac project listed below: 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR THE LEASING, MANAGEMENT, OR PUBLIC PRIVATE 

PARTNERSHIP 

OFTHE 

PHOENIX CENTER FACILITY 

If your firm plans to bid on this project, please send an e-mail response to 
JMassey@pontiac.mi.us with the following information: 

Firm Name: -------------
Project Name: ___________ _ 

Firm's Contact Person: ---------
Telephone Number: ________ _ 

Fax Number: -------------
E -Mai I Address: ------------
Post a I Address: ------------

The City of Pontiac Purchasing Division will use this information to 
communicate with you in the event an addendum or change to this project 
is issued. If you do not send this information to the City of Pontiac, you will 
not receive any follow-up notification of any changes to the project. 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 

Pontiac, MI 48342 



Financial Services - Purchasing Division 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

The City of Pontiac will open sealed bids on Monday, December 15th 2019 at 2:00 pm prevailing local time 

in the City Hall Lion's Den Conference Room at 47450 Woodward Ave for: 

LEASING, MANAGEMENT, OR PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP 

OF THE PHOENIX CENTER FACILITY 

You are invited to submit a bid for this project. Sealed bids may be mailed or delivered to the CITY OF 
PONTIAC, CITY CLERI<, 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 by 2:00 pm December 15th 2019. 
Envelopes should include the name and mailing address of the vendor on the outside and be plainly 
marked: 

Sealed bid: leasing, Management, or Public Private Partnership of The Phoenix 
Center Facility 

For Opening: Monday, December 16th 2019 at 2:00 pm 

No proposal submitted may be withdrawn for at least ninety {90) days after the actual opening of the 
proposal. 

General specifications, description and conditions upon which the bid proposal is to be based are available 
at the City of Pontiac website: 

Purchasing: http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/finance/purchasing.php 

Please refer to the website for any addenda that may be issued. Bidders who submit bids before the 
deadline are advised to continue to monitor the website for any addenda that may be issued. Bid 
packages will also be mailed upon request. 

The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, to waive any irregularities, and further reserves the 
right to accept any bid or parts of bids that it deems to best serve the interest of the City. 

If you have any questions regarding this RFP, please contact the Purchasing Agent at (248) 758-3120. 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 

Pontiac, MI 48342 



1. INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

1.1 Bids to be Received 

Sealed bids for the Parking Lot Services will be received at the Office of the City Clerk of the City 
of Pontiac, Michigan until 2:00 pm December 16th 2019, and immediately thereafter will be 
publicly opened and read. 

Each bid must be submitted in a sealed envelope and addressed to the City Clerk of the City of 
Pontiac. Each sealed envelope containing a bid must be plainly marked on the outside as 

"leasing, Management, or Private Public Partnership of The Phoenix Center 
Facility", and the envelope should bear on the outside the name of the bidder, his address, 
and the name of the project for which the bid is submitted. If forwarded by mail, the sealed 
envelope containing the bid must be enclosed in another envelope addressed to the City Clerk, 
City of Pontiac, 47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Ml 48342. 

Bids will be received during regular business hours at the place and up to the time stated in the 
Advertisement. Any extension in time will be by official notification. Bids may be delivered in 
person or mailed, but their delivery is the bidder's entire responsibility. Any bid received after 
the stated hour, even through the mail, will be returned unopened to the bidder. 

1.2 Examination of Bid Documents 

Before submitting a proposal, bidders shall carefully examine the specifications and shall fully 
inform themselves as to all existing conditions and limitations and shall indicate in the proposal 
the sum to cover the cost of all items included on the bid form. 

1.3 Withdrawal of Bids 

Any bidder may withdraw his proposal, in writing, at any time prior to the scheduled closing 
time for receipt of proposals. No bidder may withdraw a bid within ninety (90) days after the 
actual date of the opening thereof. Should there be a reason why a contract cannot be 
awarded within the specified period; the time may be extended by mutual agreement between 
the City of Pontiac, herein after also referred to as the City, and the bidder. 

1.4 Bid Form 

Each bid shall be made on the form provided, and shall be submitted in a sealed envelope 
bearing the title of work and the name of the bidder, and shall be signed by an individual 
authorized to execute the proposal on behalf of the bidder. Alternate written proposals will 
not be accepted. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



1.5 Selection Process 

A. Schedule 

Given the scope and complexity of this RFP, the City intends to use the following process to 

request, receive, and evaluate Proposals and select a Proposer: 

Process Proposed Timeline 

Proposer's Questions Due to City December ..1., 2019 afS:00pm ET 

Responses to Proposer's Questions Posted December~ 2019 at 5:00pm ET 

PROPOSALS DUE December 1§_, 2019 at 2:00pm ET 

Selection Committee Screening of Proposals Weeks of December 23 and _J_Q, 2019 

Notification of Short-Listed Proposers January -1., 2019 

Pre-Registration Deadline for Mandatory Tour January _JL 2020 

Mandatory Tour January --12.., 2020 

In-Person Interviews January 16th-17th , 2020 

Sealed BAFO Due January n__,_ 2020 

BAFO Evaluation January 24, 2020 

Letter of Intent Executed with Selected Proposer To be Determined 

City Council Approval To be Determined 

B. Proposer's Questions 

At or before 5:00 pm ET on December 2, 2019, Proposers may submit written requests of 

clarification of this RFP and/or questions to the City by utilizing the form provided in 

Appendix 4 of this RFP and submit the completed form via email to 

[JMassey@pontiac.mi.us]. Written responses to properly submitted, relevant requests for 

clarification and questions from Proposers will be posted by the City on the City's website or 

Bid Net by 5:00 pm ET on December 9, 2019. Solicitation of information or contact with any 

City elected official, appointee, board member, employee, or agent of the City, or other 

associated personnel concerning this RFP other than through the designated form and 

process described herein is prohibited and may result in disqualification of the Proposer 

and its proposal. 

C. Selection Process 

The selection of the Proposer will involve a three-part selection process: 

1. Round I I Request For Proposals 

Proposers must submit Proposals meeting the RFP requirements, which will be evaluated 

and scored by the Selection Committee. The highest scoring Proposers, the number of 

which is at the City's discretion, may be short-listed for further evaluation which will include 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



a mandatory tour of the Phoenix Center (see Section II. C. 2.), an in-person interview with 

the Selection Committee, and the submission of a Best and Final Offer {BAFO). 

2. Round II I Mandatory Tour and In-Person Interview 

A short-listed Proposer will be invited to attend a mandatory tour of the Phoenix Center to 

be held on January 15, 2020. Each Proposer member wishing to attend the mandatory tour 

must pre-register by completing the Registration and Release of Liability Form as provided 

in Appendix 5 of this RFP and submit the completed form via email to 

[JMassey@pontiac.mi.us] on or before January 8, 2020. Each copy of the Registration and 

Release of Liability Form can accommodate the signature of one person. Proposer team 

members who do not pre-register will not be allowed to attend the tour. 

Pre-registered Proposer members will first meet and check-in for the mandatory tour at the 

Phoenix Center located at 47251 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342 on the date and 

time provided in the invitation. The City will provide a guided tour of the Phoenix Center. 

The tour is expected to last two (2) hour. At least one member of the Proposer's team 

must attend the tour. All attendees must pre-register and attend the mandatory tour or 

their Proposal may be disqualified. 

The short-listed Proposers may also be invited to an in-person interview with the Selection 

Committee. An invitation letter will be sent via email with the date, time, and location of 

the interview. The invitation to interview will include a list of questions to be addressed in 

order at the interview and the form to submit the BAFO. The interview will .last for 90 

minutes and consist of 60 minutes for presentation and 30 minutes for questions and 

answers. The Selection Committee will rank the short-listed Proposer's interviews. 

At the beginning of the in-person interview, the short-listed Proposer shall submit their 

completed BAFO in a sealed envelope to the Selection Committee. 

3. Round Ill I Evaluation of BAFO 

At a later date, after all short-listed Proposers have concluded their interviews and 

submitted their sealed BAFOs, the Selection Committee will open, evaluate, and analyze the 

BAFOs. If necessary, the Selection Committee may ask a short-listed Proposer to clarify its 

BAFO. 

4. Letter of Intent 

The City intends to execute a Letter of Intent with the selected Proposer. Should the City be 

unable to successfully negotiate a lease, management agreement or a public private 

partnership agreement with the selected Proposer, it reserves the right to cancel the 

selection and negotiate with the next Proposer. The City also reserves the right to cancel 

this RFP at any time and reject any and all Proposals at its sole discretion. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



1.6 Bid Bond 

A bid bond is not required. 

1.7 Pre-Bid Meeting 

A Pre-Bid Meeting is not required. 

2. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

2.1 Laws and Municipal Ordinances, Permits 

The Bidder shall be fully informed of all laws and municipal ordinances and regulations in any 
manner affecting those engaged or employed in the work, or equipment and materials used in 
the work, and all others and any decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or 
authority over the same. The Bidder shall at all items observe and comply with all such existing 
laws, codes, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees. In particular, all work shall be in 
compliance with the laws of the State of Michigan, City ordinances, as well as all other bodies 
having jurisdictional authority. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining and paying for any and all permits that may be 
required for this project and shall be responsible for arranging all required inspections if 
needed. 

2.2 Non-Discrimination 

The Bidder agrees to comply with the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; the Federal 
Civil Rights Act of 1991 as amended; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended; 
the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, Article 2, Act no. 453, Public Act of 1976 as amended; the 
Michigan Handicapper's Civil Rights Act, Article 2, Act. No. 220, Public Act of 1976, as amended 
and all other applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. Specifically, Bidders and 
subcontractors are required not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment with respect to such person's hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of 
employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of such 
person's height, weight, race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, sex or 
disability, as defined by law. Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of 
the contract. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Patinership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



2.3 Indemnification 

To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, the Bidder shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the City and its officers, directors, employees, agents, and consultants from and 
against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges 
of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of, or resulting from the performance of the 
work or from the failure to comply with any covenant or term of the contract, provided that 
any such claim, cost, loss, or damage: (i) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or 
death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself), including 
the loss of use resulting there from; or, (ii) is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission 
of the Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or indirectly 
employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the work or anyone for whose acts any 
of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not caused in part by any act or omission of a 
person or entity indemnified hereunder or whether liability is imposed upon such indemnified 
party by laws and regulations regardless of the negligence of any such person or entity. 

In any and all claims against the City or any consultants, agents, officers, directors, or 
employees of the City by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such 
employee) of the Bidder, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or 
indirectly employed by any of them to perform or furnish any of the Work, or anyone for whose 
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation above shall not be limited in any 
way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by 
or for the Bidder or any such subcontractor, supplier or other person or organization under 
workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts. 

Insurance coverage required of the Bidder constitutes the minimum requirements and those 
requirements shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Bidder under the terms of the 
contract. The Bidder shall procure and maintain at Bidder's own cost and expense any 
additional claims or amounts of insurance that, in the judgment of the City, may be necessary 
for Bidder's proper protection in the prosecution of the work. 

2.4 Jurisdictional Authority 

This contract shall be governed by and construed according to the laws of the State of Michigan 
and the successful Bidder consents to the jurisdiction and venue of the courts in Oakland 
County, Michigan and of the United States District Court for the Eastern District, Southern 
Division. 

2.5 Severability 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



The successful Bidder will agree that the Contract is the completed and exclusive statement of 
the Contract between the parties. A judicial or administrative declaration on the invalidity of 
any one or more of the provisions of the Contract shall not invalidate the remaining provisions 
of this agreement. 

2.6 Income Taxes 

Contractor agrees to contact City of Pontiac Income Tax Division, Audit and Compliance Section, 
47450 Woodward, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342, telephone (248) 758-3236, to establish reporting 
and withholding obligations under the City of Pontiac income tax ordinance. Contractor will 
require the same of all subcontractors employing labor under this contract. 

Contractor is required to withhold City of Pontiac income tax from wages paid to: 
(1)Pontiac resident employees regardless of where they work for the employer; and 
(2) Nonresident employees for work performed in the City. 

Contractor is also required to file Pontiac income tax returns and to report and pay income tax 
on the net profits earned by the contractor in the City of Pontiac. 

2.7 Compensation and Payment 

All invoices submitted against the contract must identify the work performed in detail. Items 
not properly invoiced will not be paid. It is the vendor's responsibility to ensure delivery of 
invoice(s) to the City. Invoices must meet the following conditions for payment: 

a. Price on invoice must correspond to the pricing listed on purchase order and/or contract. 
b. Contractor must submit price lists in accordance with bid requirements. 
c. All invoices will be original. 
d. Invoices will prominently display the requisition or purchase order number, if applicable. 
e. Invoice will be signed by the City of Pontiac individual responsible for the contract 
authorizing payment. 

Original invoice must be submitted to the City of Pontiac, Attn: Accounts Payable. 

Payment Terms - Net 30 

2.8 General Conditions 

It is the responsibility of the Bidder to review General Conditions as specified. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Pa1inership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



In the quotation, a distinction between dollars and cents must be made. Also, illegible bids may 
be grounds for rejection of your bid. White out may be grounds for rejection. 
All changes made to the bid form altering price, terms, quotes, and/or conditions MUST be 
crossed out and initialed. Failure to initial any changes may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

All funds must be quoted in US dollars 

2.9 Quotations/Proposals 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

Proposals must be submitted utilizing the following format requirements and process: 

A. Submission 

In responding to this RFP, Proposers must submit the following: 

• Five (5) printed originally signed copies of the Proposal 

• One (1) electronic PDF copy of the Proposal on a flash drive 

Proposals may be disqualified if the printed and electronic copies are not simultaneously 

submitted by the Due Date and/or if the contents of the Proposals are not the same. 

PROPOSALS ARE DUE BY 2:00 PM ET ON December li, 2019 (Due Date). 

Proposals received after the Due Date will not be accepted or will be marked late, unopened, 

and returned to sender. Copies of the Proposals shall sealed in an envelope/box containing the 

Proposals and flash drive and clearly labeled "Request for Proposals - Phoenix Center" and 

delivered to the following address: 

B. Format 

City of Pontiac 

Department of Purchasing 

47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Proposals should be spiral bound, printed on single-sided 8.5"x11" paper, either portrait or 

landscape, with a minimum of one-inch margins and a font size of 11-points. For legibility 

purposes, site plans, schedules, or other relevant proposal documents may be printed on 

11"x17" paper folded to be equivalent to 8.5"x11" paper. 

C. Criteria 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Proposals will be evaluated on the following criteria: 1) Team; 2) Relevant Experience, 

Certification, and Past Performance; 3) Financial Capabilities; 4) Concept and Design, and; 

5) Implementation Strategy, Budget, and Schedule. 

The Selection Committee will compile the results of the short-listed Proposers' three scored 

components: 1) Proposal (weighted 20% of total score); 2) Interview (weighted 30% of total 

score) and; 3) BAFO (weighted 50% of total score). 

D. Content of the Proposal 

Proposals must include the following information: 

1. Introduction Letter (2 page maximum, excluded from page limit) 

The introduction letter should identify each firm included in the Proposer Team, 

affirmatively commit each firm of the Proposer Team to complete the Project Component 

the Proposer Team desires to complete. The introduction letter must be signed by an 

authorized officer of each firm of the Proposer Team. 

The Proposal should contain responses to the following categories: 

2. Proposer Information 

Please provide the following information for each firm included in the Proposer Team: 

a. Company Information 

i. Firm Name 

ii. Contact Person 

iii. Business Address (no P.O. boxes) 

iv. Phone Number 

v. Email Address 

vi. Website (if applicable) 

vii. Type of Business Organization (Corporation, LLC, etc.) 

viii. Number of Years in Business 

ix. Roles and Responsibilities for the Project Component(s) 

x. Identify if the Firm is a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) or 

Disabled Veteran-Owned Business (DVB) 

b. Resumes 

i. Please provide the names, resumes, and roles/responsibilities of all 

individuals who will serve as the key day-to-day contacts for the 

Project Component(s) 

c. Workload and Capacity 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



i. Please identify each firm's current commitments and anticipated 

new engagements throughout the duration of the Project 

Component 

ii. Please identify how potential overlap and capacity issues would be 

addressed to ensure a successful Project Component for the City 

d. Minority Business Enterprise and Disabled Veteran-Owned Business 

(MBE/DVB) Participation 

i. Please describe the Proposer Team's goals and action plan to 

encourage MBE/DVB participation on a Project Component 

3. Relevant Experience, Certification, and Past Performance 

a. Demonstration of Experience with All Components of this Project 

i. Please identify at least three (3) similar or relevant projects, either 

completed previously or currently under engagement by at least one 

member firm of the Proposer Team, that includes a parking structure 

and or amphitheater and matches at least one of the Project 

Components: 1) Lease; 2) Management Agreement, and/or; 3) Public 

Private Partnership (P3), if the Proposal includes such aspect. 

ii. For each of the projects listed in 3. a. i. above: 

1. Describe the Proposer Team's roles and responsibilities, and; 

2. Provide an end-user reference (name, title, 

company/municipality, telephone number, and email address) 

4. Financial Capabilities and Other Required Documents 

Proposals must address the Team's financial capability or provide a viable alternative to 

meet the City's obligations under the Agreement and to complete the Project 

Components by demonstrating: 

a. Recent experience securing financing for project(s) of similar size and 

complexity, specifically; satisfactory evidence of having obtained 

financing for project(s) with a total cost of $20 million or more in the last 

five (5) years 

b. Letter(s) of interest from potential lenders 

c. Ability to obtain sufficient bonding capacity and insurance for the Project 

Component 

d. Balance sheet and evidence of cash and/or cash equivalents (e.g. working 

capital) sufficient to implement the Project Component 

e. Attestation that no member firm of the Proposer Team has filed for 

bankruptcy in the last ten (10) years or is currently in bankruptcy 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



f. List and explanation of any litigations arising from similar projects within 

the last 10 years. 

5. Concept and Utilization of the Phoenix Center Facility 

Proposals must include an overall master plan Phoenix Center Facility that incorporates 

its highest and best use and maximizes value to the City. This master plan should 

describe: 

a. Use mix that maximizes value to the City and is economically viable; 

b. Parking and Transit Oriented Features that meet City needs and provide 

value; 

c. Community Connectivity, 

d. Sustainable Utilization, 

e. How the new facility fits into the surrounding area and community, and 

f. How the Phoenix Center Facility compliments other municipal or 

commercial services. 

6. Implementation Strategy, Budget, and Schedule 

Proposals must outline the Proposer's strategy and method to implement the Project 

including: 

a. Project Component Phasing, Construction Schedule, and 

Occupancy /Utilization; 

b. Project Budget, Proforma, and Cash Flow Projections; 

c. Estimates of the Overall Economic Impact of this Project, and; 

d. Current Zoning, Path for Public Approvals, and Community Outreach Plan. 

2.10 Minor Deviations 

Specifications referred to herein are used to indicate desired type, and/or construction, and/or 
operation or services rendered. Other products and/or services may be offered if deviations 
from specifications are minor and if all deviations are properly outlined and stated in the bid 
document. Failure to outline all deviations may be grounds for rejection of your bid. 

The decision of the City of Pontiac, acting through the Purchasing Agent, shall be final as to 
what constitutes acceptable deviations from specifications. 

2.11 Bonds and Insurance 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Pminership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Receipt of bonds and/or insurance is part of the process of determining which bidder may be 
recommended for award to the City Administrator. If cause is found to change the 
recommendation that your company be awarded the contract, or if the City Administrator 
does not approve the recommendation, the City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by you 
in the bid process, including the cost of acquiring bonds and/or insurance. 

The contractor, and any and all of their subcontractors, shall not commence work under this 
contract until they have obtained the insurance required under this paragraph. All coverage 
shall be with insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 
Michigan. All coverages shall be with insurance carriers acceptable to City of Pontiac. The 
limits required below do not limit the liability of the Contractor. All deductibles and SI Rs are 
the responsibility of the Contractor. 

Workers' Compensation Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life 
of this contract, Workers' Compensation Insurance, including Employers' Liability Coverage, in 
accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan. 

Commercial General Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain said 
insurance during the life of this contract, for: Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $ 10,000,000 per occurrence and 
aggregate. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) 
Products and Completed Operations; (C} Independent Contractors Coverage; (D} Broad Form 
General Liability Extensions or equivalent, if not already included. 

Motor Vehicle Liability: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this 
contract Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including Michigan No-Fault Coverages, with limits 
of liability not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury, and 
Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all 
hired vehicles. 

Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability, as described 
above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be Additional Insureds: The 
City of Pontiac, all elected and appointed officials, all employees and volunteers, all boards, 
commissions, and/or authorities and board members, including employees and volunteers 
thereof. It is understood and agreed by naming the City of Pontiac as additional insured, 
coverage afforded is considered to be primary and any other insurance the City of Pontiac may 
have in effect shall be considered secondary and/or excess. 

Cancellation Notice: Workers' Compensation Insurance, Commercial General Liability 
Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, as described above, shall be endorsed to state 
the following: "It is understood and agreed Thirty (30} days, Ten (10} days for non-payment of 
premium, Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction, and/or Material 
Change shall be sent to: Risk Manager, City of Pontiac, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 
48342. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Paiinership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City of Pontiac at the time the 
contracts are returned by for execution, certificates and policies as listed below: 

a. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers' Compensation Insurance; 

b. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability Insurance; 

c. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability Insurance; 

d. If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above will be furnished. 

If any of the above coverages expire during the term of this contract, the Contractor shall 
deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to City of Pontiac at least ten (10) days prior to the 
expiration date. 

2.12 Performance Bond 

No performance bond shall be required. 

2.13 Payment Bond 

No payment bond shall be required. 

2.14 Maintenance and Guarantee Bond 

No maintenance and guarantee bond shall be required. 

2.15 Subcontracting 

The City of Pontiac will not allow subcontracting for this agreement. All persons working on this 
project shall be employees of the Bidder as defined by law. 

3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

3.1 BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW 

On November 1, 2018, the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the "City") 

was party to certain lawsuits in the Oakland County Circuit Court (case nos. 2012-130331-CH 

and 2014-139761-CH and entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release (the "Agreement") 

by and among Ottawa Tower II, LLC and North Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust (the 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



"Plaintiff") and the City, Louis Schimmel, former Emergency Manager of the City, Oakland 

County, and Oakland County Building Authority (the "Defendants"). The terms of the 

Agreement require the City to make certain improvements to the Phoenix Center consisting of 

a parking garage, amphitheater, and plaza (the "Phoenix Center"). The Signature Copy of the 

Agreement is included at Appendix 1 of this Request for. 

Pursuant to the following resolutions duly adopted by the City Council of the City on 

September 10, 2019, the Mayor of the City is authorized to issue a Request for Proposals to 

invite qualified parties to submit proposals to: 

1. Lease the Phoenix Center; see Resolution 19-467 in Appendix 2.1 or on the City's 

website [click here); 

2. Manage the Phoenix Center; see Resolution 19-468 in Appendix 2.2 or on the City's 

website [click here); or 

3. Enter into a Public Private Partnership for the Phoenix Center; see Resolution 19-469 in 

Appendix 2.3 or on the City's website [click here). 

The following Request for Proposals (RFP) is being issued by the City through its Department of 

Purchasing for potential qualified development teams, joint ventures, or parties (a "Proposer") 

to: 

1. Lease the Phoenix Center; 

2. Manage the Phoenix Center; or 

3. Enter into a Public Private Partnership for the Phoenix Center. 

A Proposer may submit a proposal for one or all of the above requests. 

The City is seeking cost-effective Proposals that detail the Proposer's: qualifications; relevant 

and proven experience with parking and or entertainment facilities; financial capability; design, 

construction, and development approach; and implementation strategy that meets or exceeds 

the City's requirements as outlined in this RFP. The selected Proposer must: 

11 Understand the City's obligations under the Agreement 

11 Understand the principles and goals identified in this RFP 

• Assign a team of professionals with demonstrated experience of working together 

• Possess the capacity to manage a parking garage and or an amphitheater 

11 Add/maximize value in the management, design, development, construction, and or 

delivery of a high-quality amphitheater and parking garage 

• Possess the capacity to secure the required financing, if necessary, to comply, at a 

minimum, with the obligations described in the Agreement 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



A. Scope 

The existing Phoenix Center located in the downtown business district of the City of Pontiac 

consists of a parking structure having 2,250 parking spaces in 874,000 square feet and an 

amphitheater located atop the parking structure consists of a stage, seating for 1,000, and 

concession stands in 292,000 square feet. The Phoenix Center is owned by the City but has 

been closed since 2011. 

With the execution of the Agreement and the adoption of the resolutions by City Council, 

the City would like to maximize the utilization and positive net revenue generation of the 

Phoenix Center by soliciting proposals for the leasing, management, and or entering into a 

public private partnership with a Proposer. Accordingly, the City intends to evaluate 

proposals received from qualified Proposers that meet the needs and expectations outlined 

in this RFP. 

B. Project Status 

Since the Phoenix Center has been shuttered since 2011, the City commissioned a facility 

assessment of the existing Phoenix Center Parking Deck and Rooftop Amphitheater, for the 

purpose of evaluating and identifying items which require renewal, repair, upgrades or 

replacement. Field survey work was conducted on August 7, 2018, August 21, 2018 and 

August 24, 2018 by Integrated Design Solutions, LLC (IDS). The facility was surveyed with the 

assistance of City personnel. 

The Facility Condition Assessment dated September 2018 and revised October 8, 2018 (the 

"FCA") compiled a list of all deficient structural, architectural, mechanical and electrical 

items that, in IDS's professional opinion, would require replacement, enhancement and/or 

repair in order to meet the goals of preserving and improving the assets of the Phoenix 

Center. Itemized deficiencies listed in the table below are not meant to change the facility 

layouts or functions. Furthermore, IDS did not perform any forensic evaluations or 

destructive testing. A copy of the FCA is in Appendix 3. 

Cost Summary of Phoenix Center Facility Condition Assessment (October 8, 2018) 

Category Parking Deck Amphitheater Total Cost 

Structural $1,728,837 $0 $1,728,837 

Architectural $2,992,894 $426,981 $3,419,875 

Mechanical $1,506,845 $465,185 $1,972,030 

Electrical $3,939,512 $565,800 $4,505,312 

Soft Cost (includes Contingency) $4,448,697 $510,288 $4,958,985 

Total Project Cost $14,616,785 $1,968,254 $16,585,039 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Project Components 

Proposals in response to this RFP must address how it will deliver at least one of the following 

Project Components: 

1. Lease the Phoenix Center Facility 

The City would receive a Proposal from a Proposer to lease the Phoenix Center Facility for an initial 

period and renewal periods as mutually agreed to between the City and the Proposer on a triple net 

basis which provides the City with the maximum, positive revenue on an annual basis. The lessee 

. would be responsible or provide a viable alternative to perform the City's obligations under the 

Agreement and facilitate any other operations and improvements to make the Phoenix Center 

functional. 

2. Manage the Phoenix Center Facility 

The City would receive a Proposal from a Proposer to manage the Phoenix Center Facility for an 

initial period and renewal periods as mutually agreed to between the City and the Proposer for the 

parking structure and or the amphitheater on a triple net basis which provides the City with the 

maximum, positive revenue on an annual basis. The Proposer would be responsible or provide a 

viable alternative to perform the City's obligations under the Agreement and facilitate any other 

operations and improvements to make the Phoenix Center functional. 

3. Public Private Partnership (P3) 

3.2 

The City would receive a Proposal from a Proposer to enter into a Public Private Partnership for the 

Phoenix Center Facility which provides the City with the maximum, positive revenue on an annual 

basis. The Proposer would be responsible or provide a viable alternative to perform the City's 

obligations under the Agreement and facilitate any other improvements to make the Phoenix Center 

functional. 

TERM OF CONTRACT 

The length of contract shall be proposed by the contractor with an explanation of the 
basis of proposal. City hall shall have the option to extend the contract at its discretion, subject to 
mutual agreement in writing by the parties. 

3.3 NON-ASSIGNMENT OR TRANSFER 

The service provided for under the Contract shall not be sub-contracted, assigned or 
transferred by the Contractor without prior written consent of the City. 

3.4 CITY RULES 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Employees of Contractor shall comply with all instructions, and building regulations issued 
by representative of the City of Pontiac. 

3.5 PROGRESS PAYMENTS/RETAINAGE 

This contract is not subject to progress payments or 

retainage. 

4. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS AND RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

4.1 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

1. Procuring and Contracting Agency 

The City's Department of Purchasing is the authorized agent for this Project. The City 

Council will authorize the final selection made for the Project. All negotiations relative to 

this Project may only be conducted with the City's designated contact. 

2. Lease, Management, or Public Private Partnership Agreement 

To facilitate the maximum, annual, net positive revenue to the City, the Proposer should 

address and show how the Proposal meets or exceeds each of the following characteristics, 

if applicable, which are critical in the evaluation and award process. Notwithstanding, the 

City reserves the right to change the legal mechanism used to execute an agreement to 

deliver this Project. 

a. Lease Rate: The lease rate shall be quoted as a triple net (NNN) rate 

based upon a 20-year lease period with two (2), 5-year renewal options. 

The proposed rental rate should not include general operating expenses 

including, but not limited to, utilities, common area maintenance and 

repairs, grounds maintenance and repairs, property taxes, etc. 

b. Capital Expenditures: Lessee will be responsible for all capital 

expenditures and maintaining a capital reserve fund. 

3. Prevailing Wage 

The Proposer shall comply with prevailing wage requirements, if applicable. 

4. Minority Business Enterprise and Disabled Veteran-Owned Business 

(MBE/DVB) Participation 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) and Disabled Veteran Owned Businesses (DVB) are 

encouraged to respond to this RFP. Provide MBE or DVB certification as an appendix to your 

proposal. 

4.2 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

The City reserves the right, in its sole and absolute discretion and as it may deem necessary, 

appropriate, or beneficial to the City with respect to the RFP, to: 

,. Cancel, withdraw, or modify the RFP 

,. Modify or issue clarifications to the RFP prior to the Proposal Due Date; in the 

event the RFP is modified it will be posted on the City's website or Bid Net and all 

Proposers will be provided a chance to revise their Proposals 

,. Request submission of additional information from some or all Proposers 

following its review of one or more Proposals 

11 Waive any irregularity or defect in any submission 

11 Reject any Proposals it deems incomplete or unresponsive to the RFP 

requirements 

11 Reject all Proposals that are submitted 

'" Reissue the original RFP, issue a modified RFP, or issue a new RFP, whether any 

Proposals have been received in response to the initial RFP. 

1. Site Conditions 

The Phoenix Center facility is "as-is" condition, without representation or warranty as to 

physical or environmental condition of the land or any existing structure. 

The City makes no representations regarding the character or extent of soil or subsurface 

conditions or the conditions and existence of utilities that may be encountered during the 

course of any work, re-development, or construction of the property. 

2. Predevelopment and Development Costs 

The City is not liable for any costs incurred by a Proposer in replying to this RFP. 

In addition, Proposers should be aware of the following: 

a. Proposers should draw independent conclusions concerning conditions that may 

affect the methods or cost of development or management of the Phoenix Center; 

b. Proposer shall be solely responsible for all pre-development (including demolition of 

existing improvements and due diligence studies such as traffic, geotechnical, storm 

water management, and other site preparations) and development costs associated 

with the Project; 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



c. Proposer shall be solely responsible for all costs related to obtaining necessary 

permits, approvals, clearances, and licenses at the appropriate time, and; 

d. All equity and self-funded project pre-development money expended by a Proposer 

is at the sole risk of the Proposer. The City shall under no circumstances be 

responsible to reimburse same, whether pre- or post-selection. 

3. Change in Proposer's Information 

If there are any changes to any of Proposer's team members or new financial information, 

the Proposer must notify the City in writing and provide updated information in the same 

format as prescribed in the RFP for the appropriate section of the Proposal. The City 

reserves the right to evaluate the modified Proposal, eliminate the Proposer from further 

consideration, or take other action as City may deem appropriate. 

4. Ownership and Use of Proposal 

Once submitted, all Proposals shall be the property of the City. The City may use any and all 

ideas and materials included in any Proposal, whether the Proposal is selected or rejected. 

5. Communications with Media, Government Agencies, and Community 

The Proposers shall not initiate or pursue any discussions or communications with the 

media, government agencies, and/or the community relating to the Project without first 

coordinating with and receiving the approval of the City. 

6. Selection Non-Binding 

The City's selection of a Proposer indicates only its intent to negotiate with the selected 

Proposer, and the selection does not constitute a commitment by the City to execute a final 

agreement or contract with that Proposer. Proposers therefore agree and acknowledge that 

they are barred from claiming to have detrimentally relied on any action by the City, or its 

contractor, representative, or employee's actions for any costs or liabilities incurred as a 

result of responding to this RFP. 

7. Freedom of Information 

All information in a Proposer's Proposal is subject to the provisions of Michigan's Freedom 

of Information Act (Act 442 of 1976, as amended) [click here]. Any information or data in 

the Proposal that the Proposer claims as proprietary and confidential and should not be 

disclosed by the City to third parties shall be clearly identified in their Proposal (each page 

shall be marked as "Proprietary and Confidential") and specified on the Designation of 

Confidential and Proprietary Information Form as provided in Appendix 6 of this RFP. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



8. State Law 

Any agreement between the City and the successful Proposer arising from this RFP will be 

governed, construed, and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. 

Proposers are advised that under such laws, the City will not indemnify the successful 

Proposer against claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, liabilities, damages, losses, 

costs, or expenses of any kind by reason of injury or death to any person or for property 

damage arising out of or relating to the work to be performed. 

THIS ENDS THE ABOVE SECTION 

FOLLOWING PAGES ARE BID PROPOSAL FORMS AND SAMPLE CONTRACT 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



To: City of Pontiac, Michigan 
To All Here Present: 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
________ _,2019 

Having carefully examined the bid for the proposed work, and being fully informed in 
regard to the conditions to be met in the prosecution and completion of the work, and having 
read and examined the Instructions to Bidders, Agreement, Bonds, General Conditions, Plans 
and Specifications pertaining to this work and agreeing to be bound accordingly, the 
undersigned proposes to furnish all the materials, labor, and other equipment as necessary in 
full accordance with and conformity to the plans and specifications for this work now on file in 
the office of the City's at and for the following named prices, to wit: 

NOTE: This proposal is solicited on a unit price or lump sum for work actually completed. 

THIS BID PROPOSAL MUST BE SUBMITTED BACK TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC IN ITS ENTIRETY AS PART OF . 
THE CONTRACTORS BID SUBMISSION. MAKE SURE THAT ALL PAGES ARE COMPLETELY FILLED OUT 
AND THAT ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED IS COMPLETE. FAILURE TO DO SO MAY BE CAUSE TO 
REJECT YOUR BID PROPOSAL. IF A BID IS NOT BEING SUBMITTED FOR A PARTICULAR AREA OF WORK, 
PLEASE MARK "NO BID" IN THE APPROPRIATE SPACE. 

BIDDER ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT OF ANY ADDENDUM: (if issued) 

ADDENDUM NO: _________ Dated: ________ _ 

Bid amounts are to be expressed as a unit price on a per cut basis as specified in the Bid 
Proposal Form. Bid Prices are to include cost of all labor, materials, equipment, insurance and 
bonds necessary to comply and perform under these specifications. Prices for individual 
properties may be requested for selected properties. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Related Project Experience: 

Provide descriptions of current and completed projects your firm has performed that are 
similar to this project in size, scope and complexity. Information for these projects, limited to 
the last t (5) years: 

1) Project Title: _______________________ _ 

Project Location: _________________________ _ 

Client's name: ---------------------------

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _______________ _ 

2) Project Title: ________________________ _ 

Project Location: _________________________ _ 

Client's name: __________________________ _ 

Contact name, title, and telephone number: _______________ _ 

3) Project Title: ________________________ _ 

Project Location: _________________________ _ 

Client's name: ---------------------------
Contact name, title, and telephone number: _______________ _ 

If you require more room, please submit information on another sheet. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



CITY OF PONTIAC - BID PROPOSAL 

I, the undersigned, propose to provide services proposed in this contract as per specifications 
supplied by the City of Pontiac. No contract is active until a purchase order is issued to the 
successful bidder. 

I further propose to deliver the above-described services for the City of Pontiac in first class 
operating manner in accordance with all specifications contained herein subject to purchaser's 

inspection of services performed. 

I attest that the bid includes all information necessary for the City of Pontiac to accept bid. 

Company Name: ____________________________ _ 

Address: ______________________________ _ 

Representative Signature: ________________________ _ 

Print Name: ------------------------------

Title: ___________________ _ 

Office# -------------- Cell.:.:..# ____________ _ 

FAX# _______ _ 

Federal Tax Identification Number: _________________ _ 

Date: _________ _ 

Leasing, Management or P1ivate Public Pa1inership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Appendix 1 - Settlement and Release Agreement dated November 1, 2018 

SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE 

This Settlement Agreement and Release ("Agreement") is entered into effective as of the _f_ day 
of November, 2018 (the "Effective Date"), by and among OTT A WA TOWER II, LLC, a Michigan limited· 
liability company, and the NORTH BAY DRYWALL, INC. PROFIT SHARING PLAN & TRUST, a 
California pension and profit sharing trust, (individually a "Plaintiff' and collectively herein "Plaintiffs" or 
"Ottawa Towers"), and the CITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan municipal corporation, ("City"), LOUIS 
SCHIMMEL, an individual formerly acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of Pontiac, 
("Emergency Manager"), OAKLAND COUNTY ("County"), a Michigan municipal corporation, and the 
OAKLAND COUNTY BUILDING AUTHORITY ("Building Authority"), a Michigan building authority, 
(collectively herein "Defendants"). The Plaintiffs and Defendants are hereinafter individually a "Party" and 
collectively the "Pai1ies." 

RECITALS 

A. On October 30, 1979, the City, the Pontiac Downtown Development Authority, and the 
Downtown Pontiac Development Company entered into a Comprehensive Development Agreement 
("Development Agreement"), recorded at Liber 7770, Page 127, Oakland County Records, that required, 
among other obligations, that the developer construct a parking deck (the "Deck"), a plaza (the "Plaza"), 
and other improvements on the public sites ofa certain parcel of land located in the City of Pontiac, now 
commonly known as the "Phoenix Center." 

B. The Development Agreement provided that the City would convey certain parcels of land within 
the project area to the developer to develop various buildings on the private sites within the project area 
including, but not limited to, two office buildings that are now known as the Ottawa Towers. 

C, On May 8, 1980, a Declaration of Easements ("Declaration of Easements") was executed and 
recorded at Liber 7788, Page O I, Oakland County Records, that created certain easements and other rights 
and obligations as referenced therein. 

D. The Ottawa Towers office buildings are now owned by Ottawa Tower II, LLC and the North 
Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust. 

E. On July 5, 2012, the City's Emergency Manager issued Order S-221 Regarding the Approval to 
Request the County of Oakland to Approve the Demolition of the Phoenix Center. Thereafter, in July 2012, 
the Ottawa Towers commenced litigation against Defendants to prevent the demolition and to ac;sert related 
claims against the Defendants (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 12, 130331-CH, the "2012 Case"). 
The City and County filed counterclaims against the Ottawa Towers. On November 30, 2012, the Oakland 
County Circuit Court entered a preliminary injunction preventing the demolition of the Phoenix Center, 
among other relief. At the time the case was commenced, the Building Authority held title to the Phoenix 
Center. However, during the pendency of the case, the Building Authority transferred title to the Phoenix 
Center back to the City, and thereafter the County dismissed its counterclaim. 

F. On March 28, 2014, the City filed a condemnation action against the Ottawa Towers, among 
others, relating to the Phoenix Center (Oakland County Case No. 14-139761-CC, the "2014 Case"). The 
City's condemnation action was dismissed in October 2014 by the Oakland County Circuit Court, which 
dismissal was thereafter affirmed upon appeal; however, the Ottawa Towers' claim for reimbursement of 
attorney fees and costs under MCL 213.66 remains pending, Both the 2012 Case and the 2014 Case are 
referred to herein as the "Litigation." 

G. The Parties participated in mediation facilitated by the Hon. Gerald Rosen (retired), and the 
Parties agreed upon the material terms of the settlement of their disputes in the form of a Proposed Term 

I 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

Sheet dated April 30, 2018 ("Proposed Term Sheet"). Based upon the Proposed Term Sheet, the Parties 
now desire to memorialize the settlement by this Agreement which shall control and which has been duly 
authorized by all Parties and, as necessary, their duly authorized officials or agents. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements herein contained, 
the Parties agree as follows: 

1.0 PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT 

1.1 As used in this Agreement, "Plaintiffs" shall include Ottawa Tower II, LLC, and N011h Bay 
Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust, their respective owners, managers, employees, officers, 
trustees, members, agents, attorneys, past and present, and their successors and assig'ns. The signatories for 
Plaintiffs acknowledge and represent that they have been duly authorized by their respective entities to 
execute this Agreement and are acting in their official capacity. 

1.2 As used in this Agreement, "Defendants" shall include the City, the Emergency Manager, 
the County and the Oakland County Building Authority and their elected officials, emergency managers, 
appointees, employees, insurers, representatives, agents, attorneys, past and present, and their successors, 
and assigns. The signatories for Defendants acknowledge and represent that they have been duly authorized 
by their respective entities to execute this Agreement and are acting in their official capacity. The City 
represents that no approval is required from the State of Michigan, the Michigan Department ofTreasury or 
any Transition Advisory Board. 

2,0 CONSENT JUDGMENT, DISCHARGE OF LIENS AND DISMISSAL OF OAKLAND 
COUNTY DEFENDANTS. 

2.1 The Parties agree that the consent judgment in substantially the same form attached hereto as 
Exhibit 1 (the "Consent Judgment") and the Stipulation and Order for Dismissal With Prejudice as to 
Defendants Oakland County and Oakland County Building Authority, only, also attached as Exhibit I 
shall be submitted to the Court for entry upon execution of this Agreement in resolution of all pending 
claims and closes Case No. 12-130331-CH. The Stipulated Order for Dismissal also attached hereto as 
Exhibit I shall be submitted to the Court for entry upon execution of this Agreement in resolution of all 
pending claims and closes Case No. 14-139761-CC. Prior to submission of the Consent Judgment and the 
Stipulated Order for Dismissal to the Court, the City shall puy in full to Plaintiffs' counsel the settlement 
payments as set forth in Section 3.1.1, 3.1.3, and the first installment payment set forth in Section 3.1.2. 
Plaintiffs' counsel shall hold the settlement payments in escrow in the Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, 
PC-[OLTA Client Trust Account until the Consent Judgment and the Stipulated Order of Dismissal are 
entered by the court and, upon entry, Plaintiffs' counsel is authorized to disburse the settlement payments 
to Plaintiffs. By entering into this Agreement, no Party admits to any wrongdoing, liability, or 
responsibility for damages of any kind whatsoever. 

2.2 Concurrently upon payment in full by the City of the amounts set forth in Section 3.1.1, 
3.1.3 and the first installment payment set forth in Section 3. l .2and disbursement of such funds to 
Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs shall discharge and release any and all existing liens that Plaintiffs have filed against 
the Phoenix Center. The discharge and relea~e of the liens shall be recorded with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds at the expense of the Plaintiffs. Any future lien claims after the Effective Date of this 
Agreement shall be subject lo conclusion of the alternative dispute resolution process established in Section 
6.4, below, prior to the filing of the liens. 

2 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

3.0 PAYMENTS 

3,1 In consideration of the immediate discharge of all liens and encumbrances on the Phoenix 
Center as provided herein at Section 2.2, and the full, final and absolute release of all claims described in 
Section 4.0 Release and Waiver of Claims, the City shall pay Ottawa Towers II, LLC and North Bay 
Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust, jointly and severally, a total of Seven Million Three Hundred and 
Fifty Thousand Dollars and 00/100 ($7,350,000.00), without any offset or deduction for any reason, in the 
manner and form as provided below: 

3,1.1 Three Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,500,000.00) (the "Initial 
Payment") shall be paid upon the execution of all settlement documents, including the Consent 
Judgment to be entered in Oakland County Circuit Cout1 Case No. 12-13033 l-CH, with One 
Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,750,000.00) paid to Ottawa Tower II, LLC, 
and One Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,750,000.00) paid to North Bay 
Drywall, Inc, Profit Sharing Plan & Trust (Charles Stephens, Trustee). 

3.1,2 Three Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,500,000.00) payable, to North 
Bay Drywall, Inc, Profit Sharing Plan & Trust (Charles Stephens, Trustee), in five (5) annual 
installments of $700,000.00 ("annual installment payment(s)"), without interest, the first annual 
installment shall be due on the date all settlement documents are executed. No interest shall accrue 
on any balance due hereunder. The City may elect to pay the balance of the remaining settlement 
amount in full at any time, If the City fails to make any installment payment within twenty (20) 
days of the date that such payment is due, then the entire remaining balance shall be due and 
payable immediately. Upon written notice from North Bay Drywall, Inc, Profit Sharing Plan & 
Trust (Charles Stephens, Trustee), or its counsel, given at least 90 days before an installment 
payment is due, the City shall then pay some or all of the remaining installment payments to Ottawa 
Tower II, LLC and/or such other payee(s) as set forth in such notice. 

3.1.3 The City shall pay Plaintiffs the sum of Three Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($350,000.00) as full and final reimbursement for all attorney fees and costs incurred by Plaintiffs 
in the condemnation action, being Oakland Circuit Case No. 14-139761-CC, This reimbursement 
shall be paid with the Initial Payment in Section 3, 1.1 above, Upon payment, Plaintiffs and the City 
shal I submit to the court the Stipulated Order attached as Exhibit l to close the 2014 Case. 

3.2 To secure all or a portion of the payments due to Plaintiffs in Section 3.1.2. above, the City 
reserves the right to issue its judgment bonds (the "Judgment Bonds") in an amount sufficient to pay all or 
a portion of the costs described in Section 3. I .2 above, plus the costs of issuance of the Judgment Bonds. 
The issuance of any Judgment Bonds shall not have any effect on the timing of payments due under Section 
3.1.2. 

3,3 The Parties acknowledge and represent that none of the other Parties, or their attorneys, 
have made any representations regarding the tax consequences of this Agreement. Each Party shall be 
solely responsible for any tax consequences resulting from the Agreement or the payments or other actions 
taken to effectuate its provisions. Any and all reporting or payment of taxes, if any, shall be governed by 
and in compliance with state and federal laws and regulations governing the same. Plaintiffs will provide 
the City with a completed Form W-9 for reporting of the payments to each of the Plaintiffs by the City to the 
Internal Revenue Service. 

4.0 RELEASE AND WAIVER OF CLAIMS BY PLAINTIFFS 

4.1 Other than as set forth in this Agreement, Plaintiffs hereby forever release, waive, and 
discharge each of the Defendants and their agents, officers, elected officials, directors, supervisors, 

3 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

emergency managers, appointees, employees, insurers, representatives, agents, attorneys, past and present, 
in their official and/or individual capacities, and their successors, predecessors and assigns, from any and 
all suits, causes of action, complaints, charges, obi igations, demands or claims of any kind, whether in law 
or in equity, either direct or indirect, and known or unknown, which Plaintiffs ever had or may have as of 
the Effective Date of this Agl'eement (hereinafter collectively rcfcl'red to as "Claims") rnlated to any of the 
allegations as pied in any of the versions of Plaintiffs' Complaints as filed in the Litigation described herein 
from the beginning of time up to and through the Effective Date of this Agreement. Plaintiffs' release and 
waiver of claims specifically includes, but is not limited to, the release, waiver, and discharge of the 
following: 

4.1.1 Any and all Claims actually pied or that could have been pied as part of the 
Litigation or any other action at law or in equity; 

4.1.2 Any and all Claims of alleged violations of any federal, state or local statute, 
ordinance, regulation,judicial precedent or executive order, including, but not limited to, claims of 
breach of contract, breach of declaration of easements, and/or any other applicable federal, state or 
local law, regulation, rule or ordinance of any kind; 

4.1.3 Any and all Claims in tort, not limited to, any claims for innocent 
misrepresentation, fraudulent misrepresentation, fraud, negligence, breach of implied covenant of 
good faith and fair dealing, misappropriation, self-dealing, defamation, libel, slander, intentional 
infliction of emotional distress, for emotional distress damages, breach of fiduciary duty, business 
torts, and all other tort claims of any kind; 

4.1.4 Any and all Claims for attorney's fees, sanctions and costs under statute, 
including, but not limited to MCL 213.66 and 42 USC§§ 1983 and 1988 (b) and (c), court rules or 
case law; 

4.1.5 Any and all Claims arising under the United States Constitution or the Michigan 
Constitution of 1963, as amended. 

4.2 Plaintiffs acknowledge and agree that this Release and Waiver of Claims covers all of the 
aforementioned claims and potential claims, which arose on or accrued from the beginning of time and 
through the Effective Date of this Agreement, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, 
matured or not matured, and that this constitutes the essential basis of this Agreement. This Release and 
Waiver of Claims shall be read as broadly as possible such that the Defendants shall have no further 
obligations or liability of any sort or nature to Plaintiffs, directly or indirectly, in the existing Litigation 
other than as provided in this Agreement. 

5.0 RELEASE AND WAIVER OF CLAIMS BY DEFENDANTS 

5.1 Other than as set forth in this Agreement, Defendants hereby forever release, waive, and 
discharge each of the Plaintiffs and their agents, trustees, members, managers, officers, directors, 
supervisors, employees, insurers, representatives, agents, attorneys, past and present, in their official and/or 
individual capacities, and their successors, predecessors and assigns, from any and all suits, causes of 
action, complaints, charges, obligations, demands or claims of any kind, whether in law or in equity, either 
direct or indirect, and known or unknown, which Defendants ever had or may have as of the Effective Date 
of this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referl'ed to as "Claims") related to any of the allegations made or 
that could have been made in the Litigation from the beginning of time up to and through the Effective Date 
of this Agl'eement. Defendants' release and waiver of claims specifically includes, but is not I imited to, the 
release, waiver, and discharge of the following: 

4 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

5.1.1 Any and all Claims actually pied or that could have been pied as part of the 
Litigation or any other action al law or in equity; 

5.1.2 Any and all Claims of alleged past violations of any federal, state or local statute, 
ordinance, regulation,judicial precedent or executive order, including, but not limited to, claims of 
breach of contract, breach of declaration of easements, inverse condemnation, improper or illegal 
taking of property rights, reformation/modification of easements, slander of title, specific 
performance and/or any other applicable federal, state or local law, regulation, rule or ordinance of 
any kind; 

5.1,3 Any and all Claims in tort, not limited to, any claims for innocent 
misrepresentation, fraudulent misrepresentation, fraud, negligence, breach of implied covenant of 
good faith and fair dealing, misappropriation, self-dealing, defamation, libel, slander, intentional 
infliction of emotional distress, for emotional distress damages, breach of fiduciary duty, business 
torts, and all other tort claims of any kind; 

5,1.4 Any and all Claims for attorney's fees, sanctions and costs under statute, 
including, but not limited to MCL 213.66 and 42 USC§§ 1983 and 1988 (b) and (c), court rules or 
case law; 

5,1.5 Any and all Claims arising under the United States Constitution or the Michigan 
Constitution of 1963, as amended. 

5.2 Defendants acknowledge and agree that this Agreement covers all of the aforementioned 
claims and potential claims, which arose on or accrued from the beginning of time and through the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, matured or not matured, 
and that this constitutes the essential basis of this Agreement. This Release and Waiver of Claims shall be 
read as broadly as possible such that the Plaintiffs shall have no further obligations or liability of any sort or 
nature to Defendants, directly or indirectly, in the existing Litigation other than as provided in this 
Agreement. 

6.0 MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PHOENIX CENTER AND 
TUNNEL 

6.1 The City is the owner of the Plaza, the Deck, and the Orchard Lake Road Tunnel 
("Tunnel"), subject to the existing encumbrances on title; as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

6.2 In addition to the payments set forth in Section 3.0 of this Agreement, the City shall pay up 
to Six Million & 00/100 ($6,000,000.00) dollars over a ten ( IO) year period beginning as of the Effective 
Date of this Agreement for the (i) maintenance of (the "Maintenance") and (ii) capital repair of and 
improvements to (the "Improvements" and together with the Maintenance, the "Work"), the Phoenix 
Center necessary to bring and maintain the Phoenix Center into conformance with the requirements of the 
International Property Maintenance Code (20 IS edition), as referenced in the Michigan Building Code and 
the Michigan Rehabilitation Code (20 IS edition)(herein "Code"). Only the portions of the Work that are 
Improvements may be paid for with the bond proceeds. 

6.3 The Work that the City commits to make shall include all electrical, lighting, elevator and 
structural repairs and improvements in the north and south sections of the Deck to be completed within the 
first two years after the Effective Date of this Agreement as ·more fully detailed on Exhibit 2 attached 
hereto. The Work performed by the City shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner in conformance 
with the Code. A detailed schedule to perform the specific work on the Phoenix Center as required by 
Exhibit 2 shall be prepared by the Parties' respective engineering contractors and/or expe1is after meeting 

s 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

to develop a specific scope of work, scheduling, and staging; provided, however, that the minimum 
required work and timeframes listed on Exhibit 2 shall not be delayed or diminished in scope, Plaintiffs 
have provided the City with all of Plaintiffs' relevant engineering reports, drawings, specifications, and cost 
estimates for the completed repairs to the Phoenix Center as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, 
without any representation that the drawings or source documents may be useablc by the City without 
paying fees to, or retaining for itself, the preparers and/or experts. 

6,4 In the event Plaintiffs (or successors in title) believe that the City is not performing the 
Work to the Phoenix Center in compliance with its obligations hereunder or under the Declaration, then the 
following procedures shall be followed: Plaintiffs (or successors in title) shall provide written notice to the 
City identifying and explaining the alleged deficiency. The City shall then have seven (7) days after receipt 
of such written notice to confirm in writing that the City will remedy the deficiency expeditiously within a 
defined time period specified in the City's written response. If the City either declines or otherwise fails to 
confirm that a remedy will be made expeditiously, or fails to respond in writing, or if the time period 
specified by the City is not reasonable or expeditious, Plaintiffs (or successors in title) may commence an 
expedited mediation by contacting Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc., now known as 
"JAMS" (and, if available, utilizing Hon. Judge Gerald Rosen) or another qualified mediation organization 
if JAMS is unavailable. Plaintiffs (or successors in title) and the City shall mediate their dispute within 
seven (7) days, or on the first mutually available date, but no later than thirty (30) days after Plaintiffs 
initial written request letter to the City. The mediator's fees and expenses shall be borne equally by the 
parties, but the mediator shall award to the substantially-prevailing party the mediator's fees and expenses, 
and the reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred by such party. If the mediator is unable to resolve the 
dispute within thirty (30) days of the mediator's retention to serve as mediator, or if the City declines, fails 
and/or refuses to participate in the mediation and in good faith, and the mediator terminates the mediation, 
then the parties shall proceed as provided by the Declaration relating to liens. Notwithstanding the 
forgoing, nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed or construed to permit or justify the City to delay 
responding to and remedying any dangerous conditions for which it is responsible to repair under the 
Declaration. 

7,0 PARKING RIGHTS AND ACCESS 

The Parties have agreed to amend the Declaration of Easements in order to clarify Plaintiffs' 
parking and access rights with respect to the Deck. The form of amendment to the Declaration of Easement 
is set fo11h as Exhibit 3 and shall be executed and recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds 
concurrent with the discharge of liens referenced herein. In addition to the provisions of the Declaration of 
Easements, the access and parking rights by Plaintiffs, their tenants, and employees in the Phoenix Center 
arc set forth on Exhibit 4. The City shall install a card-reader system (or equivalent) and thereafter issue 
parking cards to the Ottawa Towers as set forth on Exhibit 4. Plaintiffs represent that the parking cards 
referenced therein are for use only by Plaintiffs (or successors in title) and their tenants and employees and 
shall not he resold or transferred to any other person or entity. The City shall provide replacement cards to 
the Ottawa Towers immediately upon request from Plaintiffs or their tenants or their successors in title, as 
set forth on Exhibit 4. 

8,0 INTERIM MAINTENANCE AND MANAGEMENT OF THE PHOENIX CENTER 

In anticipation of the City reassuming and undertaking its obligations for sole day-to-day property 
management of the Deck, Plaintiffs shall continue their services at the Phoenix Center, in conformity with 
their same level, extent and scope of services as of the date of the execution of this Agreement, to perform 
the day-to-day maintenance, operations and facilities management for the South Side (being that portion of 
the Deck located to the south of Orchard Lake Road) of the Deck that is in use by Plaintiffs, their tenants 
and employees, as set forth on Exhibit 5, for $9,810.00 per month payable in advance on the first day of 
each month to be paid by the City to Plaintiffs commencing upon May I, 2018 through the earlier of: (i) the 

6 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

date the City undertakes the sole day-to-day property management activities for the Deck, Tunnel, and 
Plaza as described on Exhibit 5; or (ii) six (6) months from the Effective Date of this Agreement. Plaintiffs 
shall name the City as an additional insured on its insurance policies and provide certificates of insurance to 
the City. This amount does not include charges for materials (such as salt, lightbulbs/fixtures, scaffolding, 
fuel, waste containers, etc.), permit fees, subcontractor charges (although scheduling and coordination of 
painting of lines for parking spaces is included, actual layout and painting will be by subcontractor as an 
additional cost), equipment rental or other similar non-labor expenses, or services for any activities not 
currently performed by Plaintiffs, all to be at 10% overhead and 10% profit. Any and all cleanup, repairs 
and costs of vandalism and graffiti removal shall be an extra charge; provided, however, that Plaintiffs will 
not pe1form such additional work and incur such extra charges until first providing to the City ten ( I 0) days' 
prior written notice of the need therefor. Any invoices submitted by Plaintiffs to the City for the period 
after May 1, 2018 shall be paid in full upon execution of this Agreement. Payments to Plaintiffs for the 
monthly payment under this section and also the monthly payment for the electrical charges relating to the 
Tunnel shall be made by the City through electronic deposit to Plaintiffs' account as provided in writing to 
the City by Plaintiffs with Plaintiffs' invoices. Any of Plaintiffs' invoices that are not timely paid by the 
City within twenty days shall incur a late fee of 5% of the amount of the invoice, plus interest of I o/o per 
month from the date due. 

9,0 RIGHTS IN FOYER, CONNECTOR, AND ATRIUM CONNECTOR 

The City will execute a quitclaim deed to Ottawa Tower II, LLC, for all of the City's claimed right, 
title and interest in or to the Atrium Connector, which is the 2-stoiy atrium structure adjacent to the Judson 
Tower nnd located upon North Bay's property between the Judson Tower and the Phoenix Center, in the 
form of quitclaim deed attached as Exhibit 6. The City acknowledges and agrees that Plaintiffs shall have 
an easement for rights to ingress and egress through the Foyer and Connector as defined in tJ1e City's 
Counterclaim to/from the Phoenix Center to/from both of Plaintiff's office towers, and such rights are set 
forth in the Amended Declaration ofEasements attached as Exhibit 3. 

10.0 REVIEW OF AGREEMENT 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that they have been advised of the right to consult with an 
attorney regarding the terms of this Agreement and their rights under this Agreement and state and federal 
statutes and common law. Each Party acknowledges that before signing this Agreement they have read the 
entire Agreement and fully understands the terms, content, and effect of the Agreement; that they have had 
the benefit of advice from an attorney of their choosing; and that they relied fully and completely on their 
own judgment and/or on the advice of their attorney in executing this Agreement. 

11,0 ASSIGNMENT 

Plaintiffs may, but are not obligated to, assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, upon the sale of 
either or both of the Towers, the sale of Ottawa Tower II, LLC, or the transfer of all, or substantially all of a 
Plaintiffs assets. 

12.0 GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement is executed under the laws of the State of Michigan, and shall be governed by, the 
laws of the State of Michigan. 

13.0 SEVERABILITY 

7 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If any term or provision is held to be 
invalid, void, or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction for any reason whatsoever, such ruling 
shall not affect the validity of the other terms or the remainder of this Agreement. 

14.0 INTEGRATION 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement, and the Exhibits and schedules attached 
hereto, contains all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the Parties hereto regarding the subject 
matter of this Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or 
representations concerning the subject matter of this Agreement not expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
This Agreement, including its schedules and exhibits, may not be amended, revoked, waived, changed or 
modified, except in a writing executed by all of the Parties to this Agreement. 

15.0 CLOSING AND EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS 

This Agreement and any other settlement document of which an original signature is not required 
may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, 
but all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement. This Agreement may be recorded by any 
Party with the Oakland County Register of Deeds. 

16.0 SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

The Parties understand that this Agreement covers all of the aforementioned claims and potential 
claims, which arose on or before the date that they executed this Agreement, whether known or unknown, 
suspected or unsuspected, and that this constitutes an essential term of this Agreement. The Parties 
acknowledge that, except as otherwise provided herein, the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
represent a full and complete disposition and satisfaction of each Party's legal, statutory, regulatory, and 
contractual obligations to the other Pa1ties through the Effective Date hereof. 

17.0 SECTION HEADINGS 

The section headings contained in this Agreement are for the convenience of the Parties only and 
are not to be used in interpreting this Agreement. 

18.0 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The terms, rights and obligations of the Parties under this Agreement shall be binding on, inure to 
the benefit of, and be enforceable by any successors or assigns of the Parties, 

19.0 WARRANTIES 

Each Party and signatory hereto warrants and represents that: 

19,1 The Party relies exclusively on its own judgment, and that the Party has not been 
influenced by any statement made by or on behalf of any of the other Parties to this Agreement; 

19.2 The Pm1y has been fully informed and has full knowledge of the terms, conditions, and 
effects of this Agreement; 

19,3 The Party has, either on its own or through its attorneys, fully investigated, to its full 
satisfaction, all the facts surrounding the various claims, controversies, and disputes and is fully satisfied 
with the terms and effects of the Agreement; 

8 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

19.4 The Party has not assigned or transferred any of the claims, demands, actions and rights 
being released by such party in this Agreement; 

19.5 The Party has the full and complete authority to enter into this Agreement, to release the 
Claims that the Pru1y is releasing herein, and to execute any and all documents required pursuant to this 
Agreement, and that this Agreement is binding upon the Party; and 

19.6 The Parties have executed this Agreement as their own free act and without reliance upon 
any representations, warranties, or promises other than those contained in this Agreement. 

20,0 NOTICES 

All notices, requests or other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder shall 
be given in writing, and shall be deemed received (a) when hand delivered, or (b) one (I) business day 
after delivery to FedEx or similar overnight delivery service, when posted for next business day delivery, 
or (e) when received after deposit in the U.S. ce11ified mail, return receipt requested, or (d) when sent, if 
sent during normal business hours by email transmission, and such transmission is promptly followed by 
any of the other methods for giving notice. [n all cases notices shall be addressed to the parties at their 
respective addresses as follows or to such other address as either party hereto may designate by a notice 
given in accordance with this Section: 

To City: 

With a copy to: 

To Ottawa Towers: 

With a copy to: 

The City of Pontiac 
Attn: John Balint, Director of Public Works 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Email: jbalint@pontiac.mi.us 

Giarmarco, Mullins & Horton, P.C. 
Attn: John Clark 
Tenth Floor Columbia Center 
IO I West Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084-5280 
Email: jclark@gmhlaw.com 

OTT A WA TOWER II, LLC 
Attn: Charles Stephens, Manager 
715 Southpoint Blvd., Suite B 
Petaluma, CA 94954-6836 
Email: cstephens@northbayco.com 

And: 
NORTH BAY DRYWALL, INC. PROFIT SHARING PLAN & TRUST 
Attn: Charles Stephens, Trustee 
715 Southpoint Blvd., Suite B 
Petaluma, CA 94954-6836 
Email: cstephens@northbayco.com 

Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, PC 
Attn: Steven D. Sallen, Esq. 

9 



28400 Northwestern Hwy., Suite 200 
Southfield, MI 48034 
Email: ssallen@maddinhauser.com 

10 

SIGNATURE COPY: ll/01/2018 



SIGNATURE COPY: l 1/01/2018 

IN WITNESS WH[mlWF, lhe Parties acknowledge and agree thnt ench is ucting of their own 
free will to cause the execution of'this Agrnement as of lhc Etlective Dt\!!,,fif1f written above. 

,/ ,,.)·; 

11 

Pl • 'f'j" , / / •' nmt~,-k:,,,,,, ;.:-:/ 
/ltf --:/ 

~;Y1~~1~.~E~~'.. LLC 
/ l.r:J ... --·.,... 

/l/;t--{_) 
//v 

i5;-,~ thnrlcs R, Stephens 
Its: Authorized l\,Janager 

✓-~) 

.·'/ 
I>] ' t'ff _,/ I 

llln I : ·'° .,1 •• ,. ,..-:;• ) 

NOR1'f~B){)(fi~\~-~VALL. lNC. PROFJT 

e[:'.1~,!~ll~:;~ &-~~-~--" 
,,{ .. ) C.<) 

/ { ;/ 

By': Charles R. Stephens 
fls: Authorized Tmstcc 

Defendants: 

CITY Or PONTIAC, on behulfofilselfand 
LOUIS H. SCHIMMEL, formerly acting as the 
Emergency Manager of the City 

~~ 
By: Deirdre Wutcnnnn 
Its: tvtayor, duly authorized and approved by City 
Council R%ution No.J$.::,'/db 
approved JQ , 2018 

OAKLAND COUNTY 

By: L. Brooks Patterson, or his designcc 
Its: Oakland County Executive 

OAKLAND COUNTY BUILDING 
i\UTHORITY 

By: 
lts: 



SIGNATURE COPY: 11/01/2018 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties acknowledge and agree that each is acting of their own 
free will to cause the execution oftbis Agreement as of the Effective Date first written above. 

11 

Plaintiff: 

OTfAWA TOWER Jl, LLC 

By: Charles R. Stephens 
Its: Authorized Manager 

Plaintiff: 

NORTH BAY DRYWALL, INC. PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN & TRUST 

By: Charles R. Stephens 
Its: Authorized Trustee 

Defendants: 

CITY OF PONTIAC, on behalf of itself and 
LOUIS H. SCHIMMEL, formerly acting as the 
Emergency Manager of the City 

By: Deirdre Waterman 
!ts: Mayor, duly authorized and approved by City 
Council Resolution No. _, 
approved __ , 2018 

& r/c,yP ~ {!t:'U(1.>8- j 

OAKLAND COUNTY BUILDING 
AUTHORJTY 



EXHIBIT l - DISMISSAL ORDERS 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

OTTAWA TOWER IT, LLC, A Michigan 
Limited Liability Company, and NORTH 
BAY DRYWALL, INC., PROFIT 
SHARING PLAN & TRUST, a California 
Pension and Profit Sharing Trust, 

Plaintiffs/Counter Defendants, 
vs. 

CITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation, LOUIS SCHIMMEL, an individual 
acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of 
Pontiac, 

Defendants/Counter-Plaintiffs. 

I 

Case No. I 2-130331-CH 
Hon. Michael Warren 

CONSENT 
JUDGMENT 

-----------------
MICHELLE C. HARRELL (P48768) 
Maddin Hauser Wartell Roth & Heller, P.C. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 3rd Floor 
Southfield, Michigan 48034 
(248) 354-4030 or (248) 355-5200 

JOHN C. CLARK (PS l 356) 
Giarmarco Mullins & Horton 
Attorneys for City of Pontiac & Schimmel 
101 West Big Beaver Road, Tenth Floor 
Troy, Michigan 48084-5280 
(248) 457-7000/(248) 404-6313 



THOMAS J. McCARTHY (P36755) 
Monaghan, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant City of Pontiac and 
Louis Schimmel 
33 Bloomfield Hills Pkwy., Ste. 260 
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 
(248) 642-5770 

JEROME P. PESJCK (P29029) 
Steinhardt Pesick & Cohen 
Co-Counsel for Plaintiffs 
380 N. Old Woodward, Ste. 120 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
(248) 646M0888 

CONSENT JUDGMENT 

WHEREAS, Ottawa Towers II, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability Company, and North Bay 

Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust, a Callfornia Pension and Profit Sharing Trust (collectively 

"Plaintiffs") have entered into a Settlement Agreement with Defendants City of Pontiac, a Michigan 

Municipal Corporation, and Louis Schimmel, an individual acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of 

Pontiac, , that resulls in a full and complete resolution of all claims pied by all Parties in this action ; 

WHEREAS, the terms of the Settlement Agreement call for: 

(a) Defendant City of Pontiac to pay Plaintiffs the amounts set forth therein, of which 

$7,350,000 (the "Cash Settlement Amount") represents payment in consideration of the discharge ofliens 

and encumbrances on the Phoenix Center and the payment of attorneys' fees; 

(b) Defendant City of Pontiac to pay Plaintiffs the Cash Setilement Amount in the amounts, 

and at the times, specified in the Settlement Agreement; 

(c) Plaintiffs to dismiss the above-captioned action, and waive and release all claims as set 

forth in lhe Settlement Agreement upon payment as provided therein; and 

(d) A provision authorizing Defendant City of Pontiac to issue bonds pursuant to MCL 

§600.6097 for the purposes of paying all or a portion of the Cash Settlement Amount. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED THAT: 

I. The Settlement Agreement is hereby approved; 

2. Judgment is entered in favor of Plaintiffs and against Defendant City of Pontiac in the 

amount of $7,350,000 (inclusive of attorney fees and all taxable or other costs); 

3. This Consent Judgment constitutes a judgment under !he Revised Judicature Act; 



4. This Consent Judgment authorizes Defendant City of Pontiac, if it so determines, to issue 

bonds pursuant to MCL § 600.6097 (Section 6097 of the Revised Judicature Act), or such other applicable 

statute, in an amount sufficient and necessary to pay all or a portion of the amounts sel fo1ih in Paragraph 2, 

above, plus the costs of issuance thereof. 

This Consent Judgment resolves all pending claims in this matter and closes this case. 

Circuit Court Judge 

I STIPULATE TO ENTR y or THE ABOVE ORDER: 

/s/ Michelle C. Harrell 
Michelle C. Harrell (P48768) 
Attorney for Plaintiffs 

Isl John C. Clark 
John C. Clark (PS 1356) 
Attorney for City of Pontiac and Schimmel 



CONFESSION OF ,TTJDGMRNT 

The City ur Pontiac ("City"), a Michigan municipal corporation, hereby authorizes, 
without powct· of revocation, any attorney of' any court of record to appear for tlw City in any such 
c.:ourl alkr u default _l;as _been declared by Pluintiffo under thl! tern;_;' or the _Scttkmenl Agn:cm~n! 
and Rl!leasc dated cl kctivc November I_, 20 l 8 (the "Agreement ), to wmvc process and service 
thereof; and lo confess judgment against the City and in favor of Plt1intills Ottawa Tower !!, LLC 
nnd North Bay Drywall, lnc. Protil Shoring Plan & Trust, which judgment provides for a monetary 
rnnscntjudgment in ihvor of the Plaintiffs in the amount 01'$7,350,000.00, less the nmount of'any 
payments made by the City upon such mnount. Plnintills' counsel is authorized to complete the 
Consent .Judgment lo stale the current mnount due to Plaintiffs, net or any payments then made, 

Executed as of this Nrwcmbcr /7, 2018. 

ST;\TF OF M!Cil!Cii\N ) 
) ss: 

CUlJNTY OF 0/\KLAND ) 

City or Punliac 
By: Deirdre Walernwn 
Its: Mayor, duly authorized and approved by 
City Counci( J{csuluti()n No. J/J-;lo& 
Apprnvcd ltjJc_, 2018 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this. _/_y __ day or 
2018 hy Deirdre Waterman, as '.v!uyor or the City of' Pontiac. 

SHEILA R. GRANDISON 
NOTAAY PUBLIC· STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF OAKI.AND 
My Commission~~· 
Actifll:I In tm County of ;t 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

The Condemnation Complain/ of the City of Pontiac 
for the acq111:tilion of propel'ly interests 
for public purposes in Oakland County, Michigan 
--------------~---------------------'! 
CITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan 
municipal corporntion, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

OTT A WA TOWER II, LLC, 
a Michigan limited liability company; 
CHARLES R. STEPHENS, as Trustee of the 

Case No, 14-139761-CC 
Hon. Michael Warren 

NORTH BAY DRYWALL, INC. PROFIT SHARJNG 
PLAN AND TRUST DATED OCTOBER 1, 1985, 
a California entity, 

Defendants. 

Thomas J. McCarthy (?36755) 
Matthew T. Jane (P58396) 
MONAGHAN, P.C. 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
33 Bloomfield Hills Pkwy., Ste. 260 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48304 
(248) 642-5770 

Jerome P, Pesick (?29039) 
Jason C, Long (P59244) 
STEINHARDT PESICK & COHEN 
Attorneys for Defendants Ottawa Tower II, LLC 
and Charles R. Stephens, as Trustee of the North 
Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust 
Dated October 1, 1985 
380 N. Old Woodward Ave., Suite 120 
Birmingham, Ml 48009 
(248) 646-0888 

Steven D. Sallen (P36991) 
Michelle C. Harrell (?48768) 
MADDIN, HAUSER, ROTH & 
HELLER, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendants Ottawa Tower II, LLC 
and Charles R. Stephens, as Trustee of the North 
Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan and Trust 
Dated October 1, 1985 
28400 Northwestern Hwy., Second Floor 
Southfield, MI 48034 
(248) 354-4030 ______________________________ ! 

STIPULATED ORDER FOR DISMISSAL OF 
DEFENDANTS' RENEWED MOTION FOR RElMBURSEMENT OF FEES AND COSTS 

THIS MA TIER is before the court by Defendants' Renewed Motion for Reimbursement 

of Fees and Costs; and upon the stipulation of counsel for the parties and with the Court being 



duly advised that the parties have now settled the only remaining issue in this case pursuant to 

the terms of a Settlement Agreement, and with the Court being otherwise advised in the 

premises: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendants Renewed Motion for Reimbursement of 

Fees and Costs is dismissed and all claims by Defendants for attorney fees and costs under MCL 

213 .66 or any other applicable statute or court rule have now been satisfied. 

This is a final Order that resolves the Jast pending claim and closes the case. 

CrRCUIT COURT JUDGE 

I STIPULATE TO ENTRY OF THE ABOVE ORDER: 

Isl Thomas J. McCarthy 
Thomas J. McCarthy (P36755) 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

/s/ Michelle C. Harrell 
Michelle C. Harrell (P48768) 
Attorney for Defendants 



STATE OF MICHIGAN 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

OTTAWA TOWER ll, LLC, A Michigan 
limited Liability Company, and NORTH 
BAY DRYWALL, INC. PROFIT SHARING 
PLAN & TRUST, a California Pension and 
Profit Sharing Trust, 

Plaintiffs/Cross Defendants, 
-vs-

Case No. 12-130331-CH 
Hon. Michael Warren 

CITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan Municipal 
Corporation, LOUIS SCHIMMEL, an individual 
acting as the Emergency Manager of the City of 
Pontiac, and OAKLAND COUNTY, a Michigan 
Municipal Corporation, and OAKLAND 
COUNTY BUILDING AUTHORITY, a 

STIPULATED ORDER FOR 
DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE 
AND WITHOUT COSTS OR 
FEES AS TO DEFENDANTS 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND AND 
OAKLAND COUNTY BUILDING 
AUTHORITY ONLY 

Michigan Building Authority, 

Defendants/Cross Plaintiffs. 

MICHELLE C. HARRELL (P48768) 
BRIAN A. NETTLEINGHAM (P58966) 
MADDIN HAUSER WARTELL ROTH 
& HELLER PC 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 3rd Floor 
Southfield, Ml 48034 
(248) 354-4030 or (248) 355-5200 
mharrell@maddinhauser.com 
bnettleingham@maddinhauser.com 

J. TRAVIS MIHELICK (P73050) 
JOHN C. CLARK (P51356) 
STEPHEN J. HITCHCOCK (P15005) 
JOHN L. MILLER (P71913) 
Attorneys for Pontiac and Schimmel 
101 West Big Beaver Road, 10th Floor 
Troy, Ml 48084 
(248) 457-7000/(248) 404-6313 
tmihellck@gmhlaw.com 
jclark@gmhlaw.com 
sjh@gmhlaw.com 
jmiller@gmhlaw.com 

DAVID B. TIMMIS (P40539) 
CHRISTIAN E. HILDEBRANDT (P46989) 
VANDEVEER GARZIA, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant Oakland County 
840 W. Long Lake Road, Suite 600 
Troy, Ml 48098 
(248) 312-2800 
dtimmis@vgpclaw.com 
childebrandt@vgpclaw.com 

KEITH J. LERMINIAUX (P30190) 
Attorney for Defendants Oakland County 
1200 N. Telegraph Road, Bldg. 14E 
Pontiac, Ml 48341 
(248) 858-0557 
lerminiauxk@oakgov.com 



THOMAS J. MCCARTHY (P36755) 
MICHELLE C. RUGGIRELLO (P75202) 
MATHEW T. JANE (P58396) 
Attorneys for Defendant City of Pontiac and 
Louis Schimmel 
Monaghan, P.C. 
33 Bloomfield Hills Parkway, Suite 260 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48304 
(248) 642-5770 

JEROME P. PESICK (P29029) 
Steinhardt Pesick & Cohen 
Co~Counsel for Plaintiffs 
380 N. Old Woodward, Suite 120 
Birmingham, Ml 48009 
(248) 646~0888 

STIPULATED ORDER FOR DISMISSAL WITH PREJUDICE AND 
WITHOUT COSTS OR FEES AS TO DEFENDANTS COUNTY 

OF OAKLAND AND OAKLAND COUNTY BUILDING 
AUTHORITY ONLY 

THIS MATTER is before the court upon the stipulation of counsel for the parties 

and with the Court being duly advised that the parties have settled this case in its entirety, 

and with the Court being otherwise fully advised in the premises: 

lT IS ORDERED THAT this case is dismissed in its entirety with prejudice and 

without costs or fees to any pa'rty as to Defendants Oakland County and Oakland County 

Building Authority only. 

This is not a Final Order and does not resolve the last pending claim or close the 

case. 

Circuit Court Judge 



I hereby stipulate to the entry of the above Order. 

MICHELLE C. HARRELL (P48768) 
BRIAN A NETTLEINGHAM (P58966) 
MADDIN HAUSER WARTELL ROTH 
& HELLER PC 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

J. TRAVIS MIHELICK (P73050) 
JOHN C. CLARK {P51356) 
STEPHEN J. HITCHCOCK (P15005) 
JOHN L MILLER (P71913) 
Attorneys for Pontiac and Schimmel 

DAVID B. TIMMIS (P40539) 
CHRISTIAN E. HILDEBRANDT (P46989) 
VANDEVEER GARZIA, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendant Oakland County 



EXHIBIT 2 - SCHEDULE OF IMPROVEMENTS 

(A) The City shall pay up to Six Million ($6,000,000) Dollars to do all Maintenance and Improvemenls (as 
such terms are defined in the Settlement Agreement) necessary to bring the Phoenix Center into 
conformance with the requirements of the International Propeity Maintenance Code (2015 edition), as 
referenced in the Michigan Building Code and the Michigan Rehabllitation Code (20 l 5 edition), within 
the ten ( 10) year period after the Effective Date of this Agreement; provided, however, that: 

Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the City shall repair vandalism damage 
previously reported by Plaintiffs; within twenty~four (24) months of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, the City shall complete all necessary electrical, lighting, elevator and serious structural 
repairs to the Deck in the following stages: 

l) Maintenance and 1mprovements to the third (JIJ) floor of the north side of the Deck which is defined as 
that portion of the Deck located to the north of Orchard Lake Road ("North Side")- both electrical and 
structural and the Maintenance and Improvements to both of the south side elevators; 

2) then all south side sections of the Deck, being that portion of the Deck located to the South of Ql'(:hard 
Lake Road ("South Side"); . 

3) then return to repair the remaining portions ofthc North Side of the Deck. 

(B} Notwithstanding the 24-month schedule above, if Ottawa Towers 11, LLC, or any subsequent owner, 
leases the Judson tower (or portion thereof), the City shall, within twelve (12) months of the date that 
City is served written notice of such lease execution ("Notice of Lease"), complete the following 
Maintenance and Improvements to the Deck: 

I) all electrical and structural Maintenance and Improvements on the south side of the Deck; 
2) two elevators on the south side of the Deck; 
3) make both electrical and structural Maintenance and Improvements to have the 3,d floor on the 

north side of the Deck ready for parking; 
(C) Commencing upon May l, 2018, the City will reimburse Plaintiffs in advance on the first day of each 

month for the actual costs of providing electricity to the Deck and Tunnel ($4,374.00 per month) to 
continue until such time as the City can establish and assume the costs of providing electricity to the 
Deck and Tunnel; all payments to be paid electronically to an account designated by Plaintiffs on or 
before the first day of the month. The City shall immediately upon execution of this Agreement pay 
any past due invoices to Plaintiffs for the period after the signing of the Term Sheet until this 
Agreement is signed. As soon as is feasible, the City will have the electrical power for the Deck and 
Tunnel placed on the City's account with the electric provider, pay any actual costs associated with 
doing so, and thereafter pay the electrical charges directly. 

(D) FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTEM: A portion of the fire suppression system for the Phoenix Center that 
services the secured parking area on the second floor of the Deck (near Tower I) is connected to fire 

, pumping equipment located in the 31 Judson Tower. The City shall disconnect the tire suppression 
service pumping equipment from the 31 Judson Tower. There are 175 parking spaces within this 
secured parking area on the second floor of the Deck; the City agrees to provide 175 parking spaces 
within the Deck, free of charge to the owner of the 31 Judson Tower, their tenants and employees, until 
such time as City completes the work to disconnect/reconnect the fire suppression system as above 
described. 



EXHIBIT 3 -AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS 

AMENDMENT TO DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS 

J This Amendment to Declaration of Easements ("Amendment") is made as effective of the 
__ day of November, 2018, by the City of Pontiac, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Michigan, with offices at 450 E. Wide Track Drive> Pontiac, Michigan ("City"), and North Bay 
Drywall Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust, a California Pension and Profit Sharing Trust, ("North 
Bay») and Ottawa Tower II, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company with offices at 5111 l 
Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan ("Ottawa»). 

Background 

WHEREAS, the City declarnd that certain Declaration of Easements on May 8, 1980 
(uDeclaration"), and said Declaration was reco1·ded in the office of Oakland County Register of 
Deeds on May J 9, 1980, in Liber 7788, page 01; and 

WHEREAS, Notih Bay is now the owner of the office building located at 51111 
Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan, and leg&lly described in the Declaration and referred to 
therein as Parcel D; and 

WHEREAS, Ottawa is now the owner of the office building located at 3 l E. Judson Street, 
Pontiac, Michigan, and legally described in the Declaration and referred to therein as Paree! E; and 

WHEREAS, The City is the owner of all Sites legally described in the Declaration other 
than Parcel D and Parcel E (and the grassy lot]; and 

WHEREAS, the City, North Bay, and Ottawa desire herein to amend the Declaration; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 
consideration, the parties herein agree to amend the Declaration as herein provided: 

1. The following paragraph is added to the Declaration after Section l for the purpose of 
clarifying the rights of the parties in regards to parking in the Deck: 

Parking Easement in the Deck. The City hereby declares, grants conveys and reserves to 
and for the benefit of all Owners of the Parcels, and the tenants, subtenants and occupants 
thereof, and their respective agents, employees, customers and invitees, the right and 
easement to park passenger automobiles in the Deck located on Parcels K and A-1, and for 
ingress and egress thereto and therefrom, including but not limited to ingress and egress 
through any connectors, foyers and vestibules located within or connected to the Deck, and 
the right to drive passenger automobiles to and from the Deck and the parking spaces 
therein. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the City shall have the right to charge reasonable 



parking fees for the use of the Deck for parking., Further notwithstanding the forgoing, the 
Plaza located at the top level of the Deck is not for parking, except for temporary parking 
of service and maintenance vehicles, or specialty vehicles specifically pa1ticipating in 
events taking place on the top Plaza level of the Deck. 

2. The first complete paragraph of Section 3 of the Declaration is hereby amended and 
restated in its entirety, as follows: 

3. Common Walls. As used herein, the tenn "Common Walls" shall mean any and 
all common walls between the (a) Deck or Plaza and (b) the Ottawa Towers 
office buildings. The Owners of the respective parcels abutting any Common 
Wall shall have the following ,rights and obligations with respect to said 
Common Wall: 

4 .. Section 8 of the Declaration is hereby amended and restated in its entirety, as follows: 

8. Maintenance. Each Ownet· shall cause the parking areas, driveways and 
sidewalks contained within. its respective portion of the Project and any 
landscape areas contained therein to be continuously repaired and maintained, 
including cleaning, lighting, painting, landscaping, removal· of debris, removal 
of snow and ice, making of repairs to the driveways and sidewalks, and other 
similar maintenance, each at their own expense. 

5. The Parties represent and warrant to each other that, with the exception of this Amendment, 
there are no prior amendments of the Declaration to their knowledge. 

6. Except as specifically amended herein, all of the terms and provisions of the Declaration 
are hereby ratified and affirmed. To the extent of any conflict between the Declaration and 
this Amendment, the terms and provisions of this Amendment shall govern and control, 
and any conflicting terms and provisions of the Declaration shall be deemed amended to 
the extent necessary not to conflict with the provisions hereof. 

7. Capitalized terms used herein shall have the same meaning as used in the Declaration1 unless 
a different or contrary meaning is expressly provided in this Amendment. 

8. This Amendment shall be promptly recorded in the office of the Oakland County Register 
of Deeds by Ottawa. 



Dated: I/ / 1 Y , :w1 s __ __,___..;_ __ 

STi\l'E or lVllCHlGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

ClTY OF PONTIAC, a municipal 
eorpornlion of the Slate of M ichignn 

By: 
Dr. Deirdre W akrnian 

[ts: :'vluyor 

Acknowledged before me on _{L/L'{, 2018, by Dr. Deirdre Wntcrman, :Vlayor, for the 
City or Pontiac. 

ISEJ\Lj 

I I ' I , 
Dated: 1.,/;,',;1 f ·,c·- I , 2018 

ST1\TF OF Ml Cl lJ(JA\ ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

Acknowledged beforn me on ·-' 20 l 8, Charles Stephens, Trustee or i✓orth t3ay 
Drywall Inc. Pro/it Sharing Plan & Trust. 

[SEAL] , Notary Public 
···----- County, Michigan 
Acting in--····--- County, Ml 
tvly Commission Expires;. 



CALIFORNIA ALLwPURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE§ 1189 

A nota,y publlc or other officer completlng this certificate verlfles only the Identity of the !ndlvldual who signed the 
· document to which this certificate ls attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or valldlly of that document. 

State of California 

County of _...,,S,,,,...,..e:~~ ~a•=·;;,_.,'""'.,y=""f'1------ ) 

On -4-111-=--4--l ~,;_..:L,_,_,, '>5'------ before me, -~ A:l 1 T rt: . (1= 11 (.rr Cl,,. 1 I~,)~ L, 
Date Here Insert Namt'and Title of the Officer 

personally appeared _____ ..,c=-'-b'--"4'-'--'-,,.,-'-l=-e-~, ).,__.,,.S'-±!,--P:...-+'~\..,_)1,_,_,,.-"n-<-• ...... ·.__ _______ _ 
Name(t) of 8/gner(p 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evldenci to be the perso9(§) whose namet~lare 
§.tJpscrlbed to the within Instrument and acknowl~dged to me tha~/she/tney executed the same [D 

@/her/their authorized capaclty(lefs), and that.b.v.:filslher/thelr signatur~s) on the instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the persort(S)Elcted, executed the instrument. 

Place Notary Seal Above 

I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of Californla that the foregoing paragraph 
is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal: 

.. ~ 

--------------oPnONAL--------------
Though this section Is optional, completing this Information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattf3chment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document . l 
Title or Type of Document: -1A!:J::112M:.1.;<,,;.;ia ..... J,._,· Me:,~•~,;!J•·\~h:z::,,.~dl..c.·,,·..r..c·.1.,.l.,u;_,,:.u, c;;:i:k::l-''7:;t-.-"''''~J'---"-e-""'.:...· >.w'r!'""'h::.:•;.,;<•;.:...t-.....,·y,_ ___ _ 

. Document Date: _________________ Number of Pages: ____ _ 
Slgner(s) .Other Than Named Above: ___________________ _ 

Capacity(les) Cfalmed by S!gner{s} 
Signer's Name: _ __,_ ________ _ 
0 Corporate Officer ..:. Title(s): _____ _ 
0 Partner - D Limited D General 

Signer's Name: __________ _ 
D Corporate Officer - Tltle(s): _____ _ 
D Partner - D Limited D General 

D Individual D Attorney In Fact 0 lndlvldual O Attorney In Fact 
D Trustee D Guardian or Conservator D Trustee D Guardian or Qonservator 
D Other: ____________ _ D Other: ___ ....._ ________ _ 
Signer Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: _______ _ 

~~"'!il<;,~~~~~~~~~~~~.ioo:~~~~iW!e~~~:;wi 

©2015 National Notary Association • www.NatlonalNotary.org • 1·800-US NOTARY {1·800-676-6827) Item #5907 



PLEASE SEE ATTACHED 
CAL!FORNIP1 ALL-PURPOSE 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

Acknowledged before me on ___ , 2018, by Charles Stephens, Manager of Ottawa 
Tower II, LLC. 

[SEAL] 

Drafted by and when recorded, return to: 

Steven D. Sallen, Esq. 
Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, PC 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 2nd Floor 
Southfield, Michigan 48034 
248-827-1861 

, Notary Public 
_____ Count)\ Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, MI 
My Commission Expires: ___ _ 



CALIFORNfA ALL-PURPOSE .ACKNOWLEDGMSNT CIVIL CODE§ 1189 

A notary public or other off!cer·comple!fng this certificate verifies only the Identity of the lndlvldual who signed the 
· document to which this certlf!cate Is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of Ca!lfomla 

County of ~)o t'!Q ,1u·i ) 

On ............... 11~-\--~' v._> ___ beforeme,_::r~.,,_,.+l9 ·r ·:G)('L-· ~a±av-1 dJJ~. 
Date Hefe Insert Name and Title of the Officer 

personally appeared ------~(_,' J...,1.,,,µ.....,-f-'--'-,.,_]._,__c:::::,'---r_5,._:}1...:<"---+'\'>-'-'h'i--e-'1 ...... '.) -,,,'>------
Name{~ of Slgner'ijj 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence· to be t perso9{s) whose name )'.Jslare . I I ts \ 
~y_bscribed to the within Instrument and acknow¼3dged to me th~?/she/tney executed th same Jn 

(his/her/their authorized capacltyq6s), and that bS[tils/her/thelr slgnaturajs) on the Instrument the personlt), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the perso?(s) acted, executed the Instrument. 

. I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws 

. ' 

Place Notary Seal Above 

of the State of Callfornla that the foregoing paragraph 
Is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and offlclal sea : 

--------------opnoNAL--------------
Though this section Is optional, completing this Information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Doc~ment~ \ l ) f 
T!tle or Typ,e of Document: ({,,.,,,.,;.,:f .... td ~""' eke •,;.--r .-... c. J- er: k:: 1•'-"-"•1.::f-S 

. Document Date: _________________ Number of Pages: ____ _ 
Slgner(s) .Other Than Named Above: ____________________ _ 

Capaclty(les) Claimed by Slgner(s} 
Signer's Name:---=----------• Corporate Officer ..:. Tltle(s): _____ _ 

Signer's Name: ______ -,--___ _ 
D Corporate Officer - Tltle(s): _____ _ 

D Partner - D Limited D General 0 Partner - D Limited D General 
D lndlvldual D Attorney in Fact D lndlvldual D Attorney In Fact 
D Trustee D Guardian or Conservator D Trustee D Guardian or Qonservator 
D Other: ____________ _ 

D Other: ----'-----------
Signer Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: _______ _ 

,Mi.l>W~~~~~~~i;M 

©2015 National Notary Association• www.Nat!ona1Ncitary.org • i-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) Item #5907 

·I 

I 



EXHIBIT 4 -PARKING AGREEMENT 

PARlaNG AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into effective as of November_, 2018 between the City of 
Pontiac ("City"), North Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust ("North Bay") and Ottawa 
Tower II, LLC ("OTII"). OTII and North Bay may also be referred to as "Plaintiffs.I) 

Recitals 

1. North Bay and OTII are the owners and operators of two office towers ( each, a 
"Tower" and both, "Towers") that are located adjacent to the Phoenix Center Parking Deck & 
Plaza ("PC") which is owned by the City, 

2, The tenants, invitees and employees of North Bay and OTII utilize the PC for 
parking and ingress/egress to/from the PC and the Towers. 

3. A dispute previously arose between the City, on the one hand, and North Bay and 
0TH, on the other hand, relating to the PC. The City, North Bay and 0TH entered into a Settlement 
Agreement and Release contemporaneously with this Agreement to resolve their dispute, which 
resolution includes execution of this Agreement. 

4. As part of the settlement, the City, North Bay and OTII entered into an Amendment 
to Declaration of Easements ("Easement") regarding the use of the PC and related matters as set 
fotih in the Easement. 

5. The parties have agreed to the specific terms set forth in this Agreement relating to 
the parking rights of North Bay and OTII, in furtherance of the Settlement Agreement and Release 
and the Easement. 

Wherefore, the City, North Bay and 0TH agree as follows: 

(A) North Bay arid OTII shall be entitled to park in the PC at no charge for ten (10) years and 
six (6) months for the vehicles of all of their employees and their Tenants' employees 
beginning on the Effective Date of this Agreement. North Bay and OTII may renew this 
Agreement relating to parking for successive ten-year periods: (a) the maximum parking 
charge for years 11-20 shall be $20 per car, pe1· month, provided however that, (b) the 
maximum parking charge for years 21-30 shall increase to market rates, but in no event 
more that 100% higher than the preceding period, and ( c) the maximum parking charge for 
any following t O year period after year 30 shall be indexed according to the Consumer 



Price Index (Midwest). This parking agreement shall be freely assignable, in whole or in 
part, to any purchaser(s) of either or both of the Towers and binding on the City. 

(B) The City shall install a card-reader system (or the equivalent) and issue cards to Plaintiffs 
for the vehicles ofNorth Bay, OTil, their tenants and employees which cards will be at no 
cost to-North Bay, 0TH, and all of their tenan~s and their employees of both Towers. 
Parking cards shall be issued to Plaintiffs immediately upon their l'equest, with I, 183 cards 
being issued to Plaintiffs upon execution of this Agreement or as soon as such cards 
become required by the City. Upon leasing of the Judson Tower, the City shall 
immediately provide Plaintiffa with 618 cards. If Plaintiffs or any subsequent owners of 
Plaintiffs' buildings require any replacement cards in excess of I ,800, then a charge of $10 
per replacement card shall apply. 

(C) The public and visitors shall be charged mark~t rates for use of the Deck by the City; 
provided however, that the State of Michigan, as Tenant, shall be allowed to validate the 
parking tickets of its invitees and such invitees upon presenting the validated ticket shall 
not be charged for parking. 

(D) A reserved parking area is hereby established, for the duration of this Agreement, on the 
entire south portion of the Deck (being that portion of the Deck located to the south of 
Orchard Lake Road) and the entire n01th side (being that portion of the Deck located to the 
nmth of Orchard Lake Road) of the third :floor of the Deck and to be identified as parking 
solely for Plaintiffs (and successors and assigns), and their tenants and employees (wording 
and restrictions to be detennined by both Plaintiffs or any successor owner(s) of the 
Towers). The other parking areas of the Deck shall be available and useable by Plaintiffs, 
their tenants and employees on a first come, first served basis. The City acknowledges that 
Plaintiffs may designate within the forgoing reserved parking area ce1iain pal'king spaces 
for executive use, provided that the City shall have no obligation to enforce such executive 
use spaces. 

(E) The parking cards permitting free access are not assignable or transferrable by vehicle 
owners to any party other than Plaintiffs or Plaintiffs' tenants and their employees. 

(F) The parking card is the property of the City, and no property rights are transferred or 
intended to transfer to the parking card user by issuance or delivery of the parking card. 

(G) Plaintiffs agree not to resell ot· otherwise charge employees, visitors, or the public for the 
parking cards it receives under this Agreement. This provision does not apply to any 
provision in the lease(s) that Plaintiffs may sign with their tenants relating to any charges 
or rental rate(s). 

(H) This Agreement is intended to be complimentary to the Settlement Agreement and Release· 
and Easement and, in the event of any conflict between this Agreement and those 
documents, those documents shall control. This Agreement may be recorded with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds. 



(1) 

(.I) 

This Agrecrncnt eannol be modified without the signed written coll.sent of tlie ivlayor oflhe 
City and either Charles Stephens 01· his dcsignee hkntincd in writing as having his 
nurhority, or future owners of the Towers. 

This Agreement may be freely ussigned and trmrnfcrrcd by Plnintil'fs, in whole or in part, 
to any ftm11·c owners ol' eithe1· of the Towers. 

CJTY CW PONTJAC, a municipal 
corporation of(he Stnte ofi'ilkhigan 

Lly: 
Dr. Deirdre Watennan 

!ts: Mayor 



STATEOFMICHIOAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

Acknowledged before me on __ _, 2018, by Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor, for the 
City of Pontiac. 

[SEAL] 

} I I I ' Dated: 1vt t ,'·t1J f;J.:t. I 2018 

PLEAS~ SEE ATTACHED 
CALIFORNIA /.\LL~PURPOSE 

, Notary Public 
_____ County, Michigan 
Acting in ____ County, MI 
My Commission Expires: ___ _ 

AC!<NOWLEDC1~MENT FORM By: 

STATEOFM1CHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

Its: 

Acknowledged before me on ___ , 2018, by Charles Stephens, Trustee of North Bay 
Dr_ywall lnc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust. 

[SEAL) 

By: 
Charles Stephens 

Its: . //,'JJ,1,',,f h\,( 



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE: ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189 

A notary publfc or other officer comp!et!ng this certmcate veri/les only the Identity of the Individual who signed the 
· document to which this certificate Is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or valldlty of that document. 

State of California 

County of .Sa:n.<;?1-'t::u-:'I } ) 

on [ /-.. I ~ l 15 before me, ::Tl ~rt k1 'J. ·~ 7 C1-,- l1of ,-.,,r :z 
Date Hera insert Name an'd Title of the Officer 

personally appeared cha I'.:' le.:, ..S±-c (,,I) h ,,. n <,; 
Name/§) of Slgner(s} 

' .I. I I. 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence· to be the perso9(s) whose namejs',:Ts/are 
§JJbscrlbed to the within lnstrum~t and ackno~dged to me thatlie(.she/tliey executed the same ~ 

@S/her/the!r authorized capacity s), and that b;TJlls/her/thelr slgnatur~(s) on the Instrument the person)s}, 
or the entity upon behalf of whi~ the perso7(li) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENAL TY OF PERJURY under the laws 

Place Notary Seal Above 

of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
Is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal: 

--------------OPTIONAL--------------
Though this section Is optional, completing this Information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reatlflchment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 
Tlt!e or Type of Document: j?e::...-/c •+• ) k.,) re,•,. :v:/,,.. 

. Document Date: · Number of Pages: ____ _ 
Slgner(s) .other Than Named Above: _· ___________________ _ 

Capacity(les) Claimed by Slgner{s) 
Signer's Name:---'---------- Signer's Name: __________ _ 
• Corporate Officer ..:. Title(s): _____ _ D Corporate Officer - Tltle(s): _____ _ 
D Partner - D Limited D General 0 Partner - D Limited D General 
D Individual D Attorney In Fact 0 lndlvldual D Attorney In Fact 
D Trustee O Guardian or Conservator 0 Trustee O Guardian or Conservator 
D Other: ____________ _ 0 Other: ___ _,__ ________ _ 
Signer Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: _______ _ 

~~~'.M"ii&~~~'!i¾,~~~ 

©2015 National Notary Association• www.NatlonalNotary.org • 1-800-US NOTARY (1·800·876-6827} Item #5907 



CALIFORNJA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT. CIVIL CODE§ 1189 

A notary public or other officer comp!etlng this certiflcate verifies only the Identity of the lndlvldua! who signed the 
· document to which this certttlcate is attached, and not the trulhfu lriess, accuracy, or valldlty of that document. 

State of California 
County o1 . So nei,,,"l.__.:;7 ) 

On \ \ - \ - \ 9; before me, -~,.fk1 ·r rJ:,;'? )q_. aJ"h:Jr1 ~ 17le, 
Date Here Insert Name and 77tle of the Officer 

personally appeared ____ _,_C~l,..,.)=({~·r__.&:.c..--'>---..ac.s_..;·i-i'·-c"-r-1:>,.,_,.)1.;,...e_,_/'.._,7 ,..,.-,, ________ _ 

Namej§J of Signer(§) 

• / I _j 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence' to be t • person SJ whose namy1s1:Tufare 
subscribed to the within fnstrume t and acl<nowledged to me tha~~/she/th~y executed the same In 

<::@O,er/thelr authorized capaclt , and that,bf-fiis/her/the!r slgnaturei(s) on the Instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of whl 1 the persorf(s) acted, executed the Instrument. 

Place Notary Seal Above 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph 
Is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and offlclal seal: 

~ 

--------------oPnONAL--------------
Though this section Is optional, completing this Information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattfichment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 1 
Title or Type of Dooument: ----Vr-=o~,---'.\::.~·i'=11=«J..--/2_.~·:7--1-1~::r=""~·~~:x~·:\-;---. _________ _ 

. Document Date: _________________ Number of Pages: ____ _ 
Sfgner(s) .Other Than Named Above: ___________________ _ 

Capaclty(les) Claimed by Slgner(s) 
Signer's Name: _____________ _ Signer's Name: __________ _ 
D Corporate Officer ..:. Tltle(s): _____ _ 0 Corporate Officer - lltle(s): _____ _ 
0 Partner - 0 Limited D General D Partner - D Limited O General 
D Individual D Attorney In Fact 0 Individual D Attorney In Fact 
D Trustee D Guardian or Conservator • Trustee D Guardian or c;::onservator 
D Other: ____________ _ 0 Other: ____________ _ 
Slgner Is Representing: ________ _ Signer Is Representing: _______ _ 

~'lii:<,~trel,&1B$.-~iii<;,ii.W\W~1M$.-·!il<.l'!IJ$$iWW,;,~~~~~ 

©2015 Natlonal Notary Association • www.NatlonalNotary.org • 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) , Item #5907 



STA TE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

Acknowledged before me on ___ , 2018, by Charles Stephens, Manager of Ottawa 
Tower H, LLC. 

[SEAL] 

Drafted by and when recorded, return to; 

Steven D. Sallen, Esq. 
Maddin Hauser Roth & Heller, PC 
28400 Northwestern Highway, 2nd Floor 
Southfield, Michigan 48034 
248-827-186 I 

, Notary Public 
County, Michigan ~-,----,---

Acting in--,---- County, MI 
My Commission Expires: ___ _ 



EXHIBIT 5- CITY'S MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 

The City's Day-to-Day Management of tho Phoenix Center includes without limitation, the 
following activities: 

(A) Deck and Tunnel Maintenance: 

l) Lighting and lightbulbs. 
2) Painting of lines for parking spaces. 
3) Sweeping and trash removal. 
4) Snow and Ice Removal (including salting). 

(B) Plaza Maintenance: 

5) Landscaping. 
6) Trash removal. 

7) Snow and ice removal (including salting) as necessary to keep drains clear. 

(C) Security. For avoidance of doubt, during the period described in Section 8.0 of the Settlement 
Agreement, wherein Plaintiffs shall continue their services at the Phoenix Center, Plaintiff's 
obligations for security shall be limited to the south section of the Deck, from 7:00 am to 7:00 
pm, Monday through Fridays, excluding holidays. Any additional security services requested 
by the City will cost extra. 

(D) Snow and ice removal on short section of Saginaw Street north of Judson street, to the south 
entrance of the Deck, only. 



F:XHIHIT<i 
QUITCLAIM DICED FOR ATRHJM CONNECTOR-- ,HJDSON TOWER 

QU1TCLAIM mmn 

Grantor: The City of Pontiac, u Michignn tvlunicipal Corporation, with an address ol' 47450 
Woodward /\venue, Pontiac, Michigan 48:142, quitclnims to: 

(;rnntcc: Ottawa Tower II, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, whose address is 715 
Southpoint Boulevard, Suite B, Petaluma, California 94954, any and all of Grantor's right, title, 
m1d interest in, any of the real property and improvements located upon the folkl\ving described 
premises situated in Pontiac, Oakland County, tvlichigan, to-wit: 

SEE ATTACHED EX!IIB!T ";\" (the "Property") 

For the sum of': One and 00/100 ($ J .00) Dollar. 

Dakd: /1 / 2018 

STATE OF MIC! llCiAN ) 
) 

COUNTY OF 0/\KL,\ND ) 

GRJ\NTOR: 

CITY rn: PONTIAC, 
a Mkhigan Municipal Corporation 

Deirdre \Vatcrman 
Its: tvlayor 

The foregoing instrument was a<.:knowledgcd hcfon.: me __ ///LY,.,,_· ___ , 20 l S bv Deirdre 
Waterman, the Mayor of the City or Pontiac. . 

Instrument Drafted by: 
Steven D. Sallcn, Esq. 
rv!uddin Hauser Wurtcll Roth & Heller, PC 
23400 Nonhwcstcrn HigiJwuy, 3"1 Floor 
Southfield, Ml •18034 
(248) 827-1 S(ll 

When recordcd, return to: Grantee 
Send subsequent tix bills to: Grantee 

p I ' /\ (1, d . 
/:J.<•l:Lfr Jtu t:' JS:,,,itt1.1t:.l:A2~~-

./ ' . 
Notary Public, ___ {bl'/a1JL Coqnty, :\•yl, ... ( 
My Conunission Expin:s: ____ f..,fl,J_/QPI I 



EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

All real property and improvements, including but not limited to a two-story atrium and 
connector area adjacent to the office tower, located upon the following parcel with a common 
street address of 31 East Judson Street, Pontiac, Michigan, and as legally described as: 

Being all or parts of the following lots and parcels in the City of Pontiac, Oakland 
County, Michigan, Lot numbers l through 8 and 14, 15 and that part of vacated Auburn 
Avenue of Assessor's Plat No. 130, as recorded in Liber 54A, Page 71, Oakland County 
Records, more particularly described as follows: Beginning at a point located Northerly 
79.00 feet along the Easterly right of way line of Saginaw Street from the Northwest 
corner of Lot 16 of said Assessor's Plat No. 130, said point of beginning also being a 
point on the North right of way line of New Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees 30 
minutes 01 seconds West 144,67 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds 
East 128.00 feet; thence North 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds West, 2.42 feet; thence 
North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East 64.00 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 
minutes 05 seconds East 2.42 feet; thence North 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds East 
124.91 feet; thence South 14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East 181. 79 feet to a point on 
the Northerly right of way line of Judson Street; thence along said Judson right of way 
line North 85 degrees 36 minutes 10 seconds West 6.48 feet to the beginning of a curve; 
thence along a curve to the left 214.75 feet, said curve having a radius of 648.70 feet, 
delta of 18 degrees 58 minutes 04 seconds, chord bearing and distance of South 84 
degrees 54 minutes 44 seconds West 213. 77 feet; thence South 7 5 degrees 25 minutes 42 
seconds West 100.00 feet to point of beginning. 

Together with the right lo the use of the following land in accordance with a License 
Agreement as granted by Pontiac City Commission meeting December 4, 1979, 
Resolution No. 738 to Downtown Pontiac Development Company, recorded in Liber 
7788, Page 142, as more clearly described, limited and defined as; A parcel of land being 
part of the Saginaw Street right of way adjacent to Lots l, 2, 3 and 4 of Assessor's Plat 
No. 130, as recorded in Liber 54A, Page 71, Oakland County Records, more particularly 
described as follows: Beginning at a point located Northerly 79.00 feet along the Easterly 
right of way line of Saginaw Street from the Northwest corner of Lot No. 16 of Assessor's 
Plat No. 130, in the Northeast 1/4 of Section 32, City of Pontiac, Oakland County, 
Michigan, said point of beginning also being a point on the North right of way line of 
New Judson Street; thence North 14 degrees 30 minutes 01 seconds West 144.67 feet; 
thence South 75 degrees 27 minutes 55 seconds West 15.09 feet to a point; thence South 
14 degrees 32 minutes 05 seconds East 144.68 feet to a point; thence North 75 degrees 25 
minutes 42 seconds East 15.00 feet to the point of beginning. 

Commonly known as: 31 East Judson Street, Pontiac, Michigan· i -· • • 

Tax Parcel Identification No.: 14-32-227-002 



Appendix 2 - Authorizing Resolutions to Issue Request for Proposals 

2.1 Resolution 19-467 I Leasing of the Phoenix Center 

l 9-467 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to issue a Request for Proposals an "RirP") to 
invite qualified parties to submit proposals for the leasing of tlte Phoenix Center facility. Moved by 
Councilperson Watel'man and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the ''City"), owns that certain 
facility within the City consisting of a parking garage, amphitheater and plaza commonly known as the 
Phoenix Center; and 
WHEREAS, the City was a party to certain lawsuits in the Oakland County Circuit Comi (case nos. !2-
130331-CH and 14-139761-CC) related to the maintenance and improvement of the Phoenix Center 
which were disposed of pursuant to a settlement agreement (the "Settlement Agreement") between the 
City and Ottawa Tower 11, LLC and the North Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust; and 
WHEREAS, the terms of the Settlement Agreement require the City to make certnin improvements to the 
Phoenix Center; and 
WHEREAS, the City Council of'the City desires to explore all options related to the City's continued 
ownership or disposition of the Phoenix Center before it determines to issue bonds to provide funds to 
pay the expenses related to the Phoenix Center improvements; and 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to issue an Request for Proposals to sock proposals from qualified 
parties related to a potential disposition of the Phoenix Center as an option to satisfy the terms of the 
Settlement Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. Re_q_\Jest for Proposals; Publication. The City is hereby authorized and directed to issue a Request. 
for Proposnls (on "RFP") to invite qirnlificd parties to submit proposals for the lensing of the Phoenix 
Center. 
The RFP shall contain, at a minimum, all material information related to the Phoenix Center, including 
the terms of the Settlement Agreement, the scope ol'the improvements required under the Settlement 
Agreement and ail easements applicable to the Phoenix Center. 
A proposal shall be deemed qualified if it is submitted by a parly that, at minimum, is able to demonstrate 
it possesses sufficient capital to finance lhe continued operation and improvements to the Phoenix Center 
required under the Settlement Agreement. 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to publish the RPP in accordance with the City's procurement 
process in a manner designed to incur the broadest circulation possible. 

2. Authorization of Other Actions; Submission of Proposals. 
The J:vlayor and other appropriate personnel are hereby authorized to take all other necessary actions 
required to prepare and publish the RFP. 



If proposals are submitted in paper format, the RFP shall require that two copies be submitted to the City. 
One copy shall be retained by the Mayor's staff and one copy shall be submitted to the City Clerk. 
If the proposals are submitted electronically, the RFP shall require that the City Clerk be copied on each 
submission. 

3. Severability. If any one or more sections, clauses or provisions of this Resolution shall be 
determined by a court of competent jmisdiclion to be invalid 01· ineffective for any reason, such 
determination shall in no way affect the validity and effectiveness of the remaining sections, clauses and 
provisions hereof. 

Ayes: Pietila, Waterman, Williams and Miller 
No: Taylor~Burks and Caiter 
Resolution Passed. 

I, Sheila R. Grandison, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the above 
Resolution is a true and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pontiac 
on September 10, 2019. 

November 21, 2019 



2.2 Resolution 19-468 I Management of the Phoenix Center 

19-468 Resolution to authorize the Mayor to issue a Request for Proposals (an "RFP") to 
invite qualified parties to submit pl'oposu]s for the management of the Phoenix Center facility. 
Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, County of Oaldand, State of Michigan (the "City"), owns that certain 
facility within the City consisting of a parking garage, amphitheater and plaza commonly known as the 
Phoenix Center; and 
WHEREAS, the City was a party to certain lawsuits in the Oakland County Circuit Court ( case nos. 12-
130331-CH and 14-139761-CC) related to the maintenance and improvement o/'tbe Phoenix Center 
which were disposed of pursuant to a settlement agreement (the "Settlement Agreement") between the 
City and Ottawa Towl;)r II, LLC and the North Bay Drywall, Inc. Profit Sharing Plan & Trust; and 
WHEREAS, the terms of the Settlement Agreement require the City to make certain improvements to the 
Phoenix Center; and 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City desires to explore all options related to the City's contimted 
ownership or disposition of the Phoenix Center before it determines to issue bonds to provide funds to 
pay the expenses related to the Phoenix Center improvements; and 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to issue an Request for Proposals to seek proposals from qualified 
parties related to a potential disposition of the Phoenix Center as an option to satisfy the terms of the 
SeHlemcnt Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

I . Request for Proposals: Publication. The City is hereby authorized and directed to issue a Request 
for Proposals (an "RFP") (o invite qualified parties to submit proposals for the management of the 
Phoenix Center. 
The RFP shall contain, at a minimum, all material information rel.ated to the Phoenix Center, including 
the terms of the Settlement Agreement, the scope of the improvements required under the Settlement 
Agreement 1md all easements applicable to the Phoenix Center. 
A proposai shall be deemed qualified if it is submitted by a party that, a( minimurn, is able to demonslrnlc 
it possesses sufficient capital to finance the continued operation of the Phoenix Center required under the 
Settlement Agreement. 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to publish the RFP in accordance with the City's procurement 
process in a manner designed to inem the broadest circulation possible. 

2. Authorization of Other Actions; Submission of Proposals. 
The Mayor and other appropt'iatc personnel are hereby authorized to take all other necessary actions 
required to prepare and publish the RFP. 
If proposals are submiitl;)d in pape1· format, the RFP shall require that two copies be submitted to the City. 
One copy shall be retained by the Mayor's staff and one copy shall be submitted to the City Clerk. 



lfthe proposals are submitted electronically, the RFP shall require that the City Clerk be copied on each 
submission. 

3. Scverability. If any one or more sections, clauses or provisions of this Resolution shall be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, such 
determination shall in no way affect the validity and effectiveness of the remaining sections, clauses and 
provisions hereof. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Waterman, Williams, Miller and Pietila 
No: Carter 
Resolution l'assed. 

1, Sheila R. Grandison, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby certify that the above 
Resolution is a true and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pontiac 
on September 10, 2019. 

/ 

November 21, 2019 



2.3 Resolution 19-469 I Public Private Partnership for the Phoenix Center 

19-469 Resolution to authorize Mayor to issue Request for Proposals (RFP) to invite 
qualified pnrtics to submit proposals for a Public Private Partnet'ship with a qualified party or 
parties for the Phoenix Center facility. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the "City"), owns that certain 
facility within the City eonsisting of a parking garage, amphitheater and plaza commonly known as the 
Phoenix Center; and 
WHEREAS, the City was a party to certain lawsuits in the Oakland County Circuit Court (case nos. 12-
130331-CH and 14-139761-CC) related to the maintenance and improvement of the Phoenix Center 
which were disposed of pursuant to a settlement agreement (the "Settlement Agreement") between the 
City and Ottawa Tower 11, LLC and the North Bay Drywall, lnc. Profit Sharing Plan & Tnist; and 
WHEREAS, the terms of the Settlement Agreement require the City to make certain improvements to the 
Phoenix Center; and 
\VHEREAS, the City Council of the City desires to explore all options related to the City's continued 
ownership or disposition of the Phoenix Center before it determines to issue bonds to provide funds to 
pay the expenses related to the Phoenix Center improvements; and 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to issue ::m Request for Proposals to seek proposals from q11aliticd 
pnrtfos related to a potential disposition of the Phoenix Center as an option to satisfy the terms of the 
Settlement Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED THAT: 

l. Request for Proposals; Publication. The City is hereby authorized and directed to issue a Request 
for Proposals (an "RFP") to invite qualified paiiies to submit proposals for a public private partnership 
with a qualified party or parties. 
The RFP shall contain, at a minimum, all material information related to the Phoenix Center, including 
the terms oflhe Settlement Agreement, !he seope oCthe improvements required under the Settlement 
Agreement and all easements applicable lo thtl Phoenix Ceulcr. 
A proposal shall be deemed qualified if it is submitted by a party that, at minimum, is able to demonstrate 
it possesses sufficient capital to finance the continued operation and improvements to the Phoenix Center 
required under the Settlement Agreement. 
The City Clerk is authorized and directed to publish the RFP in accordance with the City's procurement 
process in a mHnner designed to incur the broadest circulation possible. 

2. Authorization of Other Actions; Submission of Proposal~. 
The Mayor and other appropriate personnel are hereby authorized to take all other necessary actions 
required to prepare and publish the RFP. 



If proposals are submitted in paper format, the RFP shall require that two copies be submitted to the City. 
One copy shall be retained by the Mayor's staff and one copy shall be submitted to the City Clerk. 
lfthe proposals are submitted clectl'onically, the RFP shall require that the City Clerk be copied on each 
submission. 

3. Scverabilit:y. If any one or more sections, clauses or p1·ovisions of this Resolution shall be 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, such 
determination shall in no way affect the validity and effectiveness of the remaining sections, clauses and 
provisions hereof. 

Ayes: Waterman, Williams, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: Carter 
Resolution Passed. 

I, Sheila R. Grandison, Deputy City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby ccrti(y that the above 
Resolution is a true and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pontiac 
on September l 0, 2019, 

November 21, 2019 



Appendix 3 - Facility Condition Assessment 

Phoenix Center Parking Deck and Rooftop Amphitheater 
Facility Condition Assessment 

September 2018 
Revised October 2, 2018 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue 

Pontiac, Michigan 

IDS Project No. 18193-1000 



Introduction 

Integrated Design Solutions, LLC (IDS) was commissioned by the City of Pontiac to conduct a facility assessment of 
the existing Phoenix Center Parking Deck and Rooftop Amphitheater, for the purpose of evaluating and identifying 
items which require renewal, repair, upgrades or replacement. Field survey work was conducted on August 7, 2018, 
August 21, 2018 and August 24, 2018. The facility was surveyed with the assistance of City of Pontiac personnel. 

The report compiled a list of all deficient structural, architectural, mechanical and electrical items that, in our 
professional opinion, would require replacement, enhancement and/or repair in order to meet the goals of preserving 
and improving the assets of the facility. Itemized deficiencies are not meant to change the facility layouts or 
functions. 

The IDS survey team has reviewed all documents provided by the City of Pontiac. The findings are limited to the 
information provided within the site and by facility personnel during the site visit. Additionally, there were no forensic 
evaluations or destructive testing of any kind performed. 

The IDS survey team evaluated each deficiency discovered during the survey period and assigned a score. The 
scores range from the most critical items that are considered to be a hazard to life, health or safety to the least 
critical, such as aesthetics. 

Facility Overview 

Use ............................................... Rooftop Amphitheater and Parking Deck 
Parking Deck Year Built ............... 1980/1981 
Amphitheater Year Built ............... 2000 
Parking Deck Area ....................... 874,000 square feet 
Amphitheater Area ....................... 292,000 square feet 

Findings 

The assessment recommends multiple repairs that include both short-term and long-term items that address the 
improvement goals of the facility. The recommendations should not be construed as meaning the entire building is 
deficient. Rather, over time, the systems upgrades have not kept pace with comparable facilities. Additionally, the 
facility has been subject to vandalization and several systems have been scavenged. 

The following is a summary of recommended repairs/corrections identified in the assessment: 

Structural 

• Repair failed post tension cables. 
• Replace precast concrete panel supports. 

Architectural 

• Replace elevators. 
• Replace corroded doors and frames. 
• Replace damaged interior finishes. 
• Replace roofing systems. 

Mechanical 

• Replace above ground storm drainage system. 
• Replace above ground sanitary drainage system. 
• Replace plumbing fixtures. 
• Replace HVAC systems, including heaters, furnaces and fans. 
• Replace domestic water system. 

Fire Protection 

• Replace diesel fire pump. 
• Replace standpipe water service pit. 



Electrical 

• Replace parking garage primary system. 
• Replace substations. 
• Replace lighting systems. 
• Replace emergency power generation system. 
• Replace fire alarm system. 
• Replace telephone/data systems and wiring. 
• Replace security system. 
• Replace existing electrical devices, conduits and wiring. 

Prioritization and Cost 

"Scores" have been assigned to each item; providing a proposed order of implementation. Therefore, an item with a 
score of 1 should be implemented within a first phase of construction, and a score of 3 would be implemented in a 
final phase of construction. Additionally, the score categorizes the urgency of need; ranging from Critical (Level 1) to 
Recommended (Level 3). 

Scores are: 

Level 1: Critical (1-3 years) 

Includes all immediate scope to preserve the building structure and envelope, provide major electrical, HVAC, and 
plumbing infrastructure systems, and provide a safe environment for occupants. 

Level 2: Necessary (4-6 years) 

Includes deferred scope relating to safety and security required to make or keep the building functional for occupant 
use. If not accomplished in the near future, additional function could be lost and greater expense incurred. 

Level 3: Recommended (+7 years) 

Includes work that is not as time sensitive as items listed in Levels 1 and 2. This scope of work should be 
appropriately planned and budgeted for. If not accomplished, these items could lead to future failure of equipment 
and deterioration of property, loss of equipment efficiency, higher utility expenses and increased maintenance costs. 
This work is essential to protect, preserve, or restore facilities and equipment over the long term. 

Additional estimates of probable costs were calculated for each deficiency. The following tables summarize the 
estimated costs to correct the identified deficiencies based on the "category" of the deficiency and the "score" of the 
deficiency. 

Tables and graphs for the Parking Deck, the Amphitheater and the entire facility are provided. 

Forensic Investigation 

In addition to the assessment, a forensic investigation has been commissioned to determine the cause of the post 
tension cable failures which continue to occur in the parking structure deck. Walker Consultants has been retained to 
perform the investigation. Additional repairs and preventative measures were recommended in their investigative 
report. The associated costs for these recommendations have been incorporated in this summary. 



Phoenix Center Parking Deck and Rooftop Amphitheater 

Summary 

Building 
2018 Construction Costs (No Mark-ups) 

Structural Architectural 

Phoenix Center Parking Deck and Rooftop Amphitheater $ 1,728,837 $ 3,367,570 
35% Proiect Mark-uos & Fees $ 930,913 $ 1,813,307 

Grand Total $ 2,659,750 $ 5,180,877 

Deficiencies by Category Type 

$6,082,171 

$5,180,877 

$2,662,241 

Deficiencies by Score 

Mechanical Electrical 

$ 
$ 
$ 

1,972,030 $ 4,505,312 
690,211 $ 1,576,859 

2,662,241 $ 6,082,171 

11!1 Structural 

Architectural 

Mechanical 

1 Electrical 

Level 1 

::i Level 2 

Level 3 

35% Project 2018 Project 
Sub Total Mark-ups & Costs 

Fees 
$ 11,573,749 $ 5,011,290 s 16,585,039 
$ 5,011,290 

-

$ 16,585,039 



Phoenix Center Parking Deck 

Summary 

Building 

Phoenix Center Parking Deck 
35% Pro!ect Mark-uos & Fees 

Grand Total 

Deficiencies by Category Type 

$5,318,341 

Deficiencies by Score 

$ 
s 
$ 

2018 Construction Costs (No Mark#ups) 

Structural Architectural 

1,728,837 $ 2,992,894 s 
930,913 s 1,611,559 $ 

2,659,750 $ 4,604,453 $ 

Mechanical Electrical 

1,506,845 $ 3,939,512 
527,396 $ 1,378,829 

2,034,241 $ 5,318,341 

Iii Structural 

~ Architectural 

Mechanical 

i Electrical 

!!I Level 1 

;;: Level 2 

Level 3 

35% Project 2018 Project 
Sub Total Mark-ups & Costs 

Fees 
$ 10,168,088 $ 4,448,697 $ 14,616,785 
$ 4,448,697 ! 
$ 14,616,785 



Phoenix Center Rooftop Amphitheater 

Summary 

Building 

Phoenix Center Rooftop Amphitheater 
35% Proiect Mark-ups & Fees 

Grand Total 

Deficiencies by Category Type 

Deficiencies by Score 

$ 
$ 
$ 

2018 Construction Costs (No Mark-ups) 

Structural Architectural 

- $ 426,981 
$ 149,443 

$ 576,424 

Mechanical Electrical 

$ 
$ 
$ 

465,185 $ 565,800 
162,815 $ 198,030 
628,000 $ 763,830 

!Iii Structural 

Ill Architectural 

Mechanical 

1 Electrical 

ill! Level 1 

"! Level 2 

Level 3 

35% Project 
2018 Project 

Sub Total Mark-ups & Costs 
Fees 

$ 1,457,965 $ 510,288 $ 1,968,253 
$ 510,288 
$ 1,968,253 



Appendix 4 - Form to Submit Proposer's Questions 

Instructions: At or before 5:00 pm ET on December 2, 2019, Proposers may submit written requests for 

clarification of this RFP and/or questions to the City by utilizing this form. Please submit the completed 

form via email to [JMassey@pontiac.mi.us]. Written responses to properly submitted relevant requests 

for clarification and/or questions from Proposers will be posted by the City's website or BidNet by 

5:00 pm ET on December 9, 2019. Solicitation of information or contact with any City elected official, 

appointee, board member, employee, or agent of the City, or other associated personnel concerning 

this RFP other than through the designated form and process described herein is prohibited and may 

result in disqualification of the Proposer and its proposal. 

* * * 

Contact Information: All fields must be completed by the Proposer submitting the form. 

Name (Please Print): ____________________________ _ 

ProposerTeam: --------------------------------
Company/Affiliation: ____________________________ _ 

Email Address: ______________________________ _ 

Telephone Number: _____________________________ _ 

RFP Section/ Page 
Request for Clarification and/or Question 

Appendix No. No. 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Appendix 5 - Registration and Release of Liability Form 

Instructions: Any Proposer that submitted a Proposal and intends to submit a Best and Final Offer 

(BAFO) must attend a mandatory tour of the Phoenix Center Facility to be held on January 15, 2020 at 

1:00 pm ET. Each Proposer member wishing to attend the mandatory tour must pre-register by 

completing this form and submit the completed form via email to: [JMassey@pontiac.mi.us] Five (5) 

business days before the scheduled mandatory tour. This Registration and Release of Liability Form can 

accommodate the signature of one person. Proposer members who do not pre-register will not be 

allowed to attend the tour. 

Pre-registered Proposer members will first meet and check-in for the site tour at the Phoenix Center 

Facility located at 47251 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Ml 48342. The tour is expected to last two (2) 

hours. At least one member of the Proposer's team must pre-register and attend the mandatory tour 

or their Proposal may be disqualified. 

*** 
The undersigned hereby releases the City of Pontiac, Michigan, including all departments, agencies, 

boards, employees, and/or any tenant(s), from liability for any injury and/or damages (if any) resulting 

from the undersigned's tour of the Phoenix Center Facility. 

The undersigned also agrees to take reasonable precautions to prevent any damage to the Phoenix 

Center Facility arising from their tour thereof and to replace, or fully compensate the City at 

replacement value for any damages to the Phoenix Center Facility arising from the tour of the Phoenix 

Center Facility. 

Signature: _____________ _ Date: ______________ _ 

Name (Please Print): ____________________________ _ 

ProposerTeam: ______________________________ _ 

Company/Affiliation: ____________________________ _ 

Telephone Number: __________ _ E-mail: _____________ _ 

Company Address: _____________________________ _ 

Do you require special tour accommodations for a disability? (check one) Yes: __ _ No: __ _ 

If yes, please describe: ___________________________ _ 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Pai1nership of the Phoenix Center Facility 



Appendix 6- Designation of Confidential and Proprietary Information Form 

The attached material submitted in response to this RFP includes proprietary and confidential 

information or is otherwise material that can be kept confidential under the Michigan Freedom of 
Information Act (Act 442 of 1976, as amended). As such, we ask that certain pages, as indicated 

below, of this proposal response be treated as confidential material and not be released without our 

written approval. 

Prices always become public information when proposals are opened, and therefore cannot be kept 
confidential. 

We request that the following pages not be released: 

Item Section Page(s) Topic 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

IN THE EVENT THE DESIGNATION OF CONFIDENTIALITY OF THIS INFORMATION IS CHALLENGED, THE 

UNDERSIGNED HEREBY AGREES TO PROVIDE LEGAL COUNSEL OR OTHER NECESSARY ASSISTANCE TO 

DEFEND THE DESIGNATION OF CONFIDENTIALITY. 

Failure to include this form in the proposal response may mean that all information provided as part of 
the proposal response will be open to examination and copying. The City considers other markings of 

confidential in the proposal document to be insufficient. The undersigned agrees to hold the City 
harmless for any damages arising out of the release of any materials unless they are specifically 

identified above. 

Company Name: 

Authorized Representative (Signature) 

Authorized Representative (Type or Print Name): 

Date: 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 





Pontiac City Council Resolution 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Pontiac City Council approves its 2020 meeting 
schedule. 



The Pontiac City Council 

Announces 

THE SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS OF THE PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

To comply with the Michigan Open Meeting Act (MCL 15.265) 

The Pontiac City Council will hold its regular meeting on Tuesday evenings at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of City Hall 4 7450 Woodward Ave Pontiac, Michigan 48342 unless otherwise noted. 

Internet website where meetings are posted www.pontiac.mi.us 

The dates are as follows: 

Thursday, January 7, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Session 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, January 21, 2020 Noon Formal Meeting 
Monday, January 27, 2020 3:00 p.m. Special Meeting 
Tuesday, January 28, 2020 6:00p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, February 4, 2020 6:00 p.m. Fonnal Meeting 
Tuesday, February 11, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, February 25, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, March 3, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, March 12,,2020 Noon Study Session 
Tuesday, March 17, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, March 24, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, March 31, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, April 7, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, April 14, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, April 21, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, April 28, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, May 5, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, May 12, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, May 19, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, May 26, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, June 2, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, June 9, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, June 16, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 



Tuesday, June 23, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, June 30, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, July 7, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, July 14, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, July 21, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, July 28, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Thursday, August 6, 2020 Noon Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, August 11, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, August 18, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, August 25, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, September 1, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, September 8, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, September 22, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, September 29, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, October 6, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, October 13, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, October 20, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, October 27, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Thursday, November 5, 2020 Noon Study Session 
Tuesday, November 10, 2020 Noon Formal Session 
Tuesday, November 17, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, November 24, 2020 Noon Formal Session 
Tuesday, December 1, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, December 8, 2020 6:00 p.m. Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, December 15, 2020 6:00 p.m. Study Session 
Tuesday, December 22, 2020 Noon Formal Meeting 
Tuesday, December 29, 2020 Noon Study Session 

City of Pontiac 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, Michigan 48342 248-758-3200 





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, City Engineer 

December 12, 2019 

Resolution to Appoint DPW Deputy Director to NoHaz Committee Rep 

WHEREAS, the city of Pontiac is committed to the protection of the natural environment 
and preventing toxic materials from entering our waterways and landfill resources; and 

WHEREAS, a NoHAZ lnterlocal Agreement has been drafted to address necessary legal, 
liability, and responsibility issues for both the City and the participating communities, and 
identifies Oakland County's role in administering and managing the NoHaz program, 

WHEREAS, the NoHaz lnterlocal agreement establishes a NoHaz advisory board to assist 
and advise Oakland County in the development of the NoHaz program. 

Now Therefore be it Resolved: That the City of Pontiac through this resolution appoint Dan 
Ringo as its official representative to the NoHaz Advisory Board, to work with the Oakland 
County Waste Resource Management Division as needed to plan the NoHaz program for 
2020. 

JVB 

attachments 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

Thru: 

Cc: 

DATE: 

Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

Ashley Johnson, MIDC Executive 

Office of Deputy Mayor, Jane Bais-DiSessa 

Anthony Chubb, City Attorney for the City of Pontiac, Lynette Ward 50th District 
Court Administrator, Chief Judge Cynthia Walker 

November 14, 2019 

RE: lnterlocal Agreement for Mandated Michigan Indigent Defense 
Commission Continuing Legal Education Requirements 

For your consideration is attached the lnterlocal Agreement for Mandated Michigan Indigent 
Defense Commission Continuing Legal Education Requirements the agreement has been 
reviewed and approved by the City Attorney, Anthony Chubb. Pursuant to the MIDC 
Standard 1 - Education and Training, requires local funding units to fund, establish, 
implement, and monitor basic and continuing legal education (CLE) requirements for 
attorneys who represent indigent defendants. In order to effectively and efficiently comply 
with the MIDC Standard 1, the County and the other local funding units have identified a 
collaboration with the Oakland County Bar Association to provide the mandated continuing 
legal education programming for attorneys who represent indigent defendants within the 
County. 

The lnterlocal Agreement provides that the County will apply for grants from the MIDC, 
receive all MIDC CLE grant funding and will act as the grant administrator for all local 
funding units within the County for the purposes of complying with MIDC Standard 1. The 
lnterlocal Agreement further provides that the County will contract with a single provider, 
the Oakland County Bar Association, to provide continuing legal education programming 
and compliance monitoring for all attorneys who represent indigent defendants within the 
County in compliance with MIDC. 

As such, the following resolution is respectfully recommended for City Council 
consideration: 

WHEREAS M/DC Standard 1 - Education and Training, requires local funding units to fund, 
establish, implement, and monitor basic and continuing legal education (CLE) requirements 
for attorneys who represent indigent defendants; and 

WHEREAS to effectively and efficiently comply with the MIDC Standard 1, the County and 
the other local funding units have identified a collaboration with the Oakland County Bar 
Association to provide the mandated continuing legal education programming for attorneys 
who represent indigent defendants within the County; and 



Memo - lnterlocal Agreement for M/DC Continuing Education Requirements 
November 14, 2019 
Page 2 of 2. 

WHEREAS the lnterlocal Agreement provides that the County will apply for grants from the 
MIDC, receive all MIDC CLE grant funding and will act as the grant administrator for all local 
funding units within the County for the purposes of complying with MIDC Standard 1; and 

WHEREAS the lnterlocal Agreement further provides that the County will contract with a 
single provider, the Oakland County Bar Association, to provide continuing legal education 
programming and compliance monitoring for all attorneys who represent indigent 
defendants within the County in compliance with MIDC Standard 1; and 

WHEREAS the County may terminate or cancel the lnterlocal Agreement, in whole or in 
part, immediately upon notice to local funding units if the third-party funding for Standard 1 
from the MIDC is reduced or eliminated. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves and authorizes the 
attached lnterlocal Agreement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the Mayor and/or 
designee to execute the attached lnterlocal Agreement between the County and any local 
funding unit within the County that signs the Agreement. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that no budget amendment is required at this time. 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

OAKLAND COUNTY 

AND 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

REGARDING GRANT APPLICATION SERVICES 

FOR MIDC CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION UEQUIREMENTS 

This Agreement C' Agreement!)) is made between the County of Oak.land, (' 1Countyii), a Micliigan 
Constitutional and Munjcipal Corporation, whose address is 1200 North Telegraph, Pontiac, 
Michigan 48341 and the City of Pontiac, ("Funding UnW\ whose address is 47450 Woodward 
A venue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. ln this Agreement, the County and Funding Unit may also be 
referred to jointly as the HParties. 11 

PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT. The County and Funding Unit enter Into this Agreement 
pursuant to Michigan law to comply with the Michigan Indigent Defense Commission Act of2013, 
2013 Public Act 93, MCL 780,981 et seq. regarding continuing legal education for court appointed 
criminal defense attorneys. 

1n consideration of the mutual prnmises, obligations, representations, and assurances in this 
Agreement, the Parties agree to the following: 

1. DEFJNlTIONS. In addition to any other defined terms in this Agreement (e.g., 
"Agreement," <1Countyt "Funding Unit/' c.Pa1iy/' or"Parties/1 etc,), the following words and 
expressions used throughout this Agreement, whether used jn the singular or plural, shall be 
defined, and_interpretcd as follows: 

1.1. Claim(s) mean any alleged losses, claims, complaints, demands for relief or damages, 
lawsuits, causes of action, proceedings, judgments, deficiencies, liabilities, penalties, 
litigation, costs, and expenses, including, but not limited to, reimbursement for 
reasonable attorney fees, witness fees, cou1t costs, investigation expenses, litigation 
expenses, amounts paid in settlement, and/or other amounts or liabilities of any kind 
which are incurred by 01· asserted against County or Funding Unit, or for which County 
or Funding Unit may become legally and/or contractually obligated to pay or defend 
against, whether direct, indirect or consequential, whether based upon any alleged 
violation of the federal or the state constitution, any federal or state statute, rnle, 
regulation, or any alleged violation of federal or state common law, whether any such 
claims are brought in law or equity, tort, contract, or otherwise, and/or whether 
commenced 01· threatened. 

1.2. CLE means continuing legal education, 

l.3. CLE Progrn,m means the Continuing Legal Education Program provided by the 
Oakland County Bar Association ("OCBA") pursuunt to a contract between the County 
and OCBA and is more fully described in Exhibit 1 of this Agreement. 

1 



1.4. County means Oakland County, a municipal and constitutional corporation, including, 
but not limited to, its depai1ments, divisions, the County Board of Commissioners, 
elected and appointed officials, directors, board members, council members, 
commissioners, authorities, committees, em1)loyees, agents; volunteers, and/or any 
such persons' successors. 

l .5. County Agent means without limitation, any employees, officers, managers, trustees, 
volunteers, attomcys, and representatives of the County, including any person who was 
a County Employee at any time during the term of this Agreement but, for any reason, 
is no longer employed, appointed, or elected in that capacity. 

1.6. !2.ID'. means calendar day, which shall always begin at 12:00:00 a.m. and end at J l :59:59 
p.rn. 

1. 7. Exhibits mean the followlng documents, which this Agreement includes and 
incorporates: 

1.7. l. Exhihit I: Scope of CLE Program 

1,8. Funding Unit means the City of Pontiac which is an entity created by state or local 
authority or which is primarily funded by or th.rough state or local authority, including, 
but not limited to, its council, its Board, its depai1ments, its division, elected and 
appointed officials, dil'ectors, board members, council members, commissioners, 
authorities, committees, employees, agents, subcontractors, attorneys, volunteers, 
and/or any such persons' successors, For the purposes of this Agreement, Funding Unit 
includes any Michigan court when acting in concert with its Funding Unit to obtain 
indigent defense counsel services through the County, 

1.9, Funding Unit EmplOl'.£~ means any employees, officers, directors, members, 
managers, trustees, volunteers, attorneys, and representatives of Funding Unit, 
licensees, concessionaires, contractors, subcontractors, independent contractors, 
agents, and/or a11y such persons' successors or predecessors (whether such persons act 
or acted in their personal, representative or official ca11acities), and/or any persons 
acting by, through, under, or in concert with any of the above who have responsibility 
for tl1e delivery of indigent defense services undei- this Agreement. "Funding Unit 
Employee" shall also include any person who was a Funding Unit Employee at any 
time during the term of this Agreement but) fol' any reason, is no longer employed, 
appointed, or elected in that capacity. 

1.10. Michigan Indigent Defense Commission (MJDC) means the public body c1·e11ted by 
the Michigan Defense Commission Act, MCL 780.981 et seq. 

1, 11. Michigan Indigent Defense Commission Act (MID CA} means 2013 Public Act 93, 
MCL 780.981 et seq., as amended. 

1, 12. points of Contagt mean the ind1viduals designated by the Funding Unit and the County 
to act as primary contacts fot communication and other purposes as described herein. 

2. EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION OF THE AGREEMENT. 

2, 1. Effective Date, This Agreement and any amendments to this Agreement shall be 
effective when executed by both Parties with resolutions passed by the governing 
bodies of' each Party. All amendments to this Agreement shall be in writing. U1e 
approval of this Agreement and any amendments shall be entered in the official minutes 
of the governing bodies of each Party. An executed co1)Y of this Agreement and any 
amendments shall be filed by the County Clel'k with the Secretary of State, 

2 



2,2, Agreement Dura (ion, This Agreement shall remain in effect until December 3 l, 
2020 or until cancelled or terminated pursuant to section 8.1. 

3, COUNTY SERVICES FOR THE FUNDING UNIT. Subject to the terms and conditions 
in thls Agreement1 and except as otherwise provided by law, the County shall provide the 
below services for the Funding Unit and is not obligated or requil'ed to provide any additional 
services. Additio1rnl services may be contracted by mutual agreement between the Parties. 

3. l, County shall apply to the MlDC on behalf of Funding Unit and act as grant 
administrator for a grant to cover the entire cost of the CLE Program for the Funding 
Unit to meet the requirements in Mme Standard One. 

3.2. County shall provide grant fonds t·eceived from the MlDC directly to the OCBA 
pursuant to Exhibit l. 

3.3. The County shall designate a p1imary point of contact to the Funding Unit, who shall 
have the following responsibilities: (1) direct communication and interaction with the 
Funding Unit regarding the subject matter of this Agreement and (2) otber 
responsibHities as set forth in this Agreement, 

4. FUNDING UNIT OBLIGATIONS. 

4.1. The Funding Unit shall comply with all requirements and obligations of any grant 
awarded by the MIDC for the CLE Program, includfog, but not limited lo, all reporting 
obligations required by the County and the MJDC. The Funding Unit shall cooperate 
with and provide all necessary assistance, documentation, and information to County 
regarding applying for and complying with MIDC grant(s) for the CLE Program. 

4.2. The Funding Unit shall not apply to the MIDC fol' any training grants or continuing 
legal education funds for thefr individual cotu-t appointed attorneys in their MIDC 
compliance plans. 

4.3, Except for the County services expressly set forth in this Agreement, the Funding Unit 
is responsible for complying with all requirements and obligations of the MIDCA. 

4.4, The Funding Unit shall designate a primary point of contact to the County, who shall 
have the following responsibilities: (1) direct communication and interaction \Vith the 
County regarding the subject matter of this Agreement and (2) other responsibilities as 
set fo11h in this Agreement. 

5. CLE PROGRAM PARTICIPATION 

5.1, If the MJDC awards full grant funding for the CLE Program and the CLE Program is 
offered and available, the Funding Unit may participate in the CLE Program to have 
the OCBA perforn1 the Funding Unit's continuing legal education requirements that 
al'e required by tvfIDC Standard One for Funding Unit's criminal defense attorneys that 
provide indigent criminal defense services, 

6, ASSURANCES/LIMITATIONS 

6.1. Responsibility for Claims. Each Party shall be respomiible for any Claims made 
against that Party by a third party, and fot· the acts of its employees arising under or 
related to this Agreement. 

6.2. ;Responsibility fo1• Attorney Fees nnd Costs. Except as provided for in Section 6.4, 
each Party shall seek its own legal representation and bear the costs associated with 
such representation, including judgments and attorney fees, for any Claim that may 
arise from the performance of this Agreement. 

3 



6.3. No Indemnification, Except as otherwise provided for in this Agreement, 11cithc1· 
Party shall have any right under this Agreement ol' under any other legal principle to 
be indemnified or reimbursed by the other Party or any of its agents in connection 
with any Claim, 

6.4. Costs, Fines, and Fees for Noncomplhmc~. The Funding Unlt shall be solely 
responsible for all costs, fines and foes associated with noncompliance with this 
Agreement by it and its Funding U11it Employees. 

6,5. ~tuJi.Qn.of Rights. This Agreement does not, and is not intended to> impair, 
divest, delegate or contravene any constitutional, statutory, und/or other legal right, 
pdvilege, power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the Parties, Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed as a waive1' of governmental immunity for either Party, 

6.6. Authol'lzation Rnd Completion of Agreement. The Pa1iles have taken all actions 
and secured all approvals necessary t9 irnthorize and complete this Agreement. The 
persons signing this Agreement on behalfof each Party have legal authority to sign 
this Agreement and bind the Parties to the terms and conditions contained herein. 

6,7, Com12liance with LaWJ:!, EachPatiy shall comply with all federal, state, and local 
ordinances, regulations, administrative rnles and requirements applicable to its 
activities perfonned under this Agreement, including but not limited to laws relating 
to nondiscrimination and conflicts of interests. 

6.8. Limitation of Liability. In no even! shall either Party be Hable to the other Party or 
any other person, for any consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, special, and 
punitive or other damages arising out of this Agreement, 

6.9, Services "As Is"/Disclaimer of Wnnanty, THE SERVICES PROVIDED 
THROUGH THIS AGREEMENT ARE PROVIDED ON AN "AS IS" AND "AS 
AVAILABLE11 BASIS. COONTY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES 
OF ANYKlND, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED> INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND THAT THE SERVICES WILL 
MEET 11-lE NEEDS OR REQUIREMENTS OF THE FUNDING UNIT. 

6.10. No Warranty for Services. County makes no warranty that services provided llnder 
this Agreement will be uninterrupted, secure, error-free, or available at all times. 

6. J J, Con tingcncy of CLE Pro_gram: The CLE Program is contingent on full grant funding 
for the cost of the CLE Program being awarded by the MIDC. The CLE Program may 
not be offered or available if full grant funding for the cost of the CLE Program is not 
awarded by the MIDC. The County shall not be responsible or liable to the Funding 
Unit, or any other person, if the CLE Program is not offered or available. 

6.12. Liability for Grnnt Funding. The County shall not be responsible or liable to the 
Funding Unit, or any other person, if any of the grant funds that the County applies for 
are not awarded, are disallowed, are inellgible, or are required to be refunded or 
l'etumed to the MIDC, for any reason. Any ineligible grant obligations or disallowed 
costs incurred by the Funding Unit shall be the sole responsibility of the Funding Unit. 
The County has no obligation to pay for the CLE Program for Funding Unit, 

6,13, Liability for Obligations under MIDCA. The County shall not be responsible or 
liable for the Funding Unit's obligations under the MIDCA, or for the education, 
training, or qualifications mandated by the MlDC of the Funding Unies indigent 
defense attomeys, 

4 



6.14. !Ji!.bUity for ~LE Prngrnm. The County shnJl not be responsible or liable to the 
Ftmding Unit, or any other person, for the CLE Progrmu or the OCBA, including, but 
not limited to, nny ettors, omissions, inaccuracies, misrepresentations, or deficiencies 
with the CLE .Program or by the OCBA, 

7. l)J8J1UTE RESOLUTION, 

7.1. All disputes relrttlng to (he execution, 1nterpretntion, performance, or nonperformance 
of this Agreement involving or affecting the Parties may first be submitted to County's 
Deputy County Executive and Funding Unit's Point of Contact for possjblc resolution, 
County1s Deputy County Executive and Funding Unit's Point of Contact may promptly 
meet and confer in an effort to resolve .~uch dispute. 

7,2, If tlicy catinot resolve the dispute in five (5) business days, the dispute may be submitted 
to the signatories of this Agreemen! or their successors in office. The signatories of 
this Agreement may meet promptly and confer in an effort to resolve such dispute, 

8, TERMINATION OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT. 

8.1, County T1wminotion, The County may le1·minate or cancel this Agreement, in whole 
~r in part, hninedla(ely1 upon notice to Fundin~ Unit, if thfrd•party funding from the 
MIDC is reduced or terminated, or if the OCBA terminates its contract with County 
nnder the terms of the contraet between the OCBA and County, 

9. pELEGATJON OR AS§IGNMENT, Neither Patiy shall delegate or assign any obligations 
or rights lmder this Agreement without the prior ,vritten consent of the other }1ijlty. 

10, N.0 ;!1:,MPLOY~E~EMPLOYER Rll;l:,,ATION§Hl~. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
construed as creating an employee-employer relationship between County and Funding Unit 
or between the Funding Unit Employees and the County Employees. 

11. NO THlRD-P,1RTY BENEFICIARIES, Except as provided for the benefit of the Parties, 
!his Agreement does not and is not intended to creute any obligation, duty, promise, 
contractual right or benefit, right to indemhiflcationi right to subrogation, and/or any other 
right in favor of any other person or entity, inducting but not limited to attorneys representing 
indigent defondnnts. 

12. NO IMPLIED WAIVER. Absent a wi·itten waiver, no act, faiiul'e, or delay by a Party to 
pursue or enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement sha11 constitute a waiver of 
those r1gh.ts with regard to any existing or subsequent breach of this Agreement. No waiver 
of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in 
one or more instances shall be deemed or constrned all a continuing waiver of any term, 
condition, or provision of this Agreement. No waiver by either Porty shall subsequently affect 
its right to requhe strict performance of this Agreement 

13. RECORD RETENTION A~D ACCESS AND AUDI'fl!:{G, The Parties shall maintain 
records related to this Agreement jn accordance with state law and applicable grants, Upon 
request by a Party, all recoids; including 'financial records~ related to this Agreement shall be 
uvailable at any reasonable time for examination or andit by the other Party or as required by 
law or applicable grant agreements. 

14, SEVERABILITY. lf a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term or condition of this 
Agreement to he iliegal or invalid, then the term or condition shall be deemed severed from 
this Agreement All other tern1s) conditions, and provi:dons of this Agreement shall remain 
in full force, 

5 



15. PRECEDENCE OF DOCUMENTS. In the event of a conflict between the terms of and 
condWons of any of the documents that comprise this Agreement, the terms ln the Agreement 
shall prevail and take precedence over any allegedly conflicting te1111s in the Exhibits or other 
documents that comprise t11is Agreement. 

16, CAPTIONS. The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any fodex to such sections 
and subsections contained in tWs Agreement are intended for the convenience of the reader 
and are not intended to have any substantive meaning. The numbers, captions, and indexes 
shall not be interpreted or be considered as part of this Agreeme11t, Any \1sc of the singular 
or plural, any reference to gender, and any use of the nominative, objective or possessive case 

· in this Agreement shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or possession as the 
context requires. 

17. FORCE MAJEURE. Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this Agreement, 
neither Party shall be liable to the other for any failure of performance hereunder if such 
failure is due to any cause beyond the reasonable contl'ol of that Party and that Party cannot 
reasonably accommodate or mitigate the effects of any such cause. Such cause shaH include, 
wlthout limitation, acts of God, fire, explosion, vandalism, national emergencies, 
insurrections, riots, wars, strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, otl1e1· labor difficulties, 01· any 
law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United States govcmment or of any 
other government. Reasonable notice shall be given to the affected Party of any such event. 

18. NOTICES, Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first class U.S. mail postage 
prepaid, and addressed to tbe person listed below. Notice will be deemed given on the date 
when one of the following first occur: (l) the date of actual receipt; (ii) the next business day 
when notice is sent express delivery service or personal delivery; or (iii) three days after 
mailillg first class or certified U.S. mail. 

18.1. If Notice is sent to County, it shaft be addressed and sent to the following three 
persons/officials: (1) the Oakland County Executive, 2100 Pontiac Lake Road1 

Waterford, Michigan 48328; (2) the Chairperson of the Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners, 1200 North Telegraph Road, Pontiac, Michigan 48341; and (3) 
Oakland County Corporation Counsel, 1200 North TeJegrapb Road, Pontiac, 
Michigan 48341. 

18.2. If Notice is sent to the Funding Unit, it shall be addressed to: City of Pontiac, 47450 
Woodward A venue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 

18.3. Either Party may change the individual to whom Notice is sent and/01· the mailing 
address by notifying the other Patty in writing of the change, 

19. GOVERNING LAW/CONSENT TO JURISDICTION AND VENUE, This Agreement 
shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the State of Michigan. Except as 
otherwise required by law or court rule, any action brought to enforce, interpret, or decide 
any Claim arising under or related to this Agreement shall be brought in the 6th Judicial 
Circuit Court of the State of Michigan, the 50th District Court of the State of Michigan, or 
the United States District Court for the Eastem District of Michigan, Southern Division, as 
dicta tee\ by the applicable jmisdiction of the COLU't. Except as otherwhe required by law or 
coui·t rule, venue is presumptively proper in tile comts set forth above. 

20. ENTIREAGREEMENT. 

20, I. Entire Agreement, Except as provided by law, this Agreement represents the entire 
agreement and understanding between the Patties. This Agreement supersedes all 

6 



othe1· oral or WTitten agreements between the Parties regarding the subject matter of 
this Agreement. 

20,2, ,Construction of Agreement. The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a 
whole according to its fair meaning, and not construed strictly for or against any Party. 

The undersigned hereby acknowledges that he/she has been authorized by the City of Pontiac to 
exeeute this agreement on behalf of the City of Pontiac and hel'eby accepts and binds the City of 
Pontiac to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

BY:_~-~·-'---~-------- DATE: 6Z':>J7' 0/. 
~ 

BY: __________________ lJATE: ________ _ 

The undersigned hereby acknowled_gfs that he has been authorized by a resolution of the Oakland 
County B_oar<,1 of Commissio 1er:y(o/execute this Agreement on behalf of Oakfand County, and 
hereby):iccept} and binds Oa ¢ounty to tr tprms and conditions of this Agreement. 

/ l f 1 

Tt cou;"~Y OF OAKL ,J I/ 
IlY.',,~L'.rL~. t_./ /',_/,/\. __ ¾ ,✓·4ATE: #/ .. t .. , \ 

i 

David T. Woodward, Chail'person 
Ollldand County BoimJ of Commissioners 

7 



EXHIBIT I 
SCOPE OF CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION PROGRAM 

The Continuing Legal Education ("CLE") Program wlll be provided by the Oakland County Bar 
Association ("OCBN') pursuant to a contract between the County and the OCBA (referred to in 
this Exhibit as the "Contract"). 

DEFINITIONS 

In addition to any other defined terms in the Agreement1 the following words and expressions used 
tlu·oughout this Exhibit, whether used in the singular or plural, shall be defincdJ and interpreted as 
follows: 

'Won-County Funded Courrs" mea_ns all State District Courts located in Oakland County except 
for the 52nd District Courts, 1'Non~County Funded Courts" includes the court that Funding Unit is 
the local funding unit fol', 

PROJECT MANAGERS 

Project Manager for !he County: Project Manager for lhe County has the authority to amend the 
payment schedule if OCBA set-up costs and deliverables exceed any quarterly payment! but does 
not have the authority to amend the 11Not to Exceed Amount.l) 

Project Managers for OCBA: Jennifer Roosenbcrg and Meni Lee Jones or their respective 
successors and if none, the President of the OCBA. 

CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION COMPLIANCE 

The OCBA will develop a two-pronged approach to comply with the Proposed Minimum Standard 
One for assigned counsel in Oakland Collnty at the circuit court and district court levels: 

I, Development and delivery of OCBA CLE curricuh1m, and 
2. Tracking and reporting OCBA Defense Counsel CLE credits earned through attendance at 

OCBA seminars, 

This aJJproach assumes the existing effort of .15 FTE existing full-time OCBA staff members who 
will continue to perform CLE 1·esponsibJ1ities and the addition of a 1,0 FTE (and related cosls) to 
perform additional curriculum development, record-keeping and reporting requirements. This 
approach also assumes Oakland County assigned counsel will receive all CLE credits through the 
Oakland County Bar Association (and its CLE partners, where applicable), 

Development of OCBA CLE curriculum 
The OCBA will provide 24 hours of training over the course of a calendar yea1•--January through 
December, These trainillgs will include 10 to 12 brown bag seminal'S, joint seminars with other 
CLE providers and additional stand-alone seminars prepared by OCBA criminal law coiru1tlttee 
throughout the year as topics of interest arise, This policy continues the OCBNs long-standing 
tradition of organic collaborative curriculum development by its committees. While live training 
will be encoul'aged, videos of skills-based training will be available for viewing throughout the 
calendar year, 

8 



Curriculum for new cl'iminal attomeys (those attorneys with less than two years' experience) will 
be delivered in partnership with the Criminal Defense Association of Michigan to meet the 
standards set fo1ih by the MIDC, This training will be live-only. 

The OCBA's tmining will take advantage of the expertise of local practitioners as well as notable 
expel'ts, jurists and other professionals to provide content (hat is universally upplic::ible and also 
uniquely Oakland County-specific. This curriculum will provide appointed counsel with the best 
substantive and practical information available to represent clients in Oakland County Courts, 

Initially, the OCBA will provide an inventol'y to attorneys cunently on the assigned counsel list to 
determine their deficiencies and interests. The OCBA wHl survey the couuty judiciary to determine 
what they observe to be areas for improvement in defense representation, Tlle OCBA wil1 develop 
a cun·icul um according to those needs in addition to the standal'd cuniculum required by the MIDC, 

The cuniculum will include specific course descriptions1 learning objectives, goals, and evaluation 
for each training session, The courses will change each year with the addition or elimination of 
topics as needed to effectively address deficits/challenges identified in the field by LARA, by the , 
courts and by defense counsel, and to continue to meet MIDC standards. Formative and summative 
evaluations will be used to determine specific course content and structure of the curriculum. 

Performancc-bnsed fraining coutscs 
Courses will be delivered by experts • notable and knowledgeable attorneys in the field of criminal 
defense, ethics, forensic science, etc, Courses will be performance-based and will be delivered 
using adult learning theory principles. Leaming reinforcement, such as verbal feedback, l'Dle plays, 
1Jhort written work, etc. will be incorporated throughout each session. Competency will be assessed 
using a variety of methods as applicable, such as prc-test/posHest, quizzes, experiential activities 
and content-based evaluations, Any courses delivered via webinar and/or video will include 
knowledge assessments before, during and after viewing, 

Evaluation 
Content evalua{ions will be used to determine learning transfer after each training sessfon, 
Evaluations will be conducted up to six months posMraining to ascertain whether the information 
is being used effectively and to detennlne future training topics. Evaluations will also be used to 
change and ii11prove course content, presentation methodology and Ieaming re-enforcement as 
indicated by the evaluations. Periodic surveys of the bench will be conducted to gather feedback 
to determine the pcrfonnance level and needs of defense counsel. 

Certification of Course Content 
The OCBA awaits direction from the MIDC regarding the manner in which comses will be 
certified, 

Planned Curriculum 
The OCBA will develop curriculum based upon the topics outlined by the MIDC in,Standard One 
and its accompanying White Paper: K110wledge of the Law; Knowledge of Scientific Evidence 
and Applicable Defenses; K11owledge of Technology. Additional comsework may be developed 
throughout the yeal\ based upon needs determined by the OCBA criminal law cotmnittee. 

9 



Knowledge of the L.lW 

1. Basic legal overview 
a. Knowledge of substantive Michigan, federal and constitutional law and 

applicability to criminal defense 
b. Importance of the initial interview 

2. Rules of criminal pl'ocedure 
3. Rules of evidence 

a. State 
b. Federal 

4. Oral advocacy 
5, Written advocacy 
6, Best practices in cri1ninal defense 
7. Special considerations in serving the indigent client 
8, Annual case law update 
9. New development in criminal defense 
10. Sentencing guidelines 
11. Placement/treatment options 

Knowledge of Scicn1ific Evidence and App1icnble Defenses 

1. Overview of forensic evidence 
a, Medieul evidence 
b, Electronic evidence 
c. Crime scene evidence 
d, Financial/banking 

2. Reasonable defenses 
3. Relevant research studies 

a, Scientific, biological/psychological/soclal research updates 
b. interpretation of data 

c. Effectively using research studies in defense 
4. Risk assessments · 
5, Overview of substance abuse and applicability to criminal defense 

a. Effective treatment modalities 
6. Overview of sex offender treatment 

a, Efficacy and applicabllity to criminal defense 

Knowledge of Teclmo)ogy 

l. Office automation 
a. Overview of products, usage and l'isks 

2. Legal case management software 
a. Overview of products, usage and risks 

3. Accounting software 
4. E-filing process 
5. Social mcdla 

a. Effective use as evidence 
b. Use in investigations 
c. Ethical guidelines and considerations 

10 

'. •.. ,,,.> 



New Attomeys 
Curriculum for new attorneys (those practiclng criminal Jaw fo1• two yeal's 01· less) will be delive1'ed 
in paiinership with the Criminal Defense Association of Michigan and will include but is not 
limited to the "basic skills acquisition;, training as outlined by the MlDC: 

1. The unique role of indigent counsel 
2. Client~centered values and ethics 
3. Client and witness interviews 
4. Witness examinations 
5. Argl1ing the theory of one's case 
6. Pretrial motion practice 
7. Introduction of evidence 
8. Effective objections 
9. Jury selection 
10, How to advise and advocate in guilty plea pl'ocecdings and sentencings 

TRAClCTNG AND REPORTING CLES 

The OCBA will truck participation in training provided by the OCBA and issue certificates of 
completion for all attendees, Transcripts will also be available through the OCBA website for all 
attendees, The OCBA will create a compiled report of completed OCBA coursework for all 
appointed counsel and make it available to the governing authority and the funding units as 
required. Credits, certificates of completion and transcripts wHJ only be given for OCBA 
coursework. The OCBA will supply participating attorneys with a certificate of completion at the 
end of each course and provide the MlDC with all attorney h'aining records, 

Tracking and ce11ifying training 
The OCBA will track training participation in the OCBA 's CLE training using a software program 
that links seamlessly with our existing customel' relationship management software. This software 
enables us to provide a transcript to the attorney and/or the goveming authority as required, The 
OCBA will also provide compiled reports or othe1· verification to the governing authority upon 
request. Transcripts and attendance records will be available online to pai1icipating attorneys 24 
hours a day. In addition, the OCBA will provide to all funding units an end-of-year report, if 
requested, listing all.attorneys who have fulfilled their CLE requirements through the OCBA as 
outlined in MIDC Standard l. Credit will only be given for the OCBA's coursework that has been 
completed. 

Partnerships 
The OCBA will consider partnerships with CDAM as well as other training providers to offer 
seminars to assigned counsel. 

PROPOSED PRICING SUMMARY AND PEID'ORMANCE OF DELIVERABLES: 

The cost proposal for this pilot program is based upon the mandate for 12 hours of CLE training 
per year. The OCBA will provide 24 hours of training over the COlU'se of a calendar year-January 
through December- so that assigned counsel wlll have the opportunity to easily earn the l'equired 
number of CLE hours. 

1 I 



It is also based on our best estimate of time and effort required to meet requirements for CLE 
content development) delivery and evaluation, as well as cutrently defined reporting l'equirements, 

As of the effective date of the Contract, the OCBA intends to provide CLE programming for all 
court funding units in Oakland County: Sixth Judicial Ch'cuit and 52nd District Com·ts, 43rd 
District Courts (Madison I-Ieights~ Hazel Park and Ferndale\ 44th District Court, 451h District 
Comt, 461

h District Court, 47th District Cotitt, 48th District Court, 50th District Court and s·lst 
District Comt. An analysis of the attomey lists, including eliminating any duplicates fr0111 these 
lists and the likelihood of adding new attorneys at all county district comts because of the increased 
need for arrnignment only attorneys seven days a week, reveals that up to 500 attomeys will receive 
their CLE training tJirough the Oakland County Bar Association, 

The County will pay the OCBA an amount not to exceed $175,000 through MIDC g1·ant funding, 
which is contingent 011 the training ofup to 500 attorneys ($25,000 Start-up Cost Fee and $150,000 
Programming Fees for up to 500 attorneys at $300 per participating attorney), The County will 
make payments to the 0CBA under the following schedule: 

a) Payme11t 1 - $25,000 Start-up Cost Fee and quartedy Programming Fee of $37;500 -
Co11tract statt date; 

b) Payment 2-second quarter Programming Fee of $37,500 -date TBD 

c) Payment 3 - third quarter Programming Fee of $37,500 - date TBD 

d) P.:iyment 4 -fourth quarter Prngramming Fee of $37 ,500-- date TBD 

The 0CBA shall track all pl'ogramm.ing costs related to implementation of the program. 

Attorneys that do not attend any of the progrnmming during the mmual year of the Contract shall 
result in unused funding ut the rate of $300 per non-pal'ticipating attomey. 0CBA shall use any 
unused funding to cover the cost of attorneys that are added to the CLE progra1n afle1· the start of 
the annual yea!' of the Conh·act. 

The County agrees to amend the first Quarterly payment upon mutually acceptable documentation 
that the 0CBA's software purchases, technology implementations and start-up costs exceed the 
amount of the Start-up Cost Fee and first quarterly Programming Fee. Any acceleration of 
quarterly Progrnmming Fees shaJI reduce the subsequent quarterly payment by same amo\lnt. 

The OCBA agrees to meet v,,,lth all county fundiug units once every calendar year to review 
compllance by assigned couns~J and provide a status repo1t of the training program. 

The 0CBA fmther agrees to provide all assigned counsel with notice of CLE credits earned and a 
reminder of training deadlines in 1my manner that 0CBA determines ( email, phone, letter, etc,) by 
October 1st of every calendar ye!ll'. 

The OCBA agrees that all services under this contract shall be performed consistent with the MJDC 
Act, MCL 780.991 ef al. and the MIDC Minimum Standards. 

12 





DATE : 12/10/19 

MEMORANDUM 
City of Pontiac 

Controller's Office 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-3118 
Fax: (248) 758-3197 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Danielle Kelley, Plante & Moran - Controller's Office 

THROUGH: Jane Bais DiSessa - Deputy Mayor 

SUBJECT: Resolution to approve the revised Federal Poverty Guidelines for 2020 and the City of 
Pontiac Board of Review Instructions for Applicants requesting Hardship Exemption 
consideration. 

On an annual basis, the General Property Tax Act requires the governing body to adopt guidelines for the Board of 
Review to follow when considering applications for hardship exemptions. Homeowners granted hardship 
exemptions by the Board of Review are not required to pay 100% of the property taxes assessed against their 
homestead property in 2020. 

Please note that special assessments and the sanitation fee cannot be waived or reduced. Applicants must meet 
the standards established by an income level test and an asset level test. The proposed guidelines identify the 
federal poverty guidelines for the income level test and establish a threshold that varies depending on the family 
size. For example, a family of four has a threshold of $25,750 in 2020 (based on the 2020 Federal Poverty 
Guidelines). A copy of the Federal Poverty Guidelines for 2020 is attached for your information. 

At this time, the City Council is requested to adopt the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, In accordance with State of Michigan Act No. 390 Public Acts of 1994, approved December 29, 1994, 
General Property Section 211. 7u (4). "The governing assessing unit shall determine and make public the policy and 
guidelines the uses for the granting of exemptions. The guidelines shall include but not specific income and asset 
levels of the household income assets;" and, 

WHEREAS, The Pontiac City Council approved said Hardship Exemption Guidelines for 2019; and, 

WHEREAS, said Hardship Guidelines should be amended annually to reflect the new Federal Poverty Guidelines, 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT .RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council hereby approves the attached revised Federal 
Poverty guidelines for the 2020 and the City of Pontiac Board of Review Instructions for Applicants requesting 
Hardship Exemption consideration. 

ATTACHMENT 



City of Pontiac, Michigan 
Department of Finance 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

January 2020 

TO: PROPERTY OWNERS APPLYING FOR HARDSHIP EXEMPTION (FINANCIAL) 
FROM THE CITY OF PONTIAC BOARD OF REVIEW 

The Board of Review for the City of Pontiac has adopted uniform guidelines for determining 
poverty exemptions. Taxpayers whose income falls below a detennined level may apply for a 
reduced assessment, based on income, assets and family size. The goal of this procedure is to 
adopt consistent standards for granting tax relief based on hardship. Please note: This application 
may reduce the taxable value of your prope1iy; however, it does not affect the homestead 
exemption affidavits, which reduces the tax rate. (Property taxes - taxable value x tax rate / 
1,000). 

Attached is a schedule, which outlines the eligibility guidelines as established by the Pontiac 
City Council. Please note that the State of Michigan Homestead Property Tax Credit and all 
pertinent income and expense data shall be used in the determination of eligibility. Attached is 
the Economic Hardship Exemption application form. 

When the application is returned to the Treasurer's Office at City Hall or the Oakland County 
Equalization Office, 250 Elizabeth Lake Road in Pontiac, you shall also submit completed copies 
of your Federal and State Income Tax Returns, the General Homestead Property Tax Claim 
Form, MI-1040 CR-4, and the Senior Citizen Homestead Prope1iy Tax Form, MI-1040 CR-1. 

It is not necessary for you to appear in person before the Board of Review. The Oakland County 
Equalization Office will submit your application to the Board for their consideration. 

In order to provide time to review this application, it must be returned to the Treasurer's Office 
at City Hall or the Oakland County Equalization Office ON OR BEFORE MARCH 1sT, JULY 
1sT, OR DECEMBER 1sT, 2020. Please also note: You may only submit (on one of the days 
listed above) one application per year. 

If you have any questions or need assistance, please contact the Oakland County Equalization 
Office at (248) 858-0776. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
HARDSHIP EXEMPTION GUIDELINES 

For Applicants requesting consideration for Property Tax Hardship Exemptions. 

1) Applicant( s) shall obtain the hardship application form from the City of Pontiac 
Treasurer's Office or the Oakland County Equalization Department. Handicapped or 
disabled applicants may call the Assessor's Office to make necessary anangements 
for assistance. 

2) Applicant(s) must own and occupy the property as a homestead 

a. Must produce a driver's license or other acceptable method of identification and 
detennination of address. 

b. Must produce a deed, land contract or other evidence of ownership. 

3) Applicant(s) must complete the application form in its entirety and return to this 
office. Any application form submitted to the Board of Review which has not been 
filled out in its entirety shall be denied by the Board of Review. Appeals of said 
denial shall be made to the Michigan Tax Tribunal. 

4) Applicant(s) and other personal residing in the homestead must submit copies of 
cunent year's (City will make copies if necessary) of the following: 

a. Federal Income Tax Return-1040, 1040A or 1040EZ 
b. Michigan Income Tax Fonn MI-1040, MI-1040A or MI-1040EZ 
c. Senior Citzens Homestead Property Tax Form MI-1040CR-1 
d. General Homestead Property Tax Claim MI-1040CR-4 
e. ADC Annual Budget letter 
f. Benefit Statement (pension, retirement or Social Security) 
g. Social Security Card ( any persons 18 years of age or under) 

5) A hardship exemption shall not be granted to any applicant who has not owned and 
occupied the homestead for a minimum of three (3) years prior to the date of 
application. 

6) A hardship exemption shall not be granted to any applicant who owns salable 
property other than their own homestead no matter where located. 

7) A hardship exemption shall not be granted to any applicant whose assets exceed 
$100,000. An applicant's homestead shall be excluded from consideration as an asset. 

8) Applicant(s) shall not be eligible for consideration if they do not meet the Income 
Limitation Guidelines adopted by the City of Pontiac: 



Size of Family Unit Pove1iy Guidelines 
1 $12,490 
2 $16,910 
3 $21,330 
4 $25,750 
5 $30,170 
6 $34,590 
7 $39,010 
8 $43,430 

For each additional person, add $4,420 

NOTE: IF YOU EXPECT UNUSUAL PERSONAL OR FAMILY EXPENSES WHICH WILL 
AFFECT YOUR INCOME, THE BOARD OF REVIEW MAY CONSIDER ADJUSTMENTS 
TO YOUR INCOME LEVEL. 

9) The MAXIMUM allowed reduction for hardship exemption shall be 50% of the net 
property taxes due after the State Homestead Credit applied based on Taxable Value 
of the homestead for the tax year. 

10) All hardship exemptions shall be granted for the cmTent tax year only. 

11) Applications may be reviewed and acted upon by the Board of Review without 
applicant(s) being present. However, the Board may request that any or all applicants 
be physically present to respond to any questions the Board of Review or Assessor 
may have. This means that an applicant may be called to appear on short notice. 

12) Applicant(s) should be prepared to answer questions regarding their financial affairs, 
health, the status of people living in their home, etc. 

13) Pursuant to state law, applicant(s) may apply for Hardship Exemption to only one (1) 
session of the Board of Review (March, July OR December) and any appeal of the 
Board's decision shall be made to the Michigan Tax Tribunal. 

14) The Board of Review shall have the authority to grant an exemption to applicant(s) 
who do not meet the residency requirement of the exemption guidelines of the City of 
Pontiac if they are paraplegic, quadriplegic, hemiplegics, or totally and permanently 
disabled AND have owned and occupied the property in the City of Pontiac prior to 
becoming handicapped or permanently disabled. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
47450 WOODWARD 
PONTIAC, MI 48342 

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS 

Hardship Exemption applicants shall submit COPIES of the documents listed below in order to 
be considered for eligibility. Please attach these COPIES to your application. 

1. WARRANTY DEED 
or LAND CONTRACT 
or QUIT CLAIM DEED 

2. HOMEOWNER'S INSURANCE POLICY 

3. CURRENT FEDERAL INCOME TAX 

4. CURRENT MICHIGAN INCOME TAX 

5. GENERAL HOMESTEAD PROPERTY TAX MI-1040 CR or SENIOR CITIZEN 
HOMESTEAD PROPERTY TAX 

6. INCOME OF ALL PERSONS LIVING IN THE HOME: 
ADC BUDGET LETTER 
PENSION BENEFITS 
SOCIAL SECURITY STATEMENT 
ALIMONY, CHILD SUPPORT 
PIP, DHS, DISABILITY, & WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
OTHER INCOME 
W-2 (WAGES UNDER $5,000) 

7. EMPLOYER'S NAME, ADDRESS 

8. DRIVER'S LICENSE 

9. SOCIAL SECURITY CARD (all persons living in the home). 



•· ' - ~I • i, ,•'\ 

CITY OF Pbtx'T{AC 
f-l'J,RD-SHlP F.:X:EMPHON. APPUc--t,TlO!:L. 

PETr:r[ON MD. --=----------' P,\R.CEL IP ________ _ 

.Y'""c.,i,F_ ------------ !>..DDRE.S-S __________ _ 

·. PETIT10NE?.. _________ _ TELEPHON.E NO. _______ _ 

S..::..\/, VA1.lf2 TA.X,5£LE VALUE-----'~-------------

' 
·--cV,vNEffS[HE=0·.pJ1f?:f-lG-N· --- -- - --· --··-···-· --------···--· 

A}'<.E '(Olfi',KDYOUR SPOIJSE;h.c SOLE OVYNERS OF GE SUBJECT PR.OPl::Rn'? 
YES ___ NO ___ [fno, p:eass.axpiain __________ _ 

NAME . ., .. " .. 
ADDHESS 

. 

iTELEPHOt{E NO. 
' [JASE OF BIR.Th 

- • 1},GE Lt$T:81R.THD;\'J 
1v\J\.Rff,"'L ST /\T\JS 

S:fNGLE. 
tAl.R?JED -

,• 

WIDOWED -
.. SEPARATED 

DIVORCED ' -
P\:: ti; lO!',!ER'S EMPLOYll/LENT 

FUU.:... ThAE 
Pf',R.1-TTME 
PElRED 
CiSABf£D· 
UNEMPLOYED 
Lr,,JD...OfF -

· OTHER 
OCCUPATION 
BIAPLOYER 

ADDRESS-
- · · 'C.fTY7STATE/ZI P CODE 

-,--
'TB..EPHONE NO. 

--
SPOUS-E'_S EhlPLOYl\/lENT . 

F\.;JLL-11ME 
PART-TI-ME 
RETIRED -

·D-fSABLBJ ' 
. 1~/E.'11.PLO'(EO ' 

LA!DDFF 
. 

.-OlFtER. 
·pccUPATION . ' ( .. -:1_EMPLO ~ -

_IDDRESS 
. , . 

. CfTYJSTATE'2JP COD_E . ; 
- . ' 

TELEPf-fONE r-l:O. 
. 

: '?age. i of 5 
' , . 

.. 

-

' 

(. " 

j 

•. . 
f--

., 



' ' . ... - t t" 
•• ., '; I 

/NAME. 
-·- -- IAGE-· .. -···--•--·---- - - -··· 

I R.:::7..A.T!O l✓.SH!P 
iOCCUPA°ilON 
ICLAJMED-AS DEPENDENT 

MORTGAGE fNFOPJl':'TlON 

PURCHASE DATE 
PURCK.ASE PRlCE . 

MORTGAG8LA.ND COt'-ITRAGI 
BJ>JJ\NCE · 
KO. OF YE;\RS R8v!Al!:tfNG 

DOES PAYViENT f~lCLUOE PROPERTY 1X"<ES? 
ARE PROPERTfTA>CES Pf'>.ID? 

''.'.ES ___ _ NO ___ _ 
YES ____ _ NO __ '--_ 

PAVE ANY fMPR.OVEMENTS:, CHANGES-OR.ADDlil01'-iSBEEN. ;\,!ADETO THE: PROPERTY 
IH THE Lli..:ST TV\10 YEP-RS? [F YES, Pf.EASE S(PlA!N YES _____ NO ___ _ 

. . . 
DO YOU Afffi(:f PAT,E SEWN.G TI--iE HOMESTEAQ PROP.ER TY IN THE; NEXT YT-AR.? 

. YES _____ NO· ___ _ 

D[D YOU APPLY FOR PDvcR1YTAX EXEMPllON !N THE I.AST THREE (3) Y'i:I\i::ZS? y--- ~ YES .N _O __ _ 

(F YES, PLEASE UST YEPR ·poVER.TYTf\X EXBv~TTON"WAS. GRANTED: 
.. •, 

ASSET l'NF-ORTvIAflON: 
I DESCPJfllON BALA.NC-E' 

. 
GA8H · 
S!>.:Y1NGS AGW,.JNTS, CERTIFICATES & MONEY MAP-J<ETS 
CHEL--:i<JNG ACCOUNTS ·-
INSURANCE: 
OTh'ER · _ 

C 
:\lEGH/ClES, TRUCKS, BOATS, TRA!LERS,-ETC 
BA.LANCE OWING 

· P,age.2 of s. ·.··( 



',I,; I 

·. ~ ~ 

•, ••,•><- l\ ,l 

DO YOU HAVEAJ-10\/\fNERS-HIP H,If7='.Y..ESTIH /J.N.YOTHERREALESTATE IN ~/ilCHfG,~ OR 
ANYWHERE El...S-E? lF YES, PLEASE UST: . YES.---''------ ~/0. ___ _ 

LOCATJON. ·. 
PARC8..iD, 
CURRENT-SB/. . 
ES'lW.ATED CUR.RENT VAlUE \ 

PURCf-U,.SE DA TE 
7PURCHASE PRJCE ' 

·tNC6MEU'iFORJvtATTCr✓• ---- • - --·- · -

DESCR"JP dON 'YEARLY MONTl{LY 
V://A.GES, SAL.PRIES, TIPS, S1CK STR:fKE,SUB-PAY 
R.ETIRB✓i~t" 1· p ENSIO~ P.NNU_l I f_ANDJOR P..A.H . .ROP..D 
RE11REMENT BENEFITS 
SOCIAL SECURITY OR S'Sf ,, f 

ADC AND/OR GA BENEFITS 
Ul'<Bv1PLOY't3v'tl:-}IT CO i,1PB~SA1 lON .b,ND/OR TRA 
WORKl::7:z'S COMP />:;'-£DIOR VETER.AN,'S' DiSA..B\UTY 
NE1 R2:NT, BUSINESS OR ROYALTY INCOME I 

. 'i 

AlJ MONY ANtJ OTKER T/'XABLE li'./C-OM2 
CHILD SUPPORT 
OTHER. PU8LlC.ASS!8.1.ANCE: PAYME;NTS - -
INCOME FROM R.ENllN"G A PORTION-OF THE -
HOMES1c.AD ' - ' 

OTHERNON-TAX.P..BLE U✓COfvlE 
t O I Al: lNCO[ViE rrZOM AU SO{}R.CES OF EVERYONE -· -U\/fNG L'.'/ YOUR HOUS'EHOLD .. 

TOT.AL fNCOME ! . -

DO YOU RENT A}{'( PORTION OF i;..JE HOME'BleAD TO NOH-FAMJLY MEMBERS: 
Yf..S- ____ NO ____ _ 

DO YOU ANT! ClPA TE Ai\,Y MAJOR C,L{,tlJxfGES JN I r,icoME FOR THE COM(NG YF..AR.1" 
if YES, PLEA.SE EXPLAIN '(ES_____ NO ____ _ 

---------------
1DESCRJPTION BAL.4NCE. 1\/1 O ITTHLY P A.YultENT 
MORTGAGE/LAND ·CONTRACT -
CAR PAY/vlENT ' 

CtHLD CARE -
UTf llllES ~ GAS ,-

UTIUTES - El !=CTRJC -

TEJ£PHONE -
CABU: - .. ' 

WAl- 1::R/SE\t\fER · 
-

( 
, .. 

P'<;'ge 3 of 5 
-.... .. '•. : . .. 



'_DESC:FUP ilO N. 8AL0-lC:E MONTHLY PAYWiEITT 
[[NSUAANCE 

CAR 
' ·HEALTH 

HOMEOVvNER 
, .. , 

_..,. 

PROPERTYT/.IXES . 
', 

OTI-lER p RO p ERTY TAXES 
FOOD 
CLOTI-f[NG · 
/11fEDICAl. 

: CREDIT CAFZOS 
OTHER 
OTHER. I 

l T01,,\'.... EfJ='Et{SES I ! I 

;JG YOL:f HAVE .A.NY MAJOR OR Ut{USUAL EXPENSES? 
IF YES, P~'\SE 8CPLAI/'{ 

YES ___ NO __ _ 

t'LEA.S'E READ CAREFULLY 

l/vVe. arnlari' unable to pay the fdl pr:iperty iaxes on me abcve deSCfibecl ?mpeny and herecy 
make application for pcqper;y iax reJlefl.n ac:ord?J1ce vtlffi 3e?iion Zi Pu of the Michigan CornpUed 
Laws/Gene:"21 Property Tax:P,ct · 

t/V\/ehave rsad fuis appuc:<riio~ and fJliy ur,de-si:ancii:f~ecotitents tbe:-e,.,,"J', 1/INe decfare (t,,m !he 
stal:ef'.1en is made he:;-:dn we curnp{elB, hue, and corred. to L'l e besf of rnyf our knowf edge. 

lfl/1/e. nsrther 2ri9erstancf that If an\1 h:iirrrn-afon c:ontaineri herein js fuu~d tn be fa!se or incomplete, 
l/i.ve-wm be: subject to ITadfiiyfor perjwy as prol'tded ii Se..,rfions 27 U 18 and 21 UiS of Mioh1gan 
CdrnpBed Laws. 

Dale 

Date-
t. 

,, 

. ~ 
Page 4 of 5 

-·•' 

...... 



Michigan Department cf Treasu~; 
4988 (05-12) 

Poverty Exemption Affidavit_ 
This to.rm Is issued under au!horRy of Pubflc Act 206 o/ ',893; MCL 211.7u. 

INSTRUCTIONS: Whei1 completed, this document must accompany a taxpayer's Application for Poverty Exemption flied 
with the supervisor or the board of review of the local unit where the property is located. MCL 211.7u provides for a whole 
or partial property tax exernption on the principal residence of an owner of the property by reason of poverty and the 
inability to contribute toward the public charges. MCL 211. 7u(2)(b) requires proof of eligibility for the exemption be provided 
fo the board of review by supplying copies of federal and state income tax returns for all persons residing in the principal 
residence, including property tax credit returns, or by filing an affidavit !qr all persons residing in the residenu V✓ho were not 
required to file federal or state income iax returns for the. current or preceding tax y?ar. • 

- - - - _...,_- ____ ·-·---~-------~. 

I,-----'---------------' swear and affirm by my signature below that I· 
reside in the principal residence that is the subject of _this Application for Poverty Exemption and that 

for the current tax year and the preceding tax year, I was not required to file a federal or state inco.rne 

tax return. 

Address of Princlpal Residence: 

Signature of Person Making Affidavit Date 

,,,., 
• .. ! . 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety Planning 

PLANNING DIVISION 
47450 \Vtiodward Ave I Pontiac, lVIichig.io. 48342 

TELEPHONE: (248) 758-2800 
1Wayor Deirdre J·Vatemum 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE IV!AYOR, COUNCIL AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 
TH ROUGHT THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR JANE BA!S-D!SESSA 

ZMA19-15 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
ETl<IN MANAGEMENT llC 
3111 CENTERPOINT PARKWAY I PIN 64-19-03-427-007 
C-4 SUBURBAN COMMERCIAL TO M-1 UGHT MANUFACTURING 

NOVEMBER 18, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 19-15 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] parcel 
Number 64-19-03-427-007, of approximately three acres located on the north side of Centerpoint 
Parkway, west of Opdyke Road. Etkin Management lLC, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-4 
Suburban Commercial to M 1 Ught Manufacturing, At the November 4, 2019 meeting of the Planning 
Commission recommended to City Council the approval of the Zoning Map Amendment 

Existing land Uses 
The subject site is located on a single vacant parcel. To the north of the subject site is Challenge 
Manufacturing auto supplier and Williams International and to the east is Residence Inn. South of the 
site is Canadian National Railway and Auburn Hills Marriott and to the west is Canadian National Railway. 

Master Plan 
According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update, Pontiac is staking a claim to a new destiny. lt is a City 
with extraordinary assets and bright economic prospects on which to build a revised destiny. It is with 
this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green land use category. The 
prirnary goal of this category is to provide flexibility that encourages diverse, positive uses in the City. 
Areas to the north, east, south and west are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial 8,1. 

Green. The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master 
Plan's Entrepreneurial district classification, which is to provide flexibllity that encourages the use of 
vacant properties in strategic locations around the City. 

1 



Existing Zoning Districts 
Abutting properties to the north are zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing. East and south of subject site is 
zoned C-4 Suburban Commercial. West of the site is zoned C-4 and M-1. The proposed Zoning Map 
Amendment provides a perfect balanced, transition between commercial hospitality and light 
manufacturing zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A~J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Comn,ission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

.1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. if 
conditions have changed since the IV/aster Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site will conform to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. 
The Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to develop/redevelop vacant, underutilized 
irregularly shaped parcels. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site has been cleared so it's geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
are no longer present on the site, except for a vegetative buffer of trees at the north edge of 
the site, which will be removed. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The existing site itself is not conducive to develop as a suburban commercial use. It is clear 
that the small, irregular shape parcel could not provide a reasonable return on investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a self storage facility is compatible with uses allowed within the 1\/1-1 
zoning district and will not negatively impact density, traffic or property values. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient ta accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City, 

The City's utilities does have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the 
proposed self storage facility and not compromise the City's health, safety, and welfare. 

----------------~-········--·.,--.. -~----··-·•------------------

2 



6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Centerpoint Parkway is a City IVlajor Road. The proposed development wm not impact the 
ability of this street and adjoining roads to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site vvi/1 be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

distdct dimensional requirements. 

8. if a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed M-1 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 
district with its primary goal of creating settings for commercial development to allow self 
storage facilities within the C-4 zoning district, 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of light manufacturing zoning to the west and north. 

Recommendation 
Per the review requirements found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, the 
Planning Commission request City Council to approve the following resolution to rezone Parcel Number 
64-19-03-427-007 [application ZMA 19-15) from C-4 Suburban Commercial to 1\11-1 Light Manufacturing. 

----------------- .. , .. -.... , .. _,,_ .. 

3 



ZA 19-15 - Zoning Map Amendment 
Address: 3111 Centerpoint Parkway 
Parcel: 64-19-03-427-007 

Resolution. 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for 3111 Centerpoint 
Parkway, identified as Parcel No. 64-19-03-427-007 from Etkin Management LLC and the applicant's 
petition is for the rezoning of the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 
aforernentioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 
Hearing, and Planning Commission Recomrnendation; and 

Whereas, On November 61 2019, a Public Hearing was held and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 3111 
Centerpoint Parkway approving the change from the current C-4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light 
Manufacturing; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 19-15) request for 3111 
Centerpoint Parkway, also known as Parcel No. 64-19-03-427-007, to amend the current site zoning C-
4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light Manufacturing. 

4 



CITY 01? PON'IlAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 

lv1ayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO; 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

PONTIAC PLANNING COM!Vl!SSIOf\J 

VERN GUSTAFSSON, PlANNHIJG MANAGER 
PLANNING DIVISION 

ZMA 19-15 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 

ETKIN iVlANAGEMENT LLC 
3111 CHHERPOINT PARKWAY I PIN 64-19-03-427-007 

C-4 SUBURBAN COMMERCIAL TO M-1 LIGHT MANUFACTURING 

OCTOBER 21, 2019 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 19-15 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] parcel 
Number 64-19-03-427-007, of approximately three acres located on the north side of Centerpoint 
Parkway, west of Opdyke Road. Etkin Management LLC, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-4 
Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light Manufacturing. The rezoning would ensure that the proposed Self 

Storage Facility is properly zoned. In accordance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the 
request for Zoning Map Amendment requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the 
Planning Commission, and a final decision by City Council. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-4 Suburban Commercial to M-1 Light 

Manufacturing. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with M-1 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance. 

Existing Land Uses 

The subject site is located on a single vacant pnrcel. To the north of the subject site is Challenge 
Manufacturing auto supplier and Williams International and to the east is Residence Inn. South ofthe 
site is Canadian National Railway and Auburn Hills Marriott and to the west is Canadian National Railway. 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 I FAX: 248.758.2827 



Master Phm 

According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update, Pontiac is staking a claim to a new destiny. It is a City 
with extraordinary a$Sets and bright economic prospects on which to build a revised destiny. It is with 
this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green land use category. The 
primary goal of this category is to provide flexibility that encourages diverse, positive uses in the City. 
Areas to the north, east, south and west are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & 

Green. The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master 
Plan's Entrepreneurial district classification, which is to provide flexibility that encourages the use of 
vacant properties in strategic locations around the City. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Abutting properties to the north are zoned M-1 Light Manufacturing. East and south of subject site is 
zoned C-4 Suburban Commercial. West of the site is zoned C-4 and M-1. The proposed Zoning Map 
/l.mendment provides a p;::rfect balanced, transition between commercial hospitality and light 
manufacturing zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Mc1p [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with lhe goals, policies and objectives of the Moster Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have chonged since the Moster Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site will conform to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. 
The Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to develop/redevelop vacant, underutilized 
irregularly shaped parcels. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, Qeo/ogfwl, hydrological ond other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district 

The site has been cleared so it's geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
are no longer present on the site, except for a vegetative buffer of trees at the north edge of 
the site, which will be removed. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonoble return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses perrnitted under the current zoning. 

The existing she itself is not conducive to develop as a suburban commercial use. It is clear 
that the small1 irregular shape parcel could not provide a reasonable return on investment 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.758.2800 l FAX: 248.758.2827 



4. Compatibf/ity of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of fond suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a self storage facility is compatible with uses allowed within the M-1 
zoning district and will not negatively impact density, traffic or property values. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and we/fore of the City. 

The City's utilities does have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the 
proposed self storage facility and not compromise the City's health, safety, and welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated bv uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Centerpoint Parkway is a City Major Road. The proposed development will not impact the 
ability of this street and adjoining roads to handle potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations f Of' the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to sun-oundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more oppropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed IVl-1 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's fV1aster 

Plan. 

9. ~f the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more oppropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or specio! !and uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to arnend the zoning text for C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 
district with its primary go;,I of creating settings for commercial development to allow self 
storage facilities within the C-4 zoning district 

.10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an .incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of light manufacturing zoning to the west and north. 

Recommendation 
Per the review requirements found in Section 6,804 of the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, we suggest 
that the Planning Commission consider recommending to City Council the request from Etkin 
Management LLCto rezone Parcel Number 64-19-03427-007 [application ZMA 19-15] from C-4 Suburban 
Commercial to M-1 Light Manufacturing. 

47450 Woodward Ave I PONTIAC, JVUCHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 243.758.2800 I FAX: 248.758.2827 



plication for Zoning Map 
Amendment 

City of Pontiac 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

- ''"°""' ,=~=~1,~ '-''"~&~Ui¼':o/~»';;;%1--" %;%,-':£'~'%'''~~=, 

Prnpertv/Project Address: ,, 111 C t . t P k 
• J en erpo,n ar way Office Use Only 

Sidwell Number: 19-03-427-007 PF Number: 

Date: 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate foe shall be submitted to che Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
all respects with supporting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schcduk:. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

A1212lica11t (please i;1rint or tv~e) 

Name Etkin Management, LLC; Agent for Owner 
Address 150 W. 2nd Street, Suite 200 

" 

City Royal Oak _,,_,, ____ 

State Michigan 
.,. 

ZIP Code 48067 
Telephone Main:(248) 358-0800 I Cell: I Fax: (248) 358-2180 

-· 
E-Mail jsuardin i@etkinllc.com 

Projec1i: and Pro@ertv Informatkm 

Name of Proposed Devefopment: Centerpoint Self Storage Facility 

The subject property is location at 311 i Centerpoint Parkway on the@/ S / E / W side of Centerpoint Parkway 
between S. Opdyke Rd and Woodward Ave • 

The property is zoned: C-4 

Proposed Zoning District: M-1 

H is proposed that the property wm be used as: A Self Storage Facility 

The subject property is legaUy described as foHows (include sidwell a-mmbers): 

19-03-427-007 Unit 24 of the Centerpoint Business Campus Condominium 

,~•-•c -·~=-= ,. .. '-' --, ~" ~- ---~ 

=(".-,·-, 



»~-"-~~ =u:cc:::'"c--:::c--=======-=-=-2--=----';'.:;-:c:s---=-•- ,5-X"'-=-=c _, -~ "~--== • ~e i,••; cv{ •~.,,/,.,,J:h "'i,<)"y tt<cN/- ~<.'<>'«"·o, .. ",...., ,.=·,, 

Name Centerpoint Associates, LLC 
Address 150 W. 2nd Street, Suite 200 
city Royal Oak 

State Michigan 
ZIP Code 48067 
Telephone Main: (248) 358-0800 I Cell: I Fax: (248) 358-2180 

E-Mail jsuardini@etkinllc.com 

Are you the ___ OwnerX Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Ot her 

The proposed will be m;ed for the following purpose (provide as mu ch detail as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site [lfans, written documents, etc.). 
The proposed use will be a three (3) story climate controlled self sto rage facility. 

Sate the reason for the Zoning .Map Amendment, particufady the m 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why rnd1 change wm not 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the v 
A zoning map amendment is needed to ensure that the Use for the p 

armer in which the City wrn 
be d.et:rimental to t!ne public 

idnity of the site. 
roperty is approved. The 

neighbors given the location zoning classification change to M-1 is not detrimental to the public or the 

within the park as well as it being a similar or like zoning classificatio n to nearby properties. 

Signab.me of Own,~2:r 
~=z:·:!:,· ••'21x"3""1::,,,,F.;v Z!-'====:=-:======-:=-"1z:JE,,., .. J:g~~-,,""'="'" ,, _,, .·'..·c,.,.,_, ·,+' 

Srare of Michigan 
County of Oakland 

P£ / 

f--p- / __ 
'-l 

of Applkaint 
~ .. , .. , .. , . 

-··-····-· 

On this ____ day of , A.D. 2() __ . bejiJJ·e me personal(\' appem·cd !he above ,mm;.d person, who being duly sworn, swted he/she has read 
the j<.,rcgoing application, by him;Jwr signed, and know the contents thereof and that lite same L\' rrue of his/lter <JWn knowledge, except as ro the marrers 
therein Staled to be upon information and belief and so as w those matters lie/she believes it 10 be 1me. 

NotOI)' Public, 0<1k/a11d County, A-lichigrw 
My Commission E.,pires: __ _ 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 'vVoo<lw.u-d A·,c "Pmiti.ic, Michig:m 43342 

Tdep!wne: {248) 758-2800 

llifayor Deinlrc fVatermcm 

TO: HOMORABlE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT, AND GTY COUNCIL 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING fVIAf'JAGER 

RE: 

THROUGH THE OFFKE OF DEPUTY MAYOR JANE BAIS-D!SESSA 

VSA 18-06 STREET VACATION - CAMPUS DRIVE, Between Centerpoint Parkway and Opdyke 
Road c1butting Parcel ID Numbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-012, 
19-03-200-023 and 19-03-225-004. 

DATE: NOVEMBER 18, 2018 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of a street vacation request submitted by 4GW Real Estate Investments LLC 

and 3937 Campus Drive Investments LLC to vacate Campus Drive between Centerpoint Parkway and 

Opdyke Road abutting Parcel ID Numbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-03-200-023 

and 19-03-226-004. At the November 6, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the Commission recommended 

City Council to approve the vacation of Campus Drive. 

1. APPLICANT: 4GW Real Estate Investments U..C & 3937 Carnpus Drive !nvestmenl:s LLC 

2. REQUEST: To vacate West Campus Drive and the south half of East Campus Drive on or adjacent to 

4GW Real Estate Investments LLC properties and vacate the north half of East Campus Drive adjacent to 

the south edge of 3937 Campus Drive Investments LLC development. 

3. LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See attached legal description dated August 12, 2019 prepared by David P. Smith 

& Associates. 

4. REUrnONSH!P TO PONTIAC 2014 MASTER PU3tN UPDiHE: The City of Pontiac's 2014 Master Plan 

Future Land Use map illustrates Entrepreneurial: Industrial Commercial & Green land uses for the 

adjoining properties to the north and south of the proposed street vacation. 

Within this Entrepreneurial District major portions have been acquired by various private interests and 

developed/redeveloped over the course of the past number of years. These developments and tenants 

1 



have reinvigorated this area and has become a catalyst for other new investment and development. 
This street vacation addresses several Master Plan, Entrepreneurial District objectives by removing the 
Campus Drive for future expansion of each site(s). 

5. AOMINSTRAT!VE REVIEW COMMITTEE COMMENTS: The Oakland County Water Resources Commission 
[WRC) noted that a water main and sanitary sewer is in the Campus Drive right-of-way [see attached 
letter], WRC requested that a permanent easernent be reserved over and across the entire drive 
vacation for the benefit of Oakland County for the construction, operation, maintenance and repair and 
replacernent of these utilities. 

The new owners are required to disconnect electrical service to Campus Drive street lights, once all 
approvals are completed and documents recorded and require the owners to salvage and deliver street 
light poles and fixtures to Pontiac DPW and reconnect power at Centerpoint Parkv11av and Opdyke Road. 

Also, the new owners are requested to perform any electrical work necessary, through the issuance of a 
City right-of-way permit, to cause the continual operation of the street lights on Enterprise Drive 
between South Boulevard and Campus Drive. The present location of the power source for these four 
street lights on the east side of Enterprise Drive between South Boulevard and campus Drive is 
unknown. 

6. PL/:\NNlrJG STAFF FINDINGS: 

a} Campus Drive is not necessary for the access to adjacent properties or is not needed for any 
necessary services. 

b) The vacation of Campus Drive would not make access to nearby properties more substantially 
difficult, time consuming or inconvenient and the vacation will not be substantiaHy detrimental lo 

the value and/or utility of adjacent or nearby properties. 
c) Other existing streets including Centerpoint Parkway, South Boulevard, Enterprise Drive and Opdyke 

Road will provide access to all parcels that rnay be served by Campus Drive. 
d) The requested vacation is not necessary to provide access to police, fire or other public safety 

services. 
e) All adjacent property owners have signed the street vacation petition. 

2 



VSA 18-06 

CAMPUS DR!Vi:; -- BHWHN CENTERPOiNT PARKWAY AND OPDY!(E ROAD 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of a street vacation request submitted by 4GW Real Estate Investments LLC 
and 3937 Campus Drive Investments LLC to vacate Campus Drive between Centerpoint Parkway and Opdyke 
Road abutting Parcel ID Numbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-03-200-023 and 19-03-
226-004. 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the subject street is not required to remain for access 
to adjoining property owners; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the proposed street vacation will not have an adverse 
effect on the surrounding properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Comrnission at the November 6, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the 
Commission recommend(~d City Council to approve the vacation of Campus Drive; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council requires that all permanent utility easements be obtained and recorded 
after City Council approval; and 

WHEREi\S, the Pontiac City Council require the new owners to disconnect electrical service to Carnpus Drive 
street lights, once all approvals are completed and docun1ents recorded and require the owners to salvage 
and deliver street light poles and fixtures to Pontiac DPW and reconnect power at Centerpoint Parkway and 
Opdyke Hoad; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac City Council require the new owners to perform any electric,! work necessary, through 
the issuance of a City right-of-way permit, to cause the continual operatton of the street lights on Enterprise 
Drive between South Boulevard and Campus Drive; and 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation to vacate Campus Drive between Centerpoint Parkway and Opdyke Road 
abutting Parcel ID Numbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-03-200-023 and 19-03-226-
004. 

3 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 WMdwnnJ Ave" Pontiac, Midiigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

1\,fayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: PONTIAC PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON 
PLl'.l,NNING MANAGER 

D/HE: OCTOBER 21, 2019 

RE: VSA 1lHJ6 STREET VACATION - (AlvWUS DRIVE, Between Centerpoint Parkway and Opdyke 
Road abutting Parcel ID Numbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 
19-03-2.00-023 and 19-03-226-004. 

1. APPUG\NT: 4GW Real Estate lnvestments llC & 3937 Campus Drive Investments LlC 

2. REQUEST: To vacate West Campus Drive that cross 4GW Real Estate Investments LLC properties and 

vacate East Campus Drive that nms along the south edge of 3937 Campus Drive fnvestments LLC 

development. 

3. LEGAL DESCRIPTiOI\J: Vacation of the westerly part of West Campus Drive lying west of Enterprise Drive 

to Centerpoint Parkway abutting Parcel ID f\Jumbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-

03-200-023, 19-03-200-023 and 19-03-226-004 [see attached legal description dated l\ugust 12, 2019 

prepared by David P. Smith & Associates]. 

4. RHAT!ONSH!P TO PONTIAC 2014 MASTER PLAN UPDATE: 

The City of Pontiac's 2014 Master Plan Future Land Use map illustrates Entrepreneurial: Industrial 

Comrnercial & Green land uses for the adjoining properties to the north and south of the proposed 

street vacation. 

Within this Entrepreneurial District major portions have been acquired by various private interests and 

developed/redeveloped over the collrse of the past number of years. These developments and tenants 

have reinvigorated this area and has become a catalyst for other new investment and development. 

This street vacation addresses several Master Plan, Entrepreneurial District objectives by removing the 

Carnpus Drive fqr future expansion of each site(s}. 



5, ADMINSTRATiVE REV&t.W COMMITTEE COMMENTS: 
The Oakland County Water Resources Commission [WRC) noted that a water main and sanitary sewer is 
in the Campus DfNJ? r1ght-of-way [see attached letter]. WRC requested that a permanent easement be 
reserved over and across the entire drive vacation for the benefit of Oakland County for the 
construction, operatton, maintenance and repair and replacement of these utilities. 

The new owners are required to disconnect electrical service to Campus Drive street lights, once a!I 
approvals are completed and documents recorded and require the owners to salvage and deliver street 
light poles and fixtures to Pontiac DPW and reconnect power at Centerpoint Parkway and Opdyke Road. 

Also, the new owners are requested to perform any electrical work necessary, through the issuance of a 
City right-of-way permit, to cause the continual operation of the street lights on Enterprise Drive 
between South Boulevard and Campus Drive. The present location of the power source for these four 
street lights on the east side of Enterprise Drive between South Boulevard and campus Drive is 
unknown. 

6. PLANNING ST/:\FF FINDINGS: 
a) Campus Drive is not necessary for the access to adjacent properties or is not needed for any 

necessary services. 
b) The vacation of Campus Drive would not make access to nearby properties more substantially 

difficult, time consuming or inconvenient and the vacation wi!I not be substantially detrimental to 
the value and/or utility of adjacent or nearby properties. 

c) Other existing streets including Centerpoint Parkway, South Boulevard, Enterprise Drive and Opdyke 
Road wi!I provide access to al! parcels that may be served by the right-of-way proposed for vacation. 

d) The requested vacation is not necessary to provide access to police, fire or other pubtic safety 
services. 

e) All adjacent property owners have signed the street vacation petition. 

7. RESOLUTIONS FOR APPROVAlAND DEN!Al: 

Resolutions for approval and denial are attached for your consideration. 



STATE Of MICHIGAN) 

COUNTY OF OAKlAND ) 

PONTIAC PlANf\!ING COMMISSION 
REQUEST FOR STREET VACATION 

RESOLUTION DENIAL 

VSA 18-06 

The Pontiac Planning Commission is in receipt of a street vacation request submitted by 4GW Real Estate 

Investments LLC and 3937 Campus Drive Investments LLC to vacate Carnpus Drive between Centerpoint 

Parkway and Opdyke Road abutting Parcel ID Numbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-93-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-

03-200-023 and 19 03-226-004. 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the subject street is required to remain for access to 

adjoining property owners; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the proposed street vacation will have an adverse 

effect on the surrounding properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the existing street right-of-way contain utilities, and 

the right-of-way rnay be required to service these utilities; and 

NOW, THEREFORE GE IT RESOLVED that the vacation of Campus Drive between Centerpoint Parkway and 

Opdyke Road hereby recommended for denial to the City Council. 



STATE Of M!CH!GMJ) 
COUNl'Y Of OAKLAND ) 

PONTIAC PLANNING COMMISSION 
FOR ALLEY VACATION 

RESOLUTION APPROVAL 

The Pontiac Planning Comrnission is in receipt of a street vacation request submitted by 4GW Real Estate 
Investments LLC and 3937 Campus Drive Investments lLC to vacate Campus Drive between Centerpoint 
Parkway and Opdyke Road abutting Parcel ID Numbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-200-022, 19-
03-200-023 and 19-03-226-004. 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the subject street is not required to remain for access 
to adjoining property owners; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that the proposed street vacation will not have an adverse 
effect on the surrounding properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission finds that all permanent utility easements be obtained and 
recorded prior to City Council approval; and 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission require the new owners to disconnect electrical service to 

Campus Drive street lights, once all approvals are completed and documents recorded and require the owners 
to salvage and deliver street light poles and fixtures to Pontiac DPW and reconnect power at Centerpoint 
Parkway and Opdyke Road. 

WHEREAS, the Pontiac Planning Commission require the new owners to perform any electrical work 
necessary, through the issuance of a City right-of-way permit, to cause the continual operation of the street 
lights on Enterprise Drive between South Boulevard and Campus Drive. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED on November 6, 2019, that the vacation of Campus Drive between 
Centerpoint Parkway and Opdyke Hoad abutting Parcel m f\lumbers; 19-03-201-002, 19-03-202-001, 19-03-
200-022, 19-03-200-023 and 19-03-226-004, is hereby recommended for==-"'-"=to the City Council, subject 
to the property owners providing any and all necessary permanent utility easements and the property owners 
will salvage and deliver street light poles and fixtures to Pontiac DPW and reconnect power at Centerpoint 
Parkway and Opdyke Road. 



October 24, 2019 

Attn: !Vir. Donovan Smith 
City of Pontiac Planning Commission 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Re: Vacafam of Street/,-1,IJey - 2000 Centerpoint ·- Cm.npus .Drive 

Dear Mr, Smith: 

Please be advised the Oakland County \,Yater Resources Commissioner's office has a water 
supply system and sanitary sewer system under its jurisdiction located within the proposed 
street vacation. 

Therefore, this office objects to the slrcet vacation unless an easement is reserved for the 
benefit of the County of Oakland for operation, maintenance, repair or replacement of the 
water supply system and sanitary sewer system. 

Tf you have any questions, please feel free to -:ontact me. 

Sincerely, 

. Jeffrey S. }:~nott 
',_·--Right-fff Way Supervisor 

panottj@oakgov.com 
248-452-2162 



Application for Vacation or Closure of 

Street, Alley or Easement 
City of Pontiac 

Office of Land Use and Strategic Pbnning 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 243,753.2800 F: 248.75lU827 

Office rsc Only 
PF >illmber: 

lnstrucrirH1~;! :\;:-:i-p;it-,1:·ic)n.s f0r \'~i1:::;tit•:J Dt' ~,k)~.t:n: ,,,; ~-t"7°t':-:L_ :1'.k;. Vii\t':OL'°!:~ ~·.1r P;;b~('. n:;:::t~,~..:>~t\~~ :,:::id !);~ [;fd \>:1:h c';:~ 
Offi,::(! t•f L,!;ld 1 h,:e ~inti S;t;°lkf~(; P:Jll:.~.bg :1;;.'.:Jf! \;~frt: ~i 51.5[,i},~i(i fi:..·i:· :1:h: ;! r:r;:~r ~f lt;t,: :,ri.-:(J ri:- 1-1-;...c;.k< f;•n- ,·~;:.-~i~~--,r: /it ii:·:,;: JO 

d1l:,i~ ~:,;;:fo:i.:- :he. rt)ul;iriy ;:.Z::b.:<!u:t:C Pi:tmn.:ng Cvnr:-:1i;,:--i{,:1 .\} .. ·1,.~;;nr. _,\n<t{ .. s:it\!b ~h;jI; :-ft' :.;;1:H.·,J ~:• ;):uqc::-·., '.:-v::1c$ ::.:'\'!tttn; 

the -~Ht~~ :,r :-i:Jc:,; :<:,-ru~;-:;ki1 f.-:-r \/n:::n:i,._·,n ':.\~1t·r,: ~.:·;;;b~-~- (.:,;.--,,.:,:n;i:::-:c ::.~p::~::.:i<m:, :1_-;;l <lei::> ;i·i 1 (:\ :::'>\ r=~·,,ct-~:-: 

Ret:--.:t:1r1;c:1,jJtk1r, ,:~;'-:he P1ac.r.i.n& C,.tr::mis-~:(,n \1;,]! ~,:.' :':'l!\•,:1:d:..:-.. : ~~: tht 1.,"i:y Cn:1nc-il f<>r 1tn~t: 1l'1:,.--:, 

Name 

l Addrc-:ss 

i City 

: St,te . · 1 ·-_:. . 
! Z!D C0ce · ~ '. ✓~, 
•~----- •--~---~h-...., ~-----------~-------·-•---~---
! Telephcne ! ·•,a~~:~~~-----,·'.~'.- './ .·e•"~-.,; :1 ::e:,' ,, 1 , ___ _\_Fax: 

j E-Mail . ' 
•• 7 ~ ,' ,:,;:? .... ·: ./ :""":.-· +';,..-1 , _} /"".._: 

---J..-----· ..... __ ,, __ ' "" ,---~------···- ·-----
,t. (,-' 

The c.ubj<cet property iB legally rlc-scrihi'.'d ns foHm.n (indnde "idw'2-!! n1m1hersl: 

~S::~~ j<l;r:t(; l~<c :\ -----------------------
I (\Ve) tile nndersigued, do hereby respedfolly petition the City ofI'ontb.c for vac-atioa of nw 
Right-of-\Vay or Eascmrni rlrsrribed ;1bove {,;;wch uddi1io11al shcEi f(ne:1.'e.1s:11-:, 1_· 



•\lr:1d1eJ ls a m:ip \ndlc:Hin~ tlH'. area to, whid1 r;-1;··:Hion i, n:quc-;ted ;rnd Hw l1,eatir1n (,f 
tht· :ipplkau(s prop,,rr;,. 

/ -~-,' 

'lli= ____ ,_'C~-~~;,;,,:!J.:.:~,,~'.j,~1' \:.,~ 

LEANN BAER 
Notary Public • Michigan 

Oakland County 
MY Cornmisslon Expires6i 1f-c~J.:D 
Acting ln the County of -:;:;;;;,l •• , ,::;;;:;;;""'· 



8-20-2019 pm 

A) BOTH ADJOINING OWNERS; 

1)4G\I\/ RE.u.l ESTATE INVESTMENTS LLC 

2) 3937 Campus Drive Investments LLC 

B) MUTUALLY AGREE TO VACATE AND ABANDON CAMPUS DRIVE, BEING A PART OF 

"CENTERPOINT BUSINESS CAMPUS COl'lDOM!NlUM "OCCP # 1004 U6667 P. 011, 

LOCATED li'J THE NE% OF SECTION 3, T2N, R10E, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND CO., Ml. 

AS SHOWN ON SURVEY LABELED ''PARCEL F\ECOMBINATION g,. PROPOSED VACATION OF CAMPUS DRJVE 
" BY DAVID P SMITH & ASSC., INC, JOB II 18-051501 DATED 8-12-2019. 

THE REVERSIONAHY PARTS OF CA~1lPUS DRIVE WILL BE RECOMBlf'lED WITH THE ADJOINING PARCELS, 

C} THE VACATION Wll ACCOMODATE FUTURE EXPANS10N OF Ef\CH SITE. 

D) ALL ADJOINING PARCEL HAVE ACESS TO PUBLIC ROADS. 

E) BOTH ADJOlf\JlNG OWNERS Will. GRANT A 20' WIDE WATERM,'\IN AS SHOWN AS SAID SURVEY TO THE 
DRAIN COMMSION OF OAKLAND COUNTY. 

F) ALL OTHER EXISTING UTILITIES ARE PRIVATE. 



City Pontiac 

Daie: 

fn:.;tn .. H.:tious: .'\p;.:\li~~,)!i(,n:> fur \'rX:Hi<:Jll .:.Jr c'.,).:"l.il'\~ nf :'">\1<::i::, ;.Jk·.y: ,.~'<)Scri1(:1H ,.fr YHbF1; :·igH-trl~vr:,y ;;L:tH \r~ !ii'.:·d \\·iti: the 

OHic'.; ,)f L:-:nd \h<e .:,nd S:n{it-:;J,it· Phqu-1.\i;;r; ;ik,n.s \Vdt a SLSf/J fJ1) fc-t :md rt mHF ni the :'itr1 roqut:J1tJ for \':!L;:tion ;'.t. h.~,11t ::rn 

th(-:, .<:ltr~f:t ur :-,!by r,:•.<plc;\L'.. {} (<'-( ·,•('j('.·.\i'iC)) 1\•'htc!'C: pnr;;)l•,!,, i':1t'(1)}1}JL~.(c-:; ::p(lk:11!..:.~-.:t.s ,_.,;jH i.'.<-::lr:: 1 tte f:,"'l-.:'Y [lF)(·e·;:~. 

Rt:tt.1fJJ.n1<·-H6 ··l}oil: ,f the ?br:ni11~: (\;:;m1Pi\: )()1 ·,i}iH h-:; <'\);:w:n·dcJ ~11 :~h;.~ (1ty Cu,1nci! for f/1':Gi :tcier~ 

,----
! Mcrnt: 

i :~\d~~;;~--~ 
:-••---·• 

43067 

See 2tt2ci'ied 



---------·---~--

3937 LLC 

PAMELA O!JVER!O 
Publlll • Mlchi@Uil 

Com11y 
My CO!lltf1i½Sion Er.pit~$ ,Ju! '21. 2020 

o! ~----· --· 

r: • • ._; ~~•• ••~ •• 



8-20·2019 pm 

A) BOTH ADJOINING OWNERS: 

1)4GW REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS LLC 

2) 3937 Can1pus Drive Investments LLC 

B) iVlUTUALLY AGREE TO VACATE AND ABANDON Ct\MPUS DRIVE, BEING A PART OF 

"CENTERPOINT BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM "OCCP It 1004 L.16667 P. 01:l, 

LOCATED IN THE NE¾ OF SECTION 3, T2N, R10E, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAl<LAND CO,, IVll. 

AS SHOWN ON SURVEY LABELED "PARCEL RECOMBINATION & PROPOSED VACATION OF CAMPUS DRlVE 
" BY DAVID P. SMITH & ASSC., INC, JOB ff 18-051501 DATED 8-12-201.9. 

THE REVEHSIONARY PARTS OF CAMPUS DRIVE WILL SE RECOMBINED WITH THE ADJOINING PARCELS. 

C) THE VACATION WIL ACCOMOOATE FUTURE EXPANSION OF EACH SITE. 

D} ALL ADJOINING PARCEL HAVE ACESS TO PUBLIC ROADS. 

E) BOTH ADJOINING OWNERS WILL GRANT A 20' WIDE vVATERMAIN AS SHOWN AS SAID SURVEYTO THE 
DRAIN COMMSION OF OAl<LAND COUNTY. 

F} ALL OTHER EXISTING UTILITIES /\RE PRIVATE. 



CAMPUS DRiVE ROAD V.IACATION 

,t:~t·::.>l p.r,«, 
1<il¢Ul<:".,.01} 

\ 

·lV&·'" 

-~---, 

~ic r,~,.,~f Jt E:;,:;~=-C / 

l!i -(\~ ~::::::! :-11 

15-3, :1;:..:. ,.:.u-;:;:s 

L>;t ~ 

1 :i-n.<cc-::::2 

I. 
~:.~ '., Ii 

------,---, 

~ 

;;.~ 

;:-;.r 

,·.,.::;;;Th ,-,.:..;_F '.:>:::r 
3:<P ,,:.::r"",;:-i.;;; [,r.,,1 ir.·,,:!::tT.e.--:t:: 

\\D?S-S£RVER\Data\2018 DWG\ 1a-os1501 WILUAt-.-1S INTERNATlONAL PO{\lTIA(\ 1 eos 1 so 1 \ 9-24·2019) E CA7v\PU$ Vt.CATION cL-.g, 9/.2.l;JG19 3-32-3.2 DM, Adotie PC)F 

l r.,.f\) 

10 
<"!\<,ltl tW' ~c,iif. ~:0 t::'Pr:T-"•r'-:Y~ 



CAMPUS DRIVE ROAD VACA T!ON 

l, E:~ ,.; --· -- ~ 
L_,.· :._ 

s f()'.18'5"," £ 

-~::::-:---•-~;(~~r ·· - >I •:;~';:!~.- 1 'I(} cj 

;l;;'\\ 

. S'J~ .;ft''.\~~ .. , 
W">--••••"> -• ~-••- - --::=.-:;:';"'=~-

~'i7E . 

_;-----

L.OT 5 Z 

n.~ 
w 
.z 
L~ 
'-. 

' r;:-, 

i5 

~-GW REA.L ESTA TE 11'1\/ESTrvJENTS LLC 
,;-~-><0 1 ••• ::u2 

?:JOO c~;'"-r.R;..t)·. 1::i,;,;~J<·t-;.-:· 

."' ><-/Sc e 
' r'-.~~i::; .ht" 

ll-4'.'.- ;;;; t. 
n-s 

::s:.:':, 

~\i 

c".:!S'2::' 

_;:,i::7(::'.·,TOr-. 12 

->:':.3 

., ·-,-., 

..;GI/ Rt;.l tsr..:.,1£ ./',-'![STt,!ENTS 

4GVI R[;l..L EST.5. 7 E ltWESTMEfHS LLC 
i'J; 
,,f'. 

::.:? 1.-::- 0 
__ ,:,T 7 

::::J:::: 
REAL ESTATE !NV£STr .. ~EfHS LLC 

F:...,:.__T 

:,-:;,::- l 'C.C:.; l! 6t:!.:'.', ;:~ B~E ,::r;R 
,,. 
. .:,; 1 ':? - ,) = ·-· .::. j_:::._::. 

,1 -)3--20~:·~/01 

-: =-~L ·-

,.,~!,t"' u;.( 

;,;'_,;'/;f''~ rpc.::::or,;::: .._,,,:.l; ;c,, 

\\DPS-SERVfR\Data\2018 DV/G\18•051501 WILLIAMS !i\'.TERNA.TlON.Al PCNT!AC\1805!50.!( 9-24-2(}19} E CAf,.,'.PU$ VAC;U[Cf--J.d\'IJ. 9/2-4.r::t)19 3:::n·J6 ?rlL Adotre POf 

,·,~---••\' ·;,, 
••••~• ., ·A. i,r, 
,, ••.. -~;..•~ •0 •. 

-~~{~1 tl.-~ 

17 
~'.l!.J .:;..1.1HJ-:i. DR!~·€. 

"-l'-;~J,.t, o-l,~Kl> 

l~ 

I 

,, 
§ 
~ 

;; 

s-: 

. 0l 

~ 
: ~-
1 ?=-

!-i,~,,,,~; 1,,> (,;...,,.,_, (l."* -<>4>'•""4\> til 

-- I" 

;;-,/ », -;' y~,:v~·,s 

i'-,.,; 
(.__; 

-< <: 
,::::.1 
;-r-1 

,,,--~, 

GJ ,-
,~, 

r .. %t~ ~,;;-~1,r,,l.l,..!>" .1. 
r.:i:r,,~t1' ,,<<r,,;i. ::,r ,;:~ut-,.,;i. c",J<a.C 

r-q 

!:tR:..,n,_. __ :.r...__ CDMP . ..!1.!..DHU::CT•!1''\'~! ~ ~,t' 



r~-.-.. -·l e 



1 .. ~<7"~'" 

--,
/ 

n_: 
~ 
f-
z 
I 
L-. . .1 

C) 

2'-1 
:.) 

:;> 
tf:i 

~•i 
! 

~; ,:'"':\J~I--- ,_;L'.:.. 

-'l!:3L. 

E 
:. ,~S .1;3':_5" -2 .. 2, .. 

h':7,",;.-:,; 

"(;.•:;j 

0-~,- , I 
-S,,.IT-: 

ID 

4GYV REAL EST.A.TE lN'vESTfv1ENTS LLC 

'~t:·-1ER:.;,0If'! 1 ;:.:A:..:,-; 
:;,3.,-{ 

/;..;;,':..·!'t; 

-1GW REA:.. £STATE l~-ll/E:ST\,ENTS LLC 

·,_.1,11-

)(:2C CEHTE.R ;::,,;:);[\ff =,.:,f:<F'/f.l';1 

R£t.,,_ ESTATS ![-.VESTMENTS LLC 
(:,c,cp ff 1.:;,;,1. L. H)!:;l'-f PG C!.1~ -;)..:;R 

~ 

''l 

,~ 

. ,\.:,· ;.•· ,•($1~-, 

-::<:? 

j07-·> ~/ ·1 ::.-~,:i?~E.f:D --;~,.;.,..7:0'.J 

\\DPSwSERVER\Data\2018 OWG\ 18-051501 Wllll.A.fvtS lNTERNATJONAL ?Ol~'f!AC\EA!:H/ENTS D\>VG\130S. 1501{ 9<>;-2D19 h20 E~.SEtv'.El'HS.ch-;£1. 9124/2019 3 07:45 Plv\, .L.dob~:- PDF 

r. -~~•~'t ~>"',<..."\

..-,,.,~. ~" .' --.,-

··1 _ I c:::1iJit ., ~I' 

I 

1,; 1-!J r ~ .:-. 
l'.i-1.,'.-:::'.t:-fJJ';! 

I "I 
I 

lffe 
!¾ 

0 

;§; 

~<--~•~ q,-\W ;,,is~""'' ; .. %»t1•1 

L..c.J 

z-~~--~1'< F(<•'t" Xn" -:.~ ... ~···• ,...~.,.,....-,J~ 'l-

l,l-,).dN ...•. J.~.;, .. 

OJ 

LL 
,,.__.,...,,.. 

LL 
L....i 

1:----._j 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 Wuodwanl Ave ❖ Pontiae, Michigan 4834:l: 

Telephone: (248} 758-2800 

il;f ayor Deirdre TVaternum 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT ANO CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON- PLANNING MANAGER 
THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS·OISESSA 

CHALLENGE MANUFACTURING COMPANY 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS Of PA 198 Of 1974, 

ESTABLISH AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LOCATED ON 2501 
CENTERPOINT PARKWAY I PARCEL NO. 64-19-03-200-021 

RESOLUTION APPROVING OF CHALLENGE MANUFACTURING COMPANY FOR INDUSTRIAL 
fAC!UTIES EXEMPT!ON CERTIFICATE FOR A NEW FACILITY 

DECEMBER 4, 2019 

The City of Pontiac received an application dated October 23, 2019 from Challenge Manufacturing Company 
for Exemption of New Real Property under Michigan Public Act 198 of 1974 [see attached application]. The 
request relates to an estimated $13,635,232 dollar real property investment the Company is making in a 
57,000 square foot building addition of its manufacturing facility located in the City of Pontiac and expects 
to add 35 new jobs at the facility within two years of completion. Challenge Manufacturing Company is 
seeking a new 12 year Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate for the improvements they will be 
making next year. In addition, Challenge Manufacturing Company request to establish a new lndustrial 
Development District of their entire property located on 2501 Centerpoint Parkway, parcel no. 64-19-03-
200-021 [see attachment from Warner Norcross+ Judd dated November 15, 2019]. 

2501 Centerpoint Parkway has been designed as a Brownfield in effect until 2031, but may be terminated 
quicker if Challenge Manufacturing Company is repaid quicker. The property assessed value at time of 
Brownfield designation was zero on all the property parcels. Once the Brownfield is terminated all property 
taxes will flow to the City's general fund. The City of Pontiac and Challenge Manufacturing Company will 
prepare a Development Agreement that will acceptable to all parties. 

As you know, a new Industrial Development District would have to be established for Challenge 
Manufacturing Company to be eligible for the 50% abatement on the property taxes on the expansion and 
this rema[ning 50% would go into the Brownfield and eventually would be reimbursed to Challenge 
Manufacturing Company. The financial advantage to the City would benefit from, would be the½% income 
tax on the 35 individuals to be hired as part of the building addition, the 150 employees backfilled into the 
ex[sting operation, corporate income tax, plus any collateral benefit to businesses in the area. 

1 



ESTABLISH AN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPivlENT DISTRICT LOCATED ON 2501 
CENTERPOINT PARKWAY, PARCEL NO. 64-19-03-200-021 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of City of Pontiac, Michigan held on December 
· I 0, 2019, at Pontiac City Hall Council Chamber, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, lvfichigan 
48342 at 6:00 PM: 

PR.ESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The follo\ving preamble and resolution were offered by: and ------------
supported by: -------~ 

Resolution Establishing an Industrial Devefopntent District for Challenge Manufa.cru.ring 
Company 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 198 of 1974, as amended, this City Council has the authority to 
establish ''Industrial Development Districts'' within City of Pontiac, 1vlichigan ; and 

*WHEREAS, Challenge Manufactming Company has petitioned the City Council to establish an 
Industrial Development District on its property located in City of Pontiac, lv1ichigan hereinafter 
described; and 

**WHEREAS, construction, acquisition, alteration, or installation of a proposed facility bas not 
commenced at the time of filing the request to establish this district; and 

WHEREAS, written notice has been given by mail to all owners of real property located within 
the district, and to the public by newspaper advertisement in the Oakland Press and/or public 
posting of the hearing on the establishment of the proposed district; and 

'WHEREAS, on December l 0, 20 l 9 a public hearing was held at which all owners of real property 
within the proposed Industrial Development District and all residents and taxpayers of City of 
Pontiac, Michigan were afforded an opportunity to be heard thereon; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of Pontiac, Michigan 
to establish the Industrial Development District as proposed; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of City of Pontiac, Michigan that 
the following described parcel ofland situated in City of Pontiac, Oakland County, and State of 
Michigan, to w1t: 

Legal Description rsee EXHIBIT A, attached! 

December 10,2019 



is established as an Industrial Development Distlict pursuant to the provisions of PA 198 of 1974, 
as amended, an Industiial Development District located on 2501 Centerpoint Parkway, Parcel No. 
64-19-03-200-021. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

1 hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true ,md complete copy of a resolution adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, Michigan, as a regular meeting held 
on December 10, 2019. 

-
Interim City C1erk 

Dec<'mher 10,2019 



Legal Des<:Tiption 

LEf& DE$GRIPJJQN OE PRQJ:QSED CE~IERPOINT CHALLENGE PARCEL 

LAND lN 1HE: CITY OF PON.HAG, OAl<LAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, BEl!-lG ALL lHAT PART OF LOTS 1H1 AND PART OF BELT 
LINE RAIL ROAD; AS PLATTED, A PART Of "ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 110", A PAJ-H OF SECTION 3, T. 2 N., R.10 E., AS 
RECORO!:D IN UBER 52 Of PLATS, PAGE 26 Of OAl<LAND COUN1Y RECORDS, LYING Wl1HIN ·1HE fOLlOl'I\NG DESCRIBED 
PARCEL: COMMENCING AT THE NORlliEASf PROPmlY CONTROWNG COilNE/1 OF SECOON 3 (AS PREVIOUSLY SURVEYED DY 
NOWAK & FRAUS 04-05-07), T. 2 It, R,10 E,, CITY OF PON11AC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN: THENCE S. 00'36'21" W. 
ALOMG THE EAST LINE Of SAID SECTION J, 1215.50 FE!:.1; THENCE N. 89'23'39" W, 60,00 FEET TO A P01Ni, SAID POJNT 
!l8NG lHE lN1£RSEC110N OF 1HE SOU1H UNE OF CAMPUS DRIVE (1MD1H VNllES) V~Tii 1HE WEST LINE Of OPDYKE ROAD 
(120 FEET WIDE); THENCE S,00'-36'21'' W. ALONG 1HE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 2060.01 FEE1 TO A PotNT OF 
DEFLE:C'!JON; 1HENCE S, 00'24'47" E'.. ALONG THE W!:ST UNE Of OPDYKE ROAl}, 901.82 FEET TO THE NORTHl:AST COf{NER 
OF UNIT 5 OF CENT£RPO)NT BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM, A CONDOMINUJM ACCOROJNG TO THE MAS1ER DEEO 
THEREOF RECORDED !N UBER 16667, PAGE 11, OAKLI\ND COUNTY RECORDS, AND DESIGNAlED AS OAKLAND COUNTY 
OONDOMJNIUM PLAN NO. 1004, AND ANY AMENDMENTS lHERETO, AS LAST AMENDED BY EIGH1H AMENDMENT TO MASTER 
OEEO RECORllEO IN UBER J5596, PAGE 855, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; 1HENCE 1HE FOll.O\'llNG FlVE (5) COURSES 
ALONG TliE NORTI-1 LINE Of SAID UNIT 5 ANO UNITS 21, 22, ANO 40 Of SAID CEN1ERPOlNT llUSJNESS CAMPUS 
CONDOMINIUM: (1) S. 89'.35'13" W, 35.00 FEE:T, AND (2) N. 00'24'47" \'/,, 20.00 FEET, AND (3) 210,91 FEET ALONG A 
CURVE TO THE LETT (RADIUS 2!5.00 Fl:'.ET, CENTRAL ANGLE 56'12'23", LONG CHORD BEARS S. 61'29'01" W., 202,56 FEET) 
TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, AND (4) 22D.24 FEET ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS 225.00 1'£ET, 
CENlRAL ANGLE 57'36'46", LONG CHORD BEARS S. 62'11'1J" W., 2115.8.3 FEET), AND (5) N. I.W00'24" I'/., 706,20 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF Bf.GINNING; 1Hf.NCE CONTINUING ALONG ltlE t40RTH LINE Of UNIT 40 AMO 24- OF SA!fl CENTf.RPOINT 
8USIMESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM, N. 89'00'24" W., 716.42 FE£T TO A POINT ON 11-lt EASTERLY UN£ OF CENTERPOINT 
PARKWAY (WJOTH VARIES); lHEN(..1:'. THE fOll.01',JNG flVf. (5) COURSES ALONG SA!O EASTERLY LINC: Of CENll:RPOINT 
PARKWAY, (t) N. 45'10':lO" \V,, 432.89 FEET, 1\ND (2) 519.'16 FEET ALONG A CtJRV£ TO 1HE RIGHT (RADIUS •100,00 FEET, 
CEN'TRAL ANGLE 74'24'38", LONG CHORD BEARS N. 07'58'11" W., 48J.74 FEET), ANO (3) ~l. 2S'l4'08' E •• 299.59 FEET, 
AND (4} 364.JJ FEET ALONG A CURv1: TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 750,00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 27'49'59", CHORD BEARS N. 
l5'19'08" E., 360.76 FEET), AMO (5) N. 01'24'09" C, 423.92 FEET; 1HENCE LSAVlNG 'f1-lE EASTERLY UNE OF CEN1ERPOINT 
PARKWAY, S. 89'00'24" E., 870.00 FEET; THENCE S, 00'59',35• W., 1815,00 FEET BACK TO ll-i£ POltff OF 8EG!NNING, 1H!S 
DESCRIBED PARCEL CONT/IINS 40.3019 ACRES CF LAMD, MORE OR LESS, AND IS SUBJEC'l' 10 ALL i::ASEMEriTS ANO 
RESTRIC110NS OF RECORD. 





RESOLUTION APPROVING OF CHALLENGE MANUFACTURING 
COMPANY FOR INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EX.E'.MPTION CERTIFICATE 

FOR A NEW FACILITY 

Minute-S of a regular meeting of the City Council of City of Pontiac, Michigan held on 
December 10, 2019, Pontiac City Hal1 Council Chamber, 47450 Woodward Avenue, 
Pontiac, Michigan at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by ___________ _ 
and supported by _____________ _ 

Rcsoh1tion Approving Application of ClrnJfongc M::rnufacturing Company for 
fodustrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for a New Facility 

\,\t11EREAS, pursuant to P.A. 198 of 1974, M.C.L 207.551 et seq., afrer a duly noticed 
public hearing held on December 10, 2019, this City Council by resolution established an 
lmiustrial Devcloprnent District located on 2501 Centerpoint Parbvay, Parcel No. 64-19-
03-200-02 l; and 

\VHEREAS, Challenge Manufacturing Company has filed an application for an industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate with respect to a new facility to be installed within the 
Industrial Development District located on 250 I Ccntcrpoint Parkway, Pared No. 64-l 9-
03-200-021; and 

WHEREAS, before acting on said application, the City Council held a hearing on 
December 10; 2019, at City Hall Council Chamber, on 47450 Woodward Avenue, 
Pontiac, Michigan, at 6:00 PM, at which hearing the applicant, the Assessor and a 
representative of the affected taxing units were given written notice and were afforded an 
opportunity to be heard on said application; and 

WHEREAS, construction of the facility and installation of new machinery and equipment 
had not begun earlier than six (6) months before December 10, 2019, the date of 
acceptance of the application for the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate; and 

WHEREAS, completion of the facility is calculated to and will at the time ofissuance of 
the certificate have the reasonable likelihood to retain, create or prevent the loss of 
employment in City of Pontiac, Michigan~ and 

WHEREAS, the aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad 
valorem taxes within the City of Pontiac, Michigan, after granting this certificate, 
wm uot exceed 5% of an amount equal to the su.m ofthe SEV of the UJ1it, plus the 
SEV of personal and real property thus exempted. 

December 10,2019 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the City Council of lhe City of Pontiac, 
Michigan that 

1. The City of Po:ntfac, Michigan finds and determines that the grnnHng of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate considered together with the aggregate 
amount of certificates previously granted and currently in force under Act No. 198 
of the Public Acts of 1974, shall not have the effect of subsfantiaUy impeding the 
openitfon of the City of Pontiac, Mkhigan, or impairing the finrmdal smm.c.h1ess of a 

tun it which levies ad valorcm property taxes ia1 the City of P<mtiac, Mkhig::m. 

2. The application from Challenge Ivfanufacturing Company for an Industia1 Facilities 
Exemption Ce1tificate, with respect to a New Facility on the follov,,.ring described parcel 
of real property situated within the fndustrial Development District, to wit Legal 
Description [see EXHlB[T A attached] be and the same is hereby approved. 

3. The City of Pontiac and Challenge Manufacturing Company will prepare a 
Development Agreement that ,viii be acceptable to all paiiies. 

4. The Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate when issued shall he and remain in 
fhrce for a period of twelve ( 11) years. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

I hereby ce1i1fy that the fi)rcgoing constitutes a trnc and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the City Council of City of Pontiac, County of Oakland, l'vlichigan, at a 
regular meeting held on December I 0, 20 l 9. 

Interim City Clerk 

December l 0, 20 ( ') 



Exhibit A 

Legal Descdpfom 

LEML.DESCRIPl]ON Of PRQPQSE!LCfilltRPQJ.lff CHALLENGE PARCEl 

LANO IN 1H£ CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNT<, MICHIGAN, BEING ALL '!HAT PART OF LOTS fl-11 AND PART OF BELT 
LINE RAJL ROAD, AS PLAmo. A PART OF "ASSC:SSOR'S PLAT NO. 110·, A PART OF SECTION 3, T. 2 N., R.10 r .• AS 
RECORDED lN UBER 52 OF PL.ATS, PACE 26 OF OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, LYING 1'111HIN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED 
PARCtl.: COMMENCING AT 1HE NOR11,E1\SZ PROPERW CONTROWNG CORNER OF SECTION 3 (AS PR£VIOUSL'r' SURVEYED BY 
NOWAI< & FRAVS 04-05-07), T. 2 N., R,10 £,, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUN1Y, MICl-llGAN: !l• ENCE S, 00'36'21" W. 
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 3, 1215.50 FE£T; ,HENCE N, 89'23'39" W, 60,00 FEET TO A POINT, SAlD POlNT 
l:lElNG 1HE !N'lE~SEC'flON OF WE soum LINE OF CAMPUS DRIVE (1'<101H VARl£S) 1'111H 11-JE WEST LINE OF OPD\'KI': ROAD 
(120 FEET WIDE); 1Hl:NCE S,00'36'21" W. ALONG 111E WEST LINE OF OPDYl<E ROAD, 2060,01 FEET TO A POINT OF 
DEFLECTION; 1l-lENCE $, 00'24'47" E. ALONG 111E \'/EST LINE OF OPDYl<E HOA!), 901.ll2 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER 
OF UNlT 5 OF CENTERPO!Ni BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM, A CONDOMINIUM ACCOROlMG TO TI1E MASU:::R DEED 
1l• EREOF RECORDEO lN UBER 16667, PAGE 11, OAKLAND COUNTY llECORDS, AND DESIGNAlEO AS OAl<.LAND COUNTY 
CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO. 1004, AND ANY AMENOMEN'rS lHERETO, AS LAST AMENDED BY E(GH1H AMENDMENT TO MASTE:R 
DEED RECOROEO IN UBER J5596, PAUE 855, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS: 1liENCE lliE FOLLO\'llNG flVE (5) COURSES 
ALONG '(HE NORTii LINE Of SAIO UNIT 5 AND UNITS 21, 22, AND 40 OF SA!O CEN1ERPOINT aus,m:ss CAMPUS 
CONOOMJN!UM: (1) S, 89'35'13" W, 35,00 FEET, AND (2) N. 00"24'47" W .. 20.00 FEET, AND (3) 210.91 FEET ALONG A 
CURVE TO THE !.E:FT (RADIUS 215,00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 56'12'23", LONG CHORD BEARS S. 61'29'01" W., 202.56 tEET) 
TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, AND (4) 226.24 FEET ALONG A CURVE TO lliE RIGHT (RADIUS 225,00 rEET, 
CENmAL ANGLE 57'36'46", LONG CHORD BEARS S. 6211'1:5" W., 216.83 FEET), ANO (5) N. $9'00'24" W., 706,20 tEET TO 
THE POINT OF SEGINN!NG; WENCE CONTINUING ALONG 11-!E NORlH LINE OF UNIT 40 NJO 24 OF SAID CENTf.RPOINT 
BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM, N. 89'00'24" W., 71$,42 FEET TO A POlfff OM 1l• t E'.ASTERLY UNE OF CE:NT£RPOINT 
PARl(WAY (l'i1Dlli VARIES): 1HENCE nu: f'OLL0\~1NG FIVE (5) COURSES ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE OF CENTERPOJNT 
PARKWAY: (I) N. 45'10'30" IV., 432.09 FEET, ANO (2) 519.48 FEET ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RAOlUS 400,00 FEET, 
CENmAL ANGLE 74'24'38", LONG CHORD BEARS N. 07'58'11" I'/., 463.74 FEET), ANO (3) M. 29'14'08" E., 299.59 FEET, 
AND (4) 364.33 F£ET ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 750,00 Ff.Ef. CENTRAL ANGLE 27'49'59", CHORD SEARS N. 
15'19'08" E., 360.76 PEET), AND (5) N. 01'24'09" E., 423.92 FEET; THENCE l£AV1NG lHE EASTERLY UNE OF CENTERPOlNT 
PARKWAY, S. 89'00'24" E., 670,00 FEET: TTiENCE S. 00'59'36" W., 1815.00 FEET BACK TO lHE POINT OF BEGINNING. lHIS 
DESCRISEO PARCEL CONTAINS 40.3019 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, AND 1S SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENT:; AND 
NESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 



October 23, 2019 

City Clerk, Garland Doyle 
City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Ave 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

Main Offlca - Walker 
Challenge Mfg. Company 
3079 Thmo Mlle Rd NW 
Walker, Ml 4$534 
Tele; 616-73-64500 . ., 
Fax: 616 7J5-6700 

Subject: Michigan Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended (";\cl''); Application for Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption certificate 

Attn: City Clerk, Garland Doyle 

Challenge Mfg. Company, LLC is hereby respectfully requesting two things, as follows: 

First, the acceptance of the attached Application for Exemption of New Real Property under Michigan Public Act 198 of 1974. 
The purpose of the request relates to the estimated $13,63'.;,232 real property investment the Company is making in the 
57,000 square foot expan:;ion of its manufacturing facility !ocated within the City, The site of the focllity will be at 2501 

Center point Parkway. The Company is requesting that the acceptance of this application to h12lp reduce some of the capital 
costs of \he project and believes the s;ivings will help the inilial success and sus\ainabiiity of the project, a sitttation that 
benefits all parties. As such, we appreciate your consideration of the Challenge Mfg. Company, LLC Public Act 198 application, 

Second, the Company is also requesting that the Ciiy confirm the estJblished Industrial Development District ("District") in a 
signed Resolution. The Act requires thal the City provide to the State, as part of the approved Certificate Application package, 
a certified copy of the Resolution establishing the District. The Company's records show that the Dlstrlct was inil!a!ly 
established on November 5, 1984, but neither the Company nor the City is able to lornte l1 copy of the signed City Resolution. 

Therefore, we request that a new Resolution be signed by the City to confirm the existing District and the date It was Initially 
(>.stablished, so that the Company's enclosed Appllcntion comp!ifis with the requirements of the /\ct. 

Pfe;,se inform me ;,nd our legal counsel of the date and time of the public hearing to consider this App!lcat!on, so that a 
represent;itive of the company will be available to answer questions. Our legal counsel contact information Is as follows: 

Very truly yours, 

Melissa N. Collar 
Warner Norcross+ Judd 
1500 Warner Building 

150 Ottawn Avenue NW 
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503 
mcollar@wr)J,_gom 
(616) 752-2209 

CHALLENGE MFG. COMPANY, LLC 

,<I;-;!,:/ • . ,,:1 ,r·" -7 
//?✓t::,(~v r -;;f,,,£~t:£.4.. 
Mkhael F. Rodgers 
CFO 

19167770-i 



Mlchlgnn Deparlmen! or TreaSUIY 
'I 012 (Rev. 04-19), Pago 1 of 4 

Application for Industrial Faci!!ties Tax Exemption Certificate 
Issued un<lar aulho,ily of Public Acl 196 of 1974, as amended. FIiing Is mandatory. 

INSTRUCTIONS: File the original and one copy of this form and the require.d alta.;hments {two complele sets) wl!h the clerk of the 
local government unit The Stale Tax Commission (STC) requires one complete s1;;l (one original). One copy is retained by !he clerk. If you 
have any questions regarding tile cornpieUon of this form, call 5'17-335-7460. 

Sfunnluri~ of Clerk 

• Applicut!on Humber 

APPUCANT 1Nf0Rl\l1ATION 
All boxes must be completed. 

To be_coinpleted by Clerk u( Local Gove,nment Uni! 
• Dalo Hec,,;v,,d by Local Unil 

-. ··• STC Use Only 
), Date l<uce.ived lly 8TC 

• 1a, Comp;~yi~;;;;~ (AJ;pi!~;~\mus( be lhe occup;~t/;;-p;;;olor ol the facility) • lb, Slandard lndustril\l Classittca!io;;-(SIC) Godo - s;;~, ?.(10) (4 ()/a Digit Code) 

Challenge Mfg. Company, LLC 34_6_0~~--
• 1~:-i:~~;i°iiy ;;d<lres; (Cily, Slat<>. 7.IP Godo) (real cod/or porsonal property looalioaj. "f 1d, CllyfTownshipNillage (lndicole whlcl1) • 1e. County 

Oakland 2501 Cenlerpoint Parkway, Pontiac, Michigan, 4834i City of Pontiac __ _ 
• 2, Type of Approval Requested • 3n, School Dislrici where focilily is localod --• 3b. School Code 

Pontiac 63030 

Fi
·- New (Soc. 2(5)) [~· Transfer 

. Speculative Buildin(l (Sec, 3(/l)) L Rehabill!atlon (Sew, :\(fl)) ,1. Arno•mt uf years 1equeslBd for exernplion (1-12 Years) 

Re$oar<:h ;,nd D,wHlopmen\ (Sec. 2(10)) Increase/Amendment ·12 
5. Pef section .5, the apf)ii·c·ni·iQ·O··shol! t;onloin or bo -accompanied by a ge,ooral dusctiptlon of Urn fm:i\1{1/--~~-f\(1··,:;· gen-;r-;f,J8SCrip-ii(m-Oft-he propos!~{i l1tm of {he facl!i1y, the nenerBl 
n0tuiH nnd uxteni of lho rostomllon, replacarnrmtj or {:t)Os-tn.1cHon io b?. undedaken, ;:i <lr.scriptive !is! of !ho equipment th~t v,ill be part of the tw.:ilily. /\ltac:h ndditlonal page(s) if 
moro room Is ncodcd, 

See Exhibit B attached. 

, ___________________________________________________ , 
6a. Coot of land and building improvemonls (nxdudlng cost of land),, 

'1\tli1ch Hsi of i111provet1H)l\!S and associated cos(s. 
'Also allach a t.0py of building permil If project has already begun. 

flb, Cosl of maclllM1y oquipmenl, fumiluro and fixtures,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ,,,,, .,,.,., ,,,,,,,.,.,,, ,., ,, .,.,,,,,. 
'/\(!acll HP-rnfzed lig\in(l with monlh, day and year of lieginnin!) of lnslullulio11. plus lotnl 

• i~,635,232 
Real Properly Costs 

)- 0 
Personal Properly Costs 

6c. Total Projocl Costs , ,.,.,,,,, .,,,..,.,,,.,.,.,..,.,,..,, ... ,.,,.,.,.,,.,, ,,,,,,,,,,. ,..,. .•• ,,, ,,,,,,.,.,,.,,,., .,,,,, ... ,, . ., ,,.,,., •.. ,,. ,,,, .... ,,.,,, .. ., ,, • 13,635,232 
' Round Costs to Nearest Dollar Total of Roal & Personal Cos1s 

!--------------------- ______ , __ ,_ ----------------------
7, lndicnto the limo schcdulo for slart and finish of conolrucllon and equipmont installoilon, Projects n1t1st be completed wilhln a two year pc rind of tho offcc!ivo dato of tho 
ceiiificato unless olhcm .. bc approved by lhfj STC. 

!kQln Date JMID/VJ end Dale /Mi® 

Heal Property Improvements • i'l/05/2019 08/30/2020 )> ig)ownml 0 Leased . ------·· -------
Pers/)n~I Properly Improvements • ·--- --~--- ----·---, ., ~---.-- -······-- • [8)owned [J Leflsed 

). ~- Aro Sia lo Educslion Taxes reduced or a haled by lhe Mlchlgan Economic Develop men\ Corporallon (MfiDC)'i If yos, appllcanl musl allach a signed MElJC Letter of 

Commitment lo receive this exemption, 0 Yes ~ No 

• 9. No, or exlsllng jobs al lhis faclli!y Iha! will be retained"" u 1esult of lhis project. • 10. No, of new )ohs al (his facility expected lo croute wilhin 2 year,; of complolion, 

NIA - No impact to existing jobs ____ ,,___,3_5 ___________________ --1 

11:--Rehabliiiallon appllcnllons or,ly: Cornplo!n "• band c ollhis seci(on, You mus! allach tho assessor's slotornont of SEV for lhe enlire plant ,ehobilHolion distrlcl nod 
obsolescence slalomont for pmperiy. Tile faxoble Voh,e (TV) dalo below must boas of Daccmbor 31 of Iha year prior lo Iha rehabilllallon, 

a, TVo/ £<cal Property (oxcluding land),,,,,,_,,,,,,,,,,, 

t,, TV ,11 Personal Properly (excludi119 inventory) ,,,,,,,, .. ,,,,,,,,,,,,.,,,. ,,.,., , 

Q Total TY.,,,,,,,,,,,,.,, .. ,,,,,.,,,,,,.,,.,,,, ....... ,, ....... ,,,. •• ,,.,,,.,,,.,,,,,,,,, ..... ,,,,,,,,,,,,,.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,.,,,., ,,,,,,,,,, .,.,,,,,,,,,_,, .,,,,,,,.,,,,,,,, .,,,,, 

• 12,1, Check thu type of Oislficl lho fadlily Is loca\e,J lo: 

IX] 111ctustrlal Oevolopmo11t Di$lrlct [] Plant Rzihabllitnt!on Dl,1l1kl 
1------ ·-~-,~,-~-~--------------------~----------------------------1 

} 12c. Is !his application for a speculativo building (Sec. 3(8))? • 12b, Dnto dlslncl was ostabllshod by local government u.~t (contact local unit) 

11/05/1984 D Yes lRJ No 



1012,Page2of4 

APPLICANT CER.TlFICATION • complete all boxes. 
Thi) ondorslgned, authorized officor of Iha company making \his appllca!ion certifies 1hnl, lo lhe bes( oi his/her fmow!edno, no information contained 
herein or In the allaehmenls hereto is false in any way and !hat all are truly descriptive of 1be Industrial properly for which this application is being 
sub111ltted, 

ll ls fwlher certified thol lhe undersigned is fam!flar with lha provisions of P.A. ·198 of 1974, as arnrn1tlod, bolng Sections 207.551 lo 207.572, Inclusive, of 
the Mfch!gan Compiled Laws: and lo the best of hlslhHr knowledge and belief, (s)tie has compiled or will Im able lo comply with all of the requirements 
lhcrcof which am prerequisite lo :he approvol ol tho appllcaiion by tho local unit of government and the Issuance of an Industrial Fae.ill lies Exemption 
Co1lifica1e by !he Slate Tax Commission. 

13a. Preparer Name 

Michael F. Rodgers 
"i4iC-Ni~~i-1"1;- ,;r c;orl1ai_)C1:iurS01l· 

Michael F. Rodgers 

13b, Telephone Nurn!Je/ 

(6'16) 735-6559 
~~ --~-- . --- ~, ~·~~-~ -• 

14h. Tnlephorie Numbur 

(G·lG) 735-6559 
• 150. Home of Compa_n_y_O_ft_ic-or_(_N_o_Aulhcrizod Agents) 

Michael F. Rodgers 
16b. Slonalure of Cornpnny Olflcer (No Authorized Agents) ·toe. l'ax Nomber ·1tid.Dn\e 

,;:rJ,·'J,,,:/ ".,,-'./ ./ ,x1··-' ,r;,? ,, '10/23/2019 
·-·· // (k,-,-c'.«.~I' " '/f.:.~'[_Cl'fa?'C...Ul"-',A . .,"-----------l--------------l----------
• 1?0. h!Dlling Addrer,s (Sire.el, City, rnate,,ZIP Code) 151. Tolophon<: Number 15g. E-mail Address 

3200 Fruil Ridge Avenue, NW Walker, M! 49544 (616) 735-6500 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTION & CERTIFICATION· complete al! boxes. 
fhis section must be completed lly the clerk of the local governing unit before submi!ting application lo the Slate Tax Commission. Check Ito ms on !lie 
at the Local Unit and those Included wtlh lhe submittal. 

--··· .. ,. ------
• 16. Aclion token by local governmenl unit 10b. Tile Slnle Tax Commission Requires the foliowinq dceomenls lie meu fo, ,m 

adminisllatival)' complete appllcalion: 

[] Abatemnnt Approwd for ___ Y(s Rcoal {H'.,), __ Yrs Pers (H1) Check or Indicate NIA If riot App!lcabl& 
' 

At!cr Complcf/on O Yot. 0Nn 1. Original Applica lion plus altachmonls, and one complete copy -
2. Resolu!lon establishing district 

[ ] Ponied (Include Jiesolulion Uonying) ----
3. Rosolulion approving/denying applicalion. 

-
4. Letter of .n.greernen! (Slqned by !oc,,I 1JJ1ll ,u1d applicant) ------· ·-·· ------····- ---~-~ 

1lla. Oocurnonts !Zequlrod lo boon !llo with lhe Local Uni! ·-·-
5. Affidavit of Fees (Signed by local unit and appllcnn!) C!rnck or lndlcato NIA ii Not Applicablo -Ll 1. NoUce lo \ho '''"" "°' W '°"'" ~,-" Ushiog , "'"'"' -
6. Building Permit for real improvements If project has alteady begun 

2. Notice to taxing authorilies o/ opportunity for a hearing. 7. Equipment Usl with dales of beginning o( in,,tallation 
-·-· 

3. I.Isl of taxing aulhoritlos notified for dis Irie! and application action. -
8. Form 3222 (If applicabl(~) 

'1, Lease Agreement showing applicants lax liability. 9. Speculative building resoluUon and affidavils (II applicable) 
. .. 

··--·-,~~ , -, ~-me.•, ·------ ·-~. ··- ···································-·· 
16c. Schoel Code 

17. Nome of Local Govornme1)t Oody • 18. Dale of Resoltlllon App101,ng/Den1tjnq this /lpplicn!lon 

--·----·---~---·-····--·-~~----·-···---~-··--· •••----M ~- =•~•~--•~~ "-•••N ··••--~--•• -----

Attached hornlo Is an original appllcal!on and all documents !isled In 16b. I also certify that all c!ecnmonls listed in ·16a aro on fi!o a( the local 
unit for !nspocl!on at any tlrno, and that any loas,1s show sufflc!en! tax Unbillty. 

19;1. Sigrmlure ol Cle,k. . , ..... l i'!ib. Narno or C!Mk 

'.fg,fCici'l:S.Mulllng Address (Slreet, City, Sll1te, ZIP (.:,Y!e.) -··-··-··· 

......... _S"f. Fax Nu_rr_,b_e-,_-_ -_ -_-_-_-_···_-_-_-_--_-·_ .. _ ... _. _______ ... _·_·--------~----~--

Slate Tax Commission f<llle Number 57: Complete applications approved by \he local unit and received by llio Stato Tex Commission by October 31 
i,ad1 yem will be acted upon by December 31. Applications roceived after Oclober 31 may be ac!ed upon In 1he following year. 

Local Uni!: Mail one original of the complelud appliaallon af\ll all required a!tadnnents to: 

Michigan Dopsr!mont of Treasury 
Stale Tax Gommlssion 
PO Box 30471 
Lansing, Ml 48909 

(For guaranteed rocelpl by (he STC, il is recommended thal applications are sent by certified mail.) 

,src USE: OIIIL y .. -.·· 
• l:legln Dale Peraonal 



EXIDBIT A 

Property 

I E!-;A1 DES(;RIPTION OF PRQPOSJ-:0 CfNJERPO!NI CH,!\! I fNGE PARCEL 

LANO IN THE C1TY OF PON11AC, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, BEING ALL 1HAT PART OF LOTS 8-11 ANO PART OF BELT 
LINE RAIL ROAO, AS PLATTED, A PART OF "ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 110", A PART OF SECTION 3, T. 2 N., R.10 E., AS 
RECORDED IN UBER 52 OF PLATS, PAGE 26 OF OAKLAND COUNTY R£COROS, LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWJNC DESCRIBED 
PARCEL COMMENCING AT 11--!E NORTI-1EAST PROPERTY CONTROLLING CORNER OF SECTION 3 (AS PREVIOUSLY SURVEYED BY 
NOWAK & FRAIJS 04-05-07), T. 2 N., R.10 E., CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND COUNTY, 1,HCHJGAN: 1H£NCE S, 00'36'21" W. 
ALONG lHE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION J, 1215.50 FEET; THENCE N. 89'23'39" W. 60.00 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT 
BEINC 1HE IN1ERSEC1JON OF 1l-JE SOUTH LINE OF CAMPUS DRIVE (WID1H VARIES) WllH THE \\'£ST LINE Of OPDYKE ROAD 
(120 FEET WIDE}; THENCE s.00·3e·21" w. ALONG THE WEST UNE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 2060.0l FEET TO A POINT OF 
DEFLEC110N; '!HENCE S. 00•24'47" E. ALONG iHE WEST LINE OF OPDYKE ROAD, 901.82 FEET TO THE NORThEAST CORNER 
OF UNIT 5 OF CENTERPO!NT BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOI/JNIUM, A CONDOMINIUM ACCORDING TO THE MASTER DEED 
THEREOF RECORDED IN UBER 16667, PAGE 11, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS, AND DESIGNATED AS OAl<LAND COUNTY 
CONDOMINIUM PLh,N NO. 1004, AND ANY AMENOMEN1S THERETO, AS LAST AMENDED BY EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO MASTER 
DEED RECORDED IN UBER 35596, PAGE 855, OAKLAND COUNTY RECORDS; 11-IENCE THE FOLLOWJNC FIVE (5) COURSES 
ALONG THE NOR.TH LINE OF SAID UNIT 5 AND UNITS 21, Z.2, AND 40 OF SAID CENTERPOINT SUSINESS CAMPUS 
CONDOMINIUM: (1) S. 89.35'13" W, 35,0D FEET. AND (2) N. 00'24'47" W., 20.DO FEET, ANO (3) 210.91 FEET ALONG A 
CURVE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 215,00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 5612'23", LONG CHORD BEARS S. 61'29'01" W., 202.56 FEEi) 
TO A POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE, AND (4) 226.24 FEET ALONG A CURVE TO lliE RIGHT (RADIUS 225.00 FEH, 
CEN'!RAL ANGLE 57'36'46". LONG CHORD BEARS s. s2·11'13" w., 216.83 FEE,), AND (5) N. s9·00•24• w., 706.20 FEET TO 
THE POINT Of BEGINNING: THENCE CON11NU1~1G ALONG THE NORTI-1 LINE OF UNlT 40 AND 24 Of SAID CENTERP01NT 
BUSINESS CAMPUS CONDOMINIUM. N. 89'00'24" W., 716.42 FEET TO A POINT ON TI-lE EASTERLY LINE OF CENTERPOINT 
PARKWAY (WlDlli VARIES); lHENCE THE FOLLOWlNG FlVE (5) COURSES ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE Of CENTERPOJNT 
PARKWAY: (1) N. 45'10'30" W., 432.89 FEET, AND (2) 519.48 FEET ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT (RADIUS 400.00 FEET, 
CENTRAL ANGLE 74'24'38", LONG CHORD BEARS N. 07'58'11" W., 483.74 FEET), AND (3) N. 2914'08" E., 299.59 FEET. 
AND (4) 354.33 FEET ALONG A CURvE TO THE LEFT (RADIUS 750.00 FEET, CENTRAL ANGLE 2T49'59", CHORD SEARS N. 
15'19'08'' E., 360.76 FEET). AND (5) N. 01'24'09" E., 423.92 FEET; lHENCE LEA\ilNG THE EASTERLY LINE OF CENTERPOINT 
PARKWAY, S. 89'00'24" E., 870.00 FEET; THENCE S. 00'59'36" W., 1815.00 FEET BACK TO 1liE POINT OF BEGINNING. lHIS 
DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 40.3019 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, AND IS SUBdECT TO ALL EASEMEN1S AND 
RESTRIC110NS OF RECORD. 

A legal description for the Property as provided by Vern Gustafsson is also attached on Lhe pages 
thnt follow. 



12 ASSESSORS PLAT N0_.1_1~0 ________________________ -l 

L3 __ PARTOF 

14 LOTS 8 THRU 11 TNCL & 
5 IPART OF BELT LINE RR 

f6 ALL DESCAS .· ,. 
----~ 

17 BEG AT PT DJST j 

18 S 00-36-21 W 1215.50 FT &- 1 

19 N 89-23-39 W 60 FT & ~-- ~ - . ! 1---· 
110 S 00-36-21 W 2060,01 FT & 
11 S 00-24-47 E 901.82 FT & ! 

!12 S 89·35·13 W 35 FT & ·----1 L13 N 00-24-47 W 20 FT & . 
14 S 61-29·01 V>/ 202.,56 FT & 

I u.:: S 62°11·13 W 216.83 FT & 
'.1,:.t) N 89-00-24 W 706.20 FT 
!17 FROM NE SEC COR 
!16 TH N 89·00-24 W 716;42 FT 
!19 TH N 45-10-30 W 432.89 FT 
2Q __ TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT 

21 RA0·400H. CHORD BEARS 
22 N 07-58-11 W 483.74 fT 
23 DIST OF 519.48 FT .. """'"""-'"'·" 

24 TH N 29-14·08 E 299.59 FT -~-·-
25 11i ALG CURVE TO LEFT 

26 RAD 750 Ff CHORD BEARS 

27' N 15-19-08 E 360,76 FT 
28 DIST OF 364.33 FT 

129 TH N OJ.:24-09 E 423.92 Fl' 
'30 TH S 89-00·24 E 870 FT . 

lL. TH S 00-59-36 \/•1'1815 FT ,._,_.._,_.., ___ .~-, - -· 
32 TO BEG 
~) 4-15-14 FR 019 



Address Infu Le end 
iEl = Primar1 Mailing 

, cc Primary Sile 
G} ~ Extra Slte 

*=Primary 

,• ~ Secondary 
/I/it = Can, Of 

£'; = Other 
B!nck = fndiv',auai 
5_.-cv,ir- _.-t Organi:rnti<m 
GrP..-e.1t = Trust 

'*C,ailen,;e Pontiac 3200 Fruit Ridge Ave NW 
Walker MI 49544-9707 
2501 Cenlerpoinl Pkwy ,, 

Pontiac Ml 48341 



1012, P~9e 3 o! 4 

Instruction for Completing Form 101 
Industrial Facilities Exemption (IFT) Application 

The completed original application form l 0 12 and all 
required aHachmcnts, M.lJST be filed with the clerk 
of the local unit of government where !he fodlity is or 
will be loeated. Complete applications must be received 
by the State Tax Commission by Ot,;tober 31 to ensure 
processing nnd certification for the following (ax year. 
Appticaiilrns received after the Odober 31 deudline wHl 
be proce:;se<l as expeditiously as possible. 

Please note that attachments listed on the npp!icntion in 
number llin arc to be retained by tho local unit of 
government, and attachments.listed in number l 6b arc 
to he ineludcd wilh the applicalion when forwarding to 
the Stale Tax Commission (S'J'C). 

(Before commeneement of a project the local unit of 
government must estabib:!1 u district, or the applicant 
must request in wridng n dis!riet be established, in 
order to qualify for an 1FT abatement. Applien!ions 
and attacllmen1s must be received by the local unit of 
government within six months of commencement of 
project.) 

The following infornrnliun is required oH separate 
docmueuts attached to form HH2 by (he npplicant 
and provided to tlrn local unit of govcrnmclli ( city, 
township 01· village). (l'rnvliling an accurnle school 
district where llw facility is locntcd is vital.): 

l. Legal dcscdp!ion of the real prnpcrty on which the 
foeility is or wi!l he locaied. ;\ lso provide property 
idcn!ilkn!ion number if available. 

2. Personal Properly Requirement:,: Comple!e list of 
new machinery, equipmen{, fomhure and fixtures 
which will be used in the facility. The list should 
inc!mlo description, beghrning date of insiiillatfon 
or expected installation by mnnH1/day/yeac, and 
costs or expected costs (sec sample). Delail listing 
ofnrnchincry nnd equipment must match amount 
shown on question 6b of the application. Personal 
property applications mm:( have attached a certified 
statement/affidavit as proof of !he beginning date of 
ins!tdlation (see snmple), 

3. Renl Property Requirements: Proof of dale !he 
construction started (groundbreaking). Applicant 
must include one of the following if the project has 
a!rnady begun; building J)Crmit, footings inspection 
report, or certified statement/affidavit from contractor 
indicating exact dnte of commencement 

4. Complete copy of lease agreement as executed, if 
applicable, verifying lessee (applicant) has direct ad 

valorem real and/of personal property tax liability. 
The applicant must hnve real and/or personal property 
tax liability to qualify for an !FT abatement on !eased 
property. Jf applying for a real property tux exemption 
on leased property, the !ease must nm the foll length 
of time the abutemen! is granie<l by the local unit of 
government. Tax JiabilHy for leased properly should 
be dekrmined before sending to the STC, 

The foHmving information is rcquil'cd oflhe loeal unit 
of government [Picnsc note thnt only items 2, 4, 5, 6, 
& 7 below arc forwarded 10 the State Tax Commission 
with the application, nlong with items 2 & 3 from above. 
The original is required by the STC. The remaining 
items are lo be retained at the local nnJt of government 
for futme reference. (The locai nuit mus( verify that 
the school distdd listed on aU IFT npplkntinns is 
con·edJ] 
1. A copy of the notice to the general public and the 

certified notice to (he prope,rly owners concerning the 
establishment of the district 

2. C.:rfiiie!i copy nf the resoiutfon esfah!ishing the 
lndnstrinl Dcvc!npmcuJ District (!DD) or Plnut 
Relrnbilltntion District (PRD), which includes 
a legal description of the district (see sample). 
if the dfafrict was not ,ishlhlished pdn1· !o the 
commcnceuHmi of consfrudfon, flie loci,! unit shaH 
include a cel'iiJfod copy or date sfomped copy of 

tlle writtnn rcqm:st to establish the dist1·ict. 

3. Copy of the notice and the ccr!ified letters tn the 
taxing authorities regnrding the hearing to approve 
the application. 

4. Cer!Hictl copy of the resolution ap1n·ovfog the 
appiicati<m. The resolution must inclmle the 
mm1bcr ofycm·s the local unit fa granting tile 
abatement and rlw statement "flw grnnting of tile 
fodustdal Facilities Exemption Certificate shall 
not have the effect of imhstantial!y impeding 1:he 
opera!iou of (govcrmncnfal unit), m· impairing the 
financial smrndness of n faxing miit wh:ich levies 
at! vnlurem prnperty taxes in (govemmeub! unH
sce sample). 

5. Lc!icr of Agreement (signet! by Hrn focJ,l unit of 
government aml ihc ap1>lic~mt per P.A. 33<1 of 1993 
(sec sample)). 

6. Affidavit of Fees (sigllCd by the local unit of 
government and the ap11Iicant), (Bulletin 31 

Jmmary :J6, 1998). This statement may be 



1012, Page 4 of 4 

illcorpornied info the Lette!' of Agreement {see 
sample). 

7. Treasury Form 3222 (ff npplkabie ~ Flscof 
Stuteme11tji1r 'lhxAbatemeuf Request,) 

The following iliformntion is !'eqni!'ed for 
rclrnbi!Hntion npplications in addition to the above 
req11ircme11ts: 

1. A !isling of existing machinery, equipment, furniture 
and !lxturcs which will be replaced or renovated. This 
listing should include description, beginning date of 
instatlution or cxpeded installation by month/dny/ 
year, and costs or expected costs. 

2. A rehabilitation application must include a statement 
from the Assessor showing the tnxable valuation of 
the plant rehabilitation district, separately stated for 
real property (EXCLUDING LAND) and personal 
property. Attach a statement from the assessor 
indicating the obso!csecncc of the properly being 
rehabi lilalcd. 

The following info1·mHiim1 is reqnii·e(I .ii.H' spernfalive 
building applications in addition to HHi above 
requirements: 

l. A certified copy of !he rcsolu!ion to establish a 
speculative building. 

2. A statement of non-occupancy from the owner and 
the assessor. 

Please refer to the fo!lowing Web siie for P.A. 193 of 
! 974: www.legisia!ure.mi.gov/. For more information 
and Frequently Asked Qncstions, visit 
www.michigau.gov/propcrtyfaxexemptions. 

For guaranteed receipt by lhc State Tax Commission, 
il is recommc11ded that applications and at!achmenfs 
are sent by certified mail, 



Kxhibit B 

Challenge Mfg. Company, LLC ("Challenge", or the "Company") is a mannfoctmcr of welded 
assemblies and engineered metal f:<.nmed product8 for lhe automotive industry. Challenge vvas 
founded in 1981 and currently operates five Midiigan-hased production facilities, including three 
in Walker, MI (where lhe company is headqnartcrcd), and one in Hollrmd, ML The company 
currently has approximately 2,065 Michigan-based employees, and is a valued iier-1 supplier to 
several automotive Original Equipment Manufhcimers. 

The Pontiac, MI facility, which launched in 2016, was the first Challenge facility in Southeast 
Miehigan. The existing fadlity is 360,000 sq. n mmn1fi:1dudng facility houses robolic m:sembly 
of several component parts to be sold to an OEM production facility in the melro-Ddroil area. 
Due to rece11t new business awards, Challenge is seckh,g to expand its operations on the 40-acre 
site on the southwest corner of a 1 GO-acre vacant property that previously housed General 
lvtotors' Pontiac assembly plunt site, 

As pnrt of the Project referenced in this PA 19H application, Challenge plans to invest an 
estimated $13,635,232 to cxpund its local capabilities to include metal stamping. The press 
room and supporting infrastructure is estimated to require a 57,000 <1ddition to !he current 
building. 

Challenge anticipates creating 35 new jobs frum thG investment in the Pontiac site, all of which 
\Vill be above !he local living wage und include a mix ofbolh higher-paying skilled positions and 
unskilled jobs with a lower barrier to entry. 



Real Property Sdtednle 

Constrnction DescripJion 

Earthwork & Utilities 
Concrete 
Stnwturnl Steel 
Masonry 
Woods, Plastics, Composites 
Thermal & T:Vloisttn:e 
Openings 
Finishings 
Specialties 
Fire Snpression 
Plumbing 
Heating, VenlHaling, and Air 
Conditioning 
Elcctricnl 

Total 

Exhibit C 

Beginning Date nf 
Instialhltimi 

11/5/2019 
12/3/2019 
3/3/2020 
5/4/2020 
4/14/2020 

11/5/2019 
12/31/2019 
6/1/2020 
11/5/2019 
4/28/2020 
4/28/2020 
4/28/2020 

4/28/2020 

Ii:.xpedeu 
Completion of 
Installation 

4/6/2020 
5/29/2020 
4/13/2020 
7/10/2020 
5/25/2020 
5/22/2020 
7/10/2020 
7/10/2020 
5/25/2020 
5/20/2020 
6/2/2020 
6/2/2020 

6/2/2020 

Expected Cost 

2,229,565 
4,072,493 
3,326,205 

99,079 
37,291 

1,263,475 
16,1,490 

321,405 
7,83:1 

201,670 
578,891 
466,875 

865,960 

$ 13,635,232 



MAY 2 9 20H 

COVENANT DEEDUY 

105037 
LIBER 47091 PAGE 571 
rn.,10 otrn - comm1rn 
H ,00 REHOHUH£!ffATIOH 
Oh/lH/:11)l4 Q7l56: l!i A,11. RECE!Pn 52131) 
f'f\ID REtORD£0 - OAY.L@D COutHY 
USA 8ROll!h CLEHK/RE<irnTER OF OEEOS 

TmS INrH~NTURE is made on l'vfoyto, 2014 between MMP GROUP-ASSEMBLY) 
LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, with an address n! 1999 Cenlerpohit Parkw<1y, Suite 
300, Pontiac, Michigan 48341 ("Grantor"), and CHALLE:NGE PONTIAC, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company, with an address a( 3079 Three Mile Road NW, Walker, Michigan 
49534 ("Grantee"), 

WITNESS ETH, That Granlor, for and in considcrn!ion o!' the sum of ten dollars mid 00/100 
($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration (see Reul Estate Trnnsfor Tux Valuation Affidavit 
filed herewith) to it in hnnd paid by Grantee, !he receipt whereof is hereby confessed and acknowledged, 
has grnnted, conveyed, bnrgaincd, sold, rcmiscd, rclca:;cd, aliened nmt confirmed, and by these presents 
does grant, convey, bargain, sci!, remise, release, alien and confinn ml!o Grnn!ee, and to ils heirs and 
assigns, forever, all of thut certain piece or parcel of !11nd situn!ed, lying uml being in the City of Pontiac, 
Oakland Collnty, Michigan more particularly described on ~xhJ,l,J.iLA attached henito (the "Property") 
subj cc! to mntkrs of zoning, casements, reslriclions and right;;-of-way of record nnd the lien for luxes and 
assessments not yet due nnd payable; together with afl and singular the heredilamcnts an<l appurtennnccs 
!hereunto belonging or in any way appertaining; and the reversion or reversions, remainder or remainders, 
rents, L%ucs and profits thereof; and all estate, right, tide, interest, claim or demand wlialsoevcr, of 
Grnnior, either in law or equity, of: in and to the above bargained premises, with the said hcrcditamcnts 
and uppurtcmmces; lo have nnd to hold the prc!lliscs as before described, with !he appurtenances, unto 
Grantee-, its heirs and assigns, forever. And Grnntor, for itself, its successors and assigns, docs covenant 
and agree to nnd with Grantee, its heirs and assigns, that GrnlllOr bns 1101 heretofore done, commi!!ed, or 
wittingly or willingly suffered to be done or committed, m1y ac1, nwtter or thing whatsoever, wh,~~y ll!.Q.i ,

1
, 

promises hereby grnn!cd, or any par! hereof, is, nrc or shall, or may be charged or encumbered w=,ti!l~lt 
cslalc or otherwise howsoever, except ns hcrcinnbovc recited, ~ <Pi:·,~ 

SIGNATURE AND NOTARIZATION ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE. 

CHECIUWG coM.PLET!:O 
AT REGJ.SiER OF DEEDS r J~N ~ 2011] 

· ·• Register of 0eros 
oa'klant! Co1mty, MI 

!f.!~Vl?!-jlll ro ~t: Al11F!XEO 
AFTER Re!CORD!NG 

------~-~------------------------------

~ ?i?f~ 
t ';J.ildrh 
N o c,::: 

".'"f"t~)\ t; 
(::} c:::,t:.:J 
rt1;..t: 

~ r1'.1-J: •;r •,~ \7,®' 
Ts 



SIGNATURE PAGE TO COVENANT DEED 

Execu!ed on May Jl!_, 2074. 

STATE OF M!ClllGAN ) 

/ 1 \11 ) ss 

MMP GROUP-ASSEMBLY, LLC, 
a Michignn limited liability company 

·;-:~--=;-------
y, ··---+---.o:C --~---------

Thomas Dyze 
lts: Authorized Signatory 

COUNTY or UJl~l)_Q._) ___ j 

The foregoing instniment ,vns acknowledged before me on Mny fil, 2014, by Thomas Dyzc, the 
Authorized Signatory of MMP Group-Assembly, LLC., 11 Michignn limited linbility company, as his free 
act an<l deed on behalf of said limited liability co~,my:-\ ~ , j) ~ . · 

-· i.l- ~~ r· 
PATR!CIALlOVE .~ ,,..LL \::_::.,,; : . . 

No\ary Public, Sl!lla of Mlcll!gan Notnry Publlc_ .. \Jl t.i~iLJ ____ Counly, M1cb1gnn. 
county of Wayno Acting in 11·'AI Couniy 

My Cnmmlsdon &plros llov. 10, 2017 - LI) II\!'.\', I J H 
/\ctl~9l~lhaCoun\yo!.Wi:\.t ' My commission bxpircs: __ Jl::/2- ,2ou:- \ 

County Trc:isunir's Certificate 

When recorded rctun1 to: 

~~-- :;:,---

Wam«No~ 
111 Fifth Third Cent · 
Suite 900 
~Rls,lvfl 1!9503-2487 

Recording Fee; 

T.ix Parcel Nos.: 

-
$ __ _ 

City Treasurer's Certificate 

Semi suh~cqucnt tax Drnf!ed hy: 
hills to: 
Ornntee Thomas R. August, Esq. 

.Tackier Gould, P.C. 
121 W. Long Lnkc Rd,, Suite 200 
Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48304 
(248) 642-0500 

S!nte Trnnsfor Tax: 

County Transfer Tax: 

See Real Estate Transfor Tax Valtrntion Affidavit 

See Real Estate TrnnsforTax Vnlunlion Affidavit 

When Recorx.Jad Ra!um to; 
TIils Source, Inc. -
Commerclal Team 

662 Woodward Avenue 
Da!roll, Ml 48226 

,. TS!#:Ji'i.f1(v'iS~/g~ - IL{) 

. .I 



EXIIIBlT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Land Situated in the City of Pontiac in the County ofOnkland in the Stale of MI 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED CENTBRPOiNT CHALLENGE PARCEL: 

Being all that part of Lots ll-l l at1d part of Belt Line Hail Road, as p!attctl, a part of "Assessrn's Plat No, 
110", n part ofSectio~~orih, Range to East, as recorded in Uber 52 of Plats, Page 26 of 
Oakland County Records, lying within the following described parcel: Commencing al the Northeast 
properly controlling comer of Section 3 (as previously surveyed by Nowak & Fraus 011-05-07), Town 2 
North, Range IO East, City of Pontiac, Onk!and County, Michigan: Thence South 00 degrees 36 minutes 
2 l seconds West along the East line of srlid Seclion 3, 1215,50 feet; thence North 89 degrees 23 minutes 
39 seconds Wes! 60,00 foet to a point, said point being tlw intersection of!he Soulh line ofCmnpus Drive 
(width varies) with the West !inc of Opdyke Road 020 foct wide); !hence South 00 degrees 36 minutes 21 
seconds Wes( along the West line of Opdyke Road, 2060.0 l foci to a point of Dellee!ion; thence South 00 
degrees 24 minutes 47 seconds East along the West line of Opdyke Road, 90 l .82 foet to the Northeast 
corner of Unit 5 ofCcnterpoint I3usiness Campus Condominium, a condominium according lo the Master 
Deed thereof recorded in Liber 16667, Page 11, Onk!and County Records, and designated us Oakland 
County Condominium Plan No, l 004, and any amendments thereto, as last amended hy Eighth 
Amendment !o Moster Deed recorded in Uber 35596, Page 855, Oakland County Records; thence the 
following five (5) courses along !he North line of:;aid Uni! 5 and Units 21, 22, and 40 of said Ccnlerpoin! 
I3usincss Campus Condominium: (l) South 89 degrees 35 minulcs l 3 seconds West 35.00 feet, and (2) 
Noiih 00 degrees 24 mlm1tes 47 seconds West, 20.00 foct, find (3) 210,9 l lee! along a curve to the left 
(radius 2 l 5.00 foci, central angle 56 degrees 12 minutes 23 seconds, long chord bean, South 6 t degrees 
29 minutes 0l seconds West, 202.56 feet) to a point of reverse curvature, an<l (4) 226.24 feet along a 
curve to !he right (radius 225.00 feet, ccn!rn! angle 57 degrees 36 minutes 46 seconds, long chord bears 
South 62 degrees ! l minutes 13 seconds Wes! 2 I 6.83 foct), nnd (5) North 89 degrees 00 minutes 24 
seconds West, 706,20 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing along !!rn North line ofUni! 40 
nnd 24 of said Cenlerpoint Business Campus Condominium, North 89 degrees 00 minutes 24 seconds 
West, 716.42 foe! to a point on the Easterly line of Ccntcrpoinl ParkwBy (width varies}; thence the 
following five (5) courses along said Easterly line of Centerpoint !'arkwny: ( l) North 45 degrees l 0 
minutes 30 seconds West, 432,89 feet, find (2) 519.48 feet along a curve to ihe right (rndius 400,00 feet, 
central nng!e 74 degrees 24 minutes 38 seconds, long chord bears North 07 degrees 58 minutes l l 
seconds Wes!, 483,74 feet), and (J) North 29 degrees 14 minutes 08 seconds East., 299.59 feet, and {4) 
36433 foet along a curve to !he lcfi (radius 750,00 feet, central angle 27 degrees 49 minutes 59 seconds, 
chord bears North l S degrees 19 minutes 08 seconds East, 360,76 feet), and (5) North OJ degrees 24 
minutes 09 second.~ East, 423.92 feet; thence leaving the Easlorly line ofCenterpoinl Parkway, South 89 
degrees 00 minutes 24 seconds East, 870.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 59 minutes 36 seconds Wesl, 
1815.00 feel back to the point of beginning. 

Together wlth mi easement for ingress, egress and u!Hities ns set fo1ih in un fa,semen! Agreement between 
MlvfP Group-Assembly, LLC and Challenge Pontiac, LLC, dated May 21_, 2014 nnd recorded on May 
_a_, 20 !4 in LibertJrO!i'l Page JS, Oakland County Records. 

l 
t 



Develoe.er 
W,\l.llRlnCJ:. 
Tri '.\'DOITWAJU) AVl'Nt.:E 
3tttt'E:it'<l 
nEntnt r.:.ncrnnA--.: ,.s:2(1 
C'Ot,;T.-.CI: 
l-,;.K JO!L'\llJ:~t1,:}.llil:'.R:.1-
l'Ht•Nf; lJ.lJ1<1f>:",,,~.ui 
t:M:,.\.tt.: JU~J>.1\HRG·.fr\\'Al.M!!Dt;IJ CO!\t 

Civil E11.9.in,mr 
ND\VM ,.1;..FRA<JS !:.'N!JlSlc~ERS 
ll>7T'Wt.>DDWAJl..i)A.VE:-,fUf, 
H)l,n1AD. HJt·J Uf>A, • ....._ ,:J~l~ 
CONl"AC{: 
MitJ,\;;i.l~lR LO~nm: .. 1{:--.T.il.!; 
J'UOl\l~, 
J!M..,\U..: 

Landsca.e.e Architect 

City of Pontiac, 
Oakland County, Michigan 

PREUMIN,t\RY SITE PLAN DOCUMENTS 

E 

Prepared For 
IDGE 

PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 114 OF SECTION 3, 
CITY OF Pot'1TIAC. 

I 

OAKLAHO COUNTY. MICHIG.4N 

E 
I 

Project Name 

I 
I 

i,j~'( (Jt' /J'?!-:fl,(:.(:{Jt"(!fi 

ShEET INDEX 
-:.v Cr...<.-<;: Sr~~t 
C'. 
C✓ 

c: 

,_ ,, ... .,., • .,_ ~'-'~~ ..... , q ,,<. t• -~-~-,.~ ,--'•t~• .... ~ .. , "'· ,., .. 



.,,.,.~ "«<· ,,._.., 

'>318¥1\ H Wl\a\ • A'>itt'itN'd ,i,N)¢J~W.J:> 





~ .. ,....., -~ 
'3£!.IUV,\ HlOM ~ ?-.V~lt~Vd 1WO-J!.!2if13.:J 

' " 

' 

I 

; 

• 

~ 
' ' 



··-r 1 1 1 
! l (~) (~) I 

cb ciD cb 
I . 

(~) ! 
.. (~ 

i 
ch 

0 
Cl 



I 

i 
<t:> -J-·· 

i 
i 
I 
I 

·---·-··' ?"·-··--,--,·~ 

0 6 
F 
l5 
0 ~, 

i 
i 
j 

(!~) 

:i 
_,) 
0. 
:,, 
0 
F 
i5 
0 

"' 

0 
~ 

' <( 



IJ 

ll 

~ 
II 

0 

t1 

I! 

u 

~ 
0 

D 

g 

0 

D 

0 u 
L; 

ll !-· 
f1 

" 

C 

L 

fi 
L1 

! .. 

u 
0 

fl 

0 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division· 
47450 Woodward Ave, Ponti~ MI 48342 

T: 248.758.2800 I F: 248.758.2827 
Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: VERN GUSTAFSSON - PLANNING MANAGER 
THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

SUBJECT: DRAFT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT I CHALLENGE MANUFACTURING COMPANY 

DATE: DECEMBER 13, 2019 

Attached is a draft Development Agreement between the City of Pontiac and Challenge Manufacturing 
Company LLC, as part of their request to grant an Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate on the 
property to support Challenge Manufacturing's development of the project. The Development Agreement 
includes the required Affidavit of Fee statement and is subject to negotiation with Challenge Manufacturing. 

Please submit any questions in writing to the City Attorney. 



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Development Agreement ("Agreement") is effective as of. ______ , 2019, 
between the City of Pontiac ("City''), a Michigan municipal corporation, and Challenge 
Manufacturing Company, LLC ("Developer"), a Michigan limited liability company. 

Recitals: 

WHEREAS, the Developer owns real property commonly known as 2501 Centerpoint 
Parkway, Pontiac, in Oakland County, Michigan ("Property"); 

WHEREAS, the Developer desires to make substantial improvements to and redevelop 
the Property for future use ("Project"); 

WHEREAS, the Developer has applied for and received approval from the Oakland 
County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority of a brownfield plan ("Brownfield Plan") to facilitate 
redevelopm?nt of the Project; . 

:. > <'· . , __ ,. /,•···.'-;··:\':~ . . . -

(Ci WHEREAS, the Brownfield Plan captures property taxes qorresponding toth·e increased 
taxable value cifth'e Project 'and reimburse the Develop~ff for eligible activities; and . 

, _ WHEREAS,',the City has been'requested to graht an Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption 
Ce[tificate on the Prpperty to support the Developer's development of_the _P~oject; and· 

WHEREAS, •the City is exei;:;uting this Agreement, in part, to induce the Developer to 
further develop the Project, and the parties acknowledge that furt,her development of the Project 
will~9ntribute significantly t6 the economy of the City (?f Poi;ttiac; and 

, .. WHEREAS, the City's Mayor 1nd City Council hav~ dete_rmined that this Agreement is 
appr()piia~e for,tfie proposed developrilen(qf the Project, is consistent with the public health, 
safety· andweffare of the City's residents and businesses, and will result in positive impacts and 
benefits for the City and its residents and businesses; 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the adequacy, sufficiency and 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the Developer agree as follows: 

1. Recitals. The Recitals as set forth herein are represented to be true and accurate 
and are hereby incorporated as material terms of this Agreement. 

2. No Preemption. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement 
shall not be deemed to waive, preempt, supersede, or render ineffective any applicable municipal 
or governmental laws, ordinances, codes, regulations or processes, including but not limited to 
zoning, brownfield and economic incentives, taxes, assessments or fees, and Developer shall be 
subject to all review and approval processes required under the City's ordinances, regulations 
and rules. 

1 

, 
! 



3. Community Benefits. 

A. In connection with the development and construction of the Project, 
Developer shall implement, or require its general or prime contractor(s) to implement, a 
local hiring policy which provides (1) a preference for such general or prime contractor(s) 
to hire Pontiac Based Businesses ( as defined below) as subcontractors and suppliers for 
jobs relating to the development and construction of the Project, and (2) a preference for 
such general or prime contractor(s), and, to the extent possible, their subcontractors and 
suppliers, to hire City residents to perform jobs relating to the development and 
construction of the Project. Further, the Developer may retain Pontiac Based Businesses 
to provide architectural, engineering, environmental and other professional and consulting 
firms services relating to the development and construction of the Project. For purposes 
of this Agreement, a "Pontiac Based Business" shall mean a business that is either (i) 
headquartered in the City, or (ii) has an office, store or other facility within the City. 
Developer shall require its general or prime contractors to advertise available on-site jobs 
in local media and electronically on a City-sponsored website and social media, including 
but.11ot limited to:.http://www.pontiac.mi.us/about/jobpipeline.php provid.~d .,sqcp other 
resourc~s exist. In addition;meveloper shc31JyQnsult with and· provide' written notice to at 

-· 1easf -. two, (2) localfhiring ~organizations,\wh1qh may include' non:.profit'organizations 
involved in.referring i3ligible applicants for)qh opportunities, i11cluding through the Pontiac 
Jobs Pipelir\e whichjis operatecl through~~ c:ify's Economic Development Department. 
Developer shall reqµire its general or p~ime contractors to consider in good faith all 
applications 'submitt~d by City residents and bysinesses and maintain a preference for 
hiring Cityrekidents and businesses that}:ire qualified to perform-tilepn-site jobs relating 
to the Projeqt and c9nstruction of the project. Developer shall, in its 'agreements ,with its 
general o'r prime contractors, include.a:' requirement for this local hiring policy, and, in 
connection Jherewitrl, Develop.er wiU intrqduc;e such contractors to, and encourage such 
contractors to participate in, the "Conif[iunifyVentures" program offered by the Michigan 
EconomicDevelopment Corpotation .. ./ , · ' ,' ·i . > • • • 

B. Devefoper sh~II hold a workforce symposium within the City; make all 
possible efforts to notify residents of the City, discuss the open positions and help City 
residents find work on the project. 

C. Developer work with the City to identify residents to whom Developer shall 
provide apprenticeship opportunities and periodically report on the progress of same. 

D. The City acknowledges the Developer has collective bargaining 
agreements with employees, and that nothing herein shall be deemed to supersede those 
obligations. 

4. Additional Requirements of City and Developer. Both the City and Developer 
further agree as follows: 

A. This Agreement is not intended to create a contractual right for third parties. 

B. This Agreement and any of its terms, conditions, or provisions cannot be 
modified, amended, or waived unless in writing and unless executed by both parties to 
this Agreement. Any representations or statements, whether oral or in writing, not 
contained in this Agreement shall not be binding on either party. 

2 



C. This Agreement and any of its terms or conditions shall not be assigned or 
transferred to any other individual or entity unless prior written consent to such an 
assignment is received from City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed. The City's failure to consent to a proposed assignment because 
the proposed assignee lacks the creditworthiness or development experience of the 
Developer or lacks creditworthiness or experience affirming its ability to complete the 
Project shall not be deemed to be unreasonable. 

D. This agreement shall be interpreted, enforced and governed under the laws 
of the State of Michigan and all applicable City ordinances. The venue for any action 
arising under this agreement shall be a court of appropriate jurisdiction in Oakland County. 

E. The City, as a one-stop ready community, will expeditiously review and 
when appropriate, approve Developer's requests for permits, licenses, consents and 
approvals sought by Developer in connection with the Project. 

. ····••. F. The. parties agree that no COl'lll)lUnications will be mad El to tbern~gic1.9r, tll~ 
pub[iGTegarding tbi~ Agreement, the Project c:it the relationship !Jetwe:en the 9Jt'JU1d:lh~ 

· Develo'per. unless·. mutually agreed in writing by both parties: · -Notwithstandjrig' the 
foregoing, ·Developet acknowledges that this Agreement is subject to disclosure 'llnder the 
Michigan Freedom of Information Act. · · · 

, ' ··_ 

G.. '. Affidavit of Fees: We swear and 'affirm by our signatures below that no 
payment of any kind. iii excess of the fee allowed by PA 198 of 197 4,, as amended by PA 
323 if 1996, ;has been made or promised in exch~nge for favorable consideration of an 
exemption c~rtificati6n application. . . 

' i ' 

5. Force Maje~re. The bevelopElr shall not b~ consid~red in default in the timely 
performance of any of its obligations under thist Agreement ifthe delay or prevention is due to any 
ev~r:its·or causes·beyond th~ Developer's rea~onable controfincluding, but not limited to) acts of 
God, \(\/<:lrs, civil insurrections, acts or omissions of any governmental or quasi-gover_Qmental 
authority (including the City and other permitting authorities), inability to obtain utilities or failure 
of utilities, laws or other governmental requirements, delays by the other party, fires, floods, 
unusually severe weather, epidemics, freight embargos, unavailability of materials, strikes, labor 
problems or delays of contractors, subcontractors or materialmen or acts or omissions of any third 
parties. By way of example and not limitation, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
in this Agreement, in no event shall Developer be in breach of this Agreement for failure to meet 
any of the construction completion deadlines set forth in section 8 above if the delay is due to 
factors beyond Developer's reasonable control. If a foregoing event or cause occurs, time 
deadlines and time for performance under this Agreement shall be extended for a reasonable 
period of time, not less than the time of prevention or delay caused by such unforeseeable event 
or cause. 

6. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the parties and their respective successors or assigns. 

7. Reporting and Monitoring. Developer shall provide annual reports in a manner 
mutually agreed upon by the parties demonstrating compliance with its obligations under this 
Agreement. Additionally, the City may make reasonable requests for information establishing 
Developer compliance with this Agreement, which Developer shall respond to in writing within 
thirty (30) days. 

3 



8. Notice. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 
Agreement must be in writing, shall be addressed to the receiving party's address set forth below 
or to any other address a party may designate by notice under this Agreement, and shall be either 
(i) delivered by hand, (ii) sent by nationally recognized overnight courier, or (iii) sent by certified 
mail, postage prepaid: 

If to City: 

City of Pontiac 
47450 Woodward Avenue 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
Attention: Deputy Mayor 
Telephone: 248-758-3000 

If to Developer: 

. Ch;3llenge Manufacturing Company, LLC 
3200 fruit Ridge Av~nue NW 

· Walker, M! 49544 :\ 
Attention: \Doug Bradley, Pres1denVCEO 
Telephone: 616-735:6559 

; .'i . -

The undersigned ha~e executed this Agn/ement to be effective as of the date first written 
above. · · 

4 

'CITY: 
> 

QITY OF PONTIAC, a Michigan 
111unicipal corporation 

By: 
Deirdre Waterman 

Its: Mayor 

Date: _____ , 2019 

DEVELOPER: 

Challenge Manufacturing Company 
LLC, a Michigan limited liability 
company 

By: 

Its: 

Date: _____ ,2019 



1 

I 



City of Pontiac 

Office of the City Clerk 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A, Interim City Clerk 

UE 

Application Evaluation, Scoring and Ranking Process 

Meet the Professional Experts 
Financial Ad'ri.sor to the City Clerk 

She1-man J Taylor, JD CPA, SRT Consulting, LLC 

Legal Adlisor to the City Clerk 

Klint Kesto, Esq., Kesto Law, P.L.L.C 

Community Benefits 

Wednesday, December 18, 2019 4:00 p.m.- 6:00 p.m. 
(Ji1y (Jouncil (Jhambers 2nd Floor 

Pontiac (Jiq Hall 

474:SO W"oodward Pontiac, MI 48342 
Now Accepting Applications for: 21 Day Application Period for 

Provisioning Centers 
.January 6-27, 2020 

Grower 

Processor 

Safety Compliance 

Secure Transporter 

Applications will be accepted 
Monday-Friday 9:00 a.01. - 4:00 p.m. 

during tl1c application period 

in the Office of the Ciey Cl.,rk ~ 

For more information and to RSVP call (24S) 758-3200 

Office of the City Clerk, Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 Phone: (248) 758-3200 


	20191213151626903
	20191213151736867
	20191213151827763
	20191213151935204
	20191213151957111

